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CHARACTERISTICS OF GEM OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE
OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to
accommodate small and mid-sized companies to which a
higher investment risk may be attached than other
companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective
investors should be aware of the potential risks of investing
in such companies and should make the decision to invest
only after due and careful consideration.

Given that the companies listed on GEM are generally small
and mid-sized companies, there is a risk that securities
traded on GEM may be more susceptible to high market
volatility than securities traded on the Main Board and no
assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in the
securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock
Exchange take no responsibility for the contents of this report,
make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and
expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever
arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the
contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of Megalogic
Technology Holdings Limited (the “Company”) collectively and
individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in
compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
GEM of the Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”) for the
purpose of giving information with regard to the Company. The
Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that to
the best of their knowledge and belief the information contained in
this report is accurate and complete in all material respects and
not misleading or deceptive, and there are no other matters the
omission of which would make any statement herein or this report
misleading.
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On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of Megalogic Technology
Holdings Limited (the “Company”), | hereby present the annual report of the
Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the
year ended 31 December 2017.

BUSINESS ENVIRONMENT AND
DEVELOPMENT

Over the year, the global economy experienced reasonable growth due to the
monetary policy accommodation and fiscal policy stimulation. However,
factors, like the geopoalitical uncertainties and the commencement of hike
cycle in the United States interest rate and treasury securities, have influenced
the economic developments in the major economies. In face of the
unfavorable market environment in integrated circuit (“IC”) segment, the
Group recorded a decrease in its overall revenue, driven by the decrease in
the provision of tailor-made ASIC services and products. The Group is going
to perform more research and development activities to diversify and improve
its IC products and a number of new ICs were introduced in 2017 to extend
our portfolio, especially in ASIC power management IC and ASIC Motor Driver
IC. As at 31 December 2017, the Group had 14 new IC models under
development and customer evaluation, but 1 IC model had been terminated.
Certain customers took prudent view in project investment and extended the
process of evaluation, acceptance and modification and therefore, the
completion time of development was prolonged.

As the keen and high competition in the money lending market, our loan
portfolio and customer base were diminished in 2017. Our loans receivables
were decreased from approximately HK$256.0 million in December 2016 to
approximately HK$135.4 million in December 2017. Looking forward, the
Group will continue to seek for loan profolio expansion with a balanced risk
and return framework.

On 6 January 2017, the Company as the purchaser, Standard Apex Limited
as the vendor and Ms. Xie Jihong as the guarantor entered into a conditional
sale and purchase agreement in relation to the acquisition of the entire issued
share capital of Quick Wit Ventures Limited (“Quick Wit”) at a consideration of
HK$140.0 million. On 20 January 2017, the Group completed such
acquisition of a property management business in the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC”). The business aims to provide the investment and planning
consulting service, real estate agent, property management services and car
parking management services in the PRC.
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On 25 April 2017, Excellence Steps Limited, a direct wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, as the vendor and Mr. Chung Pui Nam, Roger as the
purchaser entered into a sale and purchase agreement in relation to the
proposed disposal of 55% of the entire issued share capital of Maximus
Venture Holdings Limited (“Maximus”) for a consideration of HK$29.0 million.
All of the conditions precedent under the sale and purchase agreement have
been fulfilled and the disposal was completed on 28 June 2017 in accordance
with the terms and conditions of the sale and purchase agreement.

On 29 September 2017, Excellence Steps Limited, direct wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, and Perfect Day Ventures Limited as the vendor
and being an independent third party of the Group entered into a sale and
purchase agreement in relation to the proposed acquisition of 60% of the
issued share capital of Aggressive Resources Limited for a consideration of
an aggregate sum of HK$97.8 million. Aggressive Resources Limited and its
subsidiary is principally engaged in the sourcing, manufacturing, designing,
packing, wholesaling and trading of health supplement products and as the
Original Equipment Manufacturer of various health supplement products in
Hong Kong. As the resolution was not passed at the extraordinary general
meeting of the shareholders, the acquisition agreement was terminated on 15
January 2018.

On 31 October 2017, Smart Chip Investment Company Limited, as the
subscriber, entered into the subscription agreement with Minilogic Investment
Limited (the “Minilogic”), a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
pursuant to which the subscriber has agreed to subscribe for, and Minilogic
has agreed to allot and issue, the subscription shares (representing 40% of
the issued share capital of Minilogic as enlarged by the allotment and issue of
the subscription shares upon completion) at the consideration of HK$3.4
million. Completion took place on the same day as the date of the
subscription agreement, being 31 October 2017.

As a result of the continuing business expansion and development of property
management business in the PRC, the Group had recorded a profit for 2017.
We would like to share more detail of the Group’s performance, financial
position and other information for the year 2017 with shareholders in the
following section of “Management Discussion and Analysis”.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Board is committed to continuing to maintain high standards of corporate
governance and all board committees have effectively supported the Board in
carrying out its responsibilities. The Board will persist to explore new business
opportunity to maximize the long term interest for the shareholder as a whole.
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APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my sincere thanks to the
valuable contribution from our management team. | would also like to express
my gratitude to all staff for their hard work in the execution of the Group’s
strategies and operations during the past year. Last but not least, | wish to
thank all shareholders, customers, suppliers, business partners and bankers
for their continuous support and confidence in the Group.

Mr. Zhang Qing

Chairman
Hong Kong, 23 March 2018
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEER W RN

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the principal activities of the
Group are: (1) the provision of IC solutions and the design, development and
sales of ICs; (2) money lending business in Hong Kong through the provision
of unsecured and secured loans to customers, including individuals and
corporations under the provisions of the Money Lenders Ordinance (Chapter
163 of the Laws of Hong Kong); and (3) the provision of investment and
planning consulting service, real estate agent, property management services
and car parking management services in the PRC. Following the disposal of a
subsidiary which engaged in the provision of total solutions for information
security services on 28 June 2017, the Group pulled out of the information
security services business in Hong Kong.

BUSINESS REVIEW

IC Business

The Group sells IC under its own brand name “MiniLogic” and provides
application specific IC service (the “ASIC Service”) in design and development
of tailor-made IC to its customers. The Group also provides tailor-made IC
solutions and sells tailor-made ICs to customers under the ASIC Service
business section (the “ASIC Section”); and independently develops and sells
generically-applicable ICs for sale in the market under the MiniLogic Brand IC
business section (the “Standard IC Section”).

Over the past year, the research and development (the “R&D”) team
completed and launched 2 new models in ASIC Power Management |IC and
ASIC Motor Driver IC respectively.

The R&D teams also deployed 5 more new IC models but terminated 1 during
the year. As at 31 December 2017, the Group had 14 new IC models under
development and customer evaluation. The completion of the development of
several new IC models has been extended as the process was prolonged
due to customer evaluation, acceptance and modification work. Developing
IC products with suitable technology that appeal to the market is essential for
the growth of IC business. This can also expand the range of the IC products
and maintain our competitiveness.
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ASIC Section

Under the ASIC Section, the major products are Electronic Cigarette ICs,
DVD Player ICs, Power Management ICs and CCD Surveillance System ICs.
2 new IC models were launched in 2017. Due to the stagnant demand in the
IC industry, revenue and margin from Electronic Cigarette ICs and DVD Player
ICs decreased when compared to the same period last year. Revenue from
the ASIC products decreased from approximately HK$19.6 million for the
year of 2016 to approximately HK$14.3 million for the year of 2017.

At the same time, revenue from the provision of ASIC Service decreased from
approximately HK$1.6 million in 2016 to approximately HK$1.4 million in
2017. Due to the decrease in revenue from the ASIC Service and ASIC
products, particularly in Electronic Cigarette ICs and DVD Player ICs, the
overall revenue from the ASIC Section dropped by 25.9% from approximately
HK$21.2 million in 2016 to approximately HK$15.7 million in 2017.

Standard IC Section

Under the Standard IC Section, the major products are LCD Driver ICs for
instrument panel and Power Management ICs. No new IC model was
launched in 2017. In view of the improvement in the market sentiment for the
LCD Diriver ICs, there was an increase in overall revenue for the year of 2017.
Accordingly, the overall revenue from the Standard IC Section increased by
39.3% from approximately HK$2.8 million in 2016 to approximately HK$3.9
million in 2017.

Money Lending Business

The Group engages in the money lending business, such as providing
secured and unsecured loans to customers comprising individuals and
corporations to earn interest income. As the market competition is still keen
and highly competitive, the Group’s loans receivables, which are repayable
according to repayment schedules with contractual maturity ranging from 3
months to 12 years, decreased from approximately HK$256.0 million as at 31
December 2016 to approximately HK$135.4 million as at 31 December 2017.
Accordingly, the revenue decreased significantly by 27.0% from approximately
HK$27.0 million in 2016 to approximately HK$19.7 million in 2017.

Property Management Business in the PRC

Following the completion of the acquisition of entire issued share capital of
Quick Wit, the Group has entered into the property management industry in
the PRC and provides a broad range of property management services to
property developers and property owners since 20 January 2017.
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Property Management Services

Through providing property management services to property owners and
residents such as predelivery services, move-in assistance services, security,
cleaning, gardening, repair and maintenance, the revenue of this segment
since acquisition of Quick Wit amounted to approximately HK$24.7 million.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group has managed residential and non-
residential properties with an aggregate contracted gross floor area (“GFA”) of
approximately 57,000 and 155,000 square meters respectively. The total
contracted GFA means the sum of revenue-bearing GFA, undelivered GFA
and common area GFA.

Revenue-bearing GFA represented contracted GFA in relation to which the
collection of property management fees has started when a property has
been delivered or is ready to be delivered. In properties that have been
delivered or are ready to be delivered after delivery notices have been given
to the first group of property owners in such properties, property developers
would pay property management fees on unsold units until such units are
sold.

Undelivered GFA means contracted GFA in relation to which the collection of
property management fees has not started because the relevant property is
not ready to be delivered.

Common area GFA includes pathways, garden, parking lots, and
advertisement bulletin boards.

Property Real Estate Agency Services

The property management team has provided the property management and
real estate agency services in respect of commercial and residential buildings
in the PRC. The revenue of this segment since acquisition of Quick Wit
amounted to approximately HK$3.9 million as at 31 December 2017.

Property Consulting Services

The property management team has also provided the property management
consultancy services to other property management companies such as
standardised operation, cost control and consultation. The revenue of this
segment since acquisition of Quick Wit amounted to approximately HK$8.0
million as at 31 December 2017.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Below is an analysis of our key financial indicators including, but not limited to
revenue, cost of sales and services, gross profit and cost to income ratio,
which reflected the financial position of the business.

Revenue, Cost of Sales and Services and Gross
Profit

The total revenue of the Group from continuing operations increased
significantly by 49.1% from approximately HK$50.9 milion in 2016 to
approximately HK$75.9 million in 2017. The increase was mainly due to the
revenue generated from the newly acquired property management business
in the PRC.

Cost of sales and services of the Group from continuing operations related to
the IC and the newly acquired property management business in the PRC
increased significantly by 63.8% from approximately HK$17.4 million in 2016
to approximately HK$28.5 million in 2017.

The gross profit of the ASIC Section from continuing operations decreased by
26.3% from approximately HK$5.7 million in 2016 to approximately HK$4.2
million in 2017, and gross profit margin of the ASIC Section from continuing
operations was 26.9% in 2017, representing an increase of 0.6 percentage
points from 26.3% in 2016. The increase in gross profit margin of ASIC
Section was mainly due to the decrease in cost of sales of ASIC products.
The gross profit of the Standard IC Section from continuing operations
increased significantly by 112.5% from approximately HK$0.8 million in 2016
to approximately HK$1.7 milion in 2017, and the gross profit margin of
Standard IC Section from continuing operations was 43.1% in 2017,
representing a rise of 12.3 percentage points from 30.8% in 2016. The
increase in gross profit margin of Standard IC Section was mainly attributable
to the increase in revenue from certain higher margin Standard IC products.
The overall gross profit of the Group from continuing operations increased
significantly by 41.5% from approximately HK$33.5 milion in 2016 to
approximately HK$47.4 million in 2017, and the overall gross profit margin of
the Group from continuing operations was 62.4%, representing an decrease
of 3.4 percentage points from 65.8% in 2016. The overall gross profit margin
decreased as the profit margin of the newly acquired property management
business in the PRC was lower.
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Expenses

Staff costs from continuing operations increased significantly by 48.4% from
approximately HK$12.4 million in 2016 to approximately HK$18.4 million in
2017. The increase was primarily attributable to general pay rise and the
newly acquired property management business in the PRC.

Depreciation and amortisation from continuing operations in 2017 was
approximately HK$1.5 million, similar to that of the corresponding period in
previous year.

Operating lease rentals from continuing operations increased by 16.7% from
approximately HK$1.8 million in 2016 to approximately HK$2.1 million in
2017, which was mainly due to the opening of new offices in Hong Kong
since April 2016 and the newly acquired property management business in
the PRC.

Other operating expenses from continuing operations slightly increased by 9.4%
from approximately HK$8.5 million in 2016 to approximately HK$9.3 million in
2017. The increase was mainly attributable to the increased spending for the
expansion and development of the business, such as legal and professional
fee.

Profit Attributable to Owners of the Company

The consolidated profit attributable to owners of the Company from
continuing operations for the year 2017 was approximately HK$10.3 million.
For the year 2016, the consolidated profit attributable to owners of the
Company was approximately HK$6.8 million. The increase was approximately
HK$3.5 million, or 51.5%. The increase was mainly attributable to the
increase in overall revenue and gross profit as a result of revenue and profit
generated from the property management business following the completion
of the acquisition of entire issued share capital of Quick Wit in January 2017.

Cost to income ratio

The cost to income ratio of the Group (expenses/revenue) from continuing
operations was 50.0% in 2017, representing a drop of 2.4 percentage points
from 52.4% in 2016. The drop in its ratio was mainly attributable to the
revenue generated from the newly acquired property management business
in the PRC.

12

B X

REBEREERNE TR AH016EMY
1248 8 B 7L K18 18 148.4% E2017F M 49
184EEBTL - ZEMPNIEEARIELE L
FARRPBEZABRENMEESEEBHMN -

KEFBEEEXEBNTERBHR2017TFLH
BI6BAERBT BEFRMERBEKT -

REFBERLLEEBNKEHEE S BH20164F
M#1.8B&E BT EFH16.7% 22017 F K 4)2.1
BEBIL NETEZHNRBE2016F4ARERE
FARFHEELRFPEZHREOYEE R
ES e

KEFBLEEBOEMEE X A20165
M #18.5 8 &8 TLEMIE MN9.4% £2017 F M4
OBBEEB L - ZEMNETERNERRER
ERSEBAREEROHIEMAE -

ZANVNSTE ZC DN R p ]

R2017F RERFRBCEEENARRES
ANEEGRARF A A103F 88 T - R2016
FoARARRHAAEBEEEGENN AE68EE
EIL e R4 AISHE BB L H51.5% ° %I
ENDETEHFEARKBER2017F1 A T U E
Quick Wit 2 B 2 B ITIR AN - MEB R ET
FTEANRZE RaF  SHEBKREREF
EF-

B AN WA B =R

R2017TF  AEBREFELEEBHHNKAK
W At R (B W 28) B50.0% » 82016 F Y
52.4% N 2AEBE DB - HEL R TR EER
REFTUWENPEMEERELEENK
= TR o

Megalogic Technology Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017



RISKS RELATING TO THE GROUP AND ITS
BUSINESS

Reliance on a few key customers

The Group’s ability to maintain close relationships with its customers is
important to its ongoing growth and profitability. Although the Group’s
revenue from specific customers vary from period to period, a significant
portion of the Group’s total revenue was derived from a few major customers
for the year ended 31 December 2017 and the corresponding period in last
year. The five largest customers accounted for approximately 27.2% and
27.9% of the Group’s revenue while the largest customer accounted for
approximately 6.8% and 8.5% of the Group’s revenue for the year ended 31
December 2017 and 2016 respectively. The Group has established its
business relationship with the largest customer, which is an independent third
party (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules) principally engaged in sales and
production of electronic devices and components, since 2006. However, as
the Group does not enter into long term or master sales contracts with its
major customers, there is no assurance that they will continue to purchase
products from the Group at the same level as they have done in the past.

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
CAPITAL STRUCTURE

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had bank and cash balances of
approximately HK$39.0 million (2016: HK$8.0 million) and did not have any
borrowings, banking facilities or any loan arrangement. The current ratio of
the Group as at 31 December 2017 was 1,501.2% (31 December 2016:
2,531.1%), reflecting the fact that the liquidity of the Group remained healthy.
The gearing ratio calculated as the ratio of total interest-bearing debt to total
asset was nil as at 31 December 2017 (31 December 2016: nil). The Group’s
financial position is healthy, enabling the Group advantageously to expand its
core business and to achieve its business objectives.

CHARGES ON ASSETS

As at 31 December 2017, the Group did not have any charges on its assets (31
December 2016: nil).
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FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

The Group’s transactions are mainly denominated in United States dollars,
Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi. Therefore, the Group is exposed to foreign
currency exchange risk. The Group has not implemented any foreign currency
hedging policy at the moment. However, continuous monitoring on the
foreign exchange exposure is carried out by the management and the
management will consider hedging against significant foreign exchange
exposure should the need arise.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND CAPITAL
COMMITMENT

The Group did not have any material contingent liabilities or capital
commitment as at 31 December 2017 (31 December 2016: nil).

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS HELD, MATERIAL
ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF
SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT
VENTURES, AND FUTURE PLANS FOR
MATERIAL INVESTMENTS OR CAPITAL
ASSETS

The Group completed the acquisition of the entire issued share capital of
Quick Wit on 20 January 2017, the disposal of 55% of the issued share
capital in Maximus on 25 April 2017 and the deemed disposal as a result of
the allotment of subscription shares which represented 40% of the issued
share capital of Minilogic on 31 October 2017.

Save for those disclosed in this annual report, there were no significant
investments held by the Group as at 31 December 2017, nor were there
other material acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries by the Group during
the year 2017. Apart from those disclosed in this annual report, there was no
other plan authorised by the Board for other material investments or additions
of capital assets at the date of this report.
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DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2017 (2016: nil).

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

The Group has approximately 47 (31 December 2016: 41) employees as at
31 December 2017. The Group’s remuneration policies are in line with the
prevailing market practice and are determined on the basis of performance,
qualification and experience of individual employee. We recognise the
importance of a good relationship with our employees. The remuneration
payable to our employees includes salaries and allowances. Other benefits
include training and discretionary bonus.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

The Group has minimised the operation impact on the environment and
natural resource. During 2017, the Group encourages every staff should turn
off the power of computers, photocopiers and other electronic equipment
when they are off duty or on leave. The Group is going to review the
environmental practices from time to time and will consider measures and
practices to enhance the long term sustainability of the environment.

Detailed discussion of the environmental policies and performance will be
included in the Environmental, Social and Governance Report which will be
separately published within three months after the publication of this annual
report.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE APPLICABLE LAWS
AND REGULATIONS

The Group recognises the importance of compliance with regulatory
requirements and the risk of non-compliance with such requirements could
lead to the termination of operating licences. The Group has been allocating
system and staff resources to ensure ongoing compliance with the applicable
rules and regulations and to maintain cordial working relationships with
regulators effectively through effective communications.

During the year under review, to the best of knowledge of the Board, the
Group has complied with the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571
of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “SFO”) and the GEM Listing Rules and other
applicable rules and regulations.
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COMPLETION OF THE ACQUISITION OF
QUICK WIT

On 6 January 2017, the Company as the purchaser, Standard Apex Limited
as the vendor and Ms. Xie Jihong as the guarantor, both being the
independent third parties of the Group, entered into a conditional sale and
purchase agreement (the “Sale and Purchase Agreement”) in relation to the
acquisition of the entire issued share capital of Quick Wit at a consideration of
HK$140.0 million. Quick Wit and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Quick Wit Group”) is principally engaged in the provision of investment and
planning consulting service, real estate agent, property management services
and car parking management services in the PRC. All of the conditions
precedent under the Sale and Purchase Agreement have been fulfilled and
the completion took place on 20 January 2017 in accordance with the terms
and conditions of the Sale and Purchase Agreement. Upon completion of the
acquisition, Quick Wit has become a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company and the financial results of the Quick Wit Group have been
consolidated into the financial statement of the Group.

Details of the acquisition were disclosed in the Company’s announcements
dated 22 December 2016, 6 January 2017 and 20 January 2017 respectively.

According to the audited account of Quick Wit Group for the year ended 31
December 2017, Quick Wit Group recorded a net profit before tax for the
year ended 31 December 2017 was approximately HK$17.0 million, which is
more than the profit guarantee of HK$14.0 million by the vendor under the
Sale and Purchase Agreement.

16

5e BX W88 QUICK WIT

R2017F1HA6H AR A(EARBE 7 )
Standard Apex Limited (£ & & /5 ) & #f # 41 &
T(AKEAERARABEASEEZBLE =
FIAvuBKHEERZ(EEHBZ]  RAA
EBWEQUck Witz 2B BT/ A - REA
140.0 & B 78 7T ° Quick Wit & H I B A 7 (55 18
AlQuick WitsE B ) T 2R FEEFRERE
DEREERRE  BHESL  MEETERE
IEEEEERK -BEEHEBE T 228 %
Rl EER YEREEEHHR KR
MAGH 7 2017F1 A20H 5T/ - AU EE E 1B =
K% QUck WtE R B A AR —MEZZEN
BAF - HQuick Wit Bl 2 I B X BB R A S
BB EANGE AR

WEEBZHBEOEERLARARASA
2016412 A22H ~ 201741 A6 8 %2017 £ 1
A20B 2 RE -

B & Quick Wit5e B 8 £2017F 12 831 H I F
EZEFZER  Quick Wit S B R E =2017F
A BLEFEHRGEHRBMAIMANN1708 8
BT aRETREEHZE THRERFM14.0
BEAT-

Megalogic Technology Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017



DISPOSAL OF BUSINESS IN TOTAL
SOLUTIONS FOR INFORMATION SECURITY

On 25 April 2017, Excellence Steps Limited, a direct wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, as the vendor and Mr. Chung Pui Nam, Roger as the
purchaser entered into a sale and purchase agreement in relation to the
proposed disposal of 55% of the issued share capital of Maximus (together
with its subsidiaries, the “Maximus Group”) for a consideration of HK$29.0
million. The Maximus Group is principally engaged in total solutions for
information security services, including security assessment, consulting,
testing, monitoring and training as well as system integration services of
information security business in Hong Kong. All of the conditions precedent
under the sale and purchase agreement have been fulfilled and the disposal
was completed on 28 June 2017 in accordance with the terms and
conditions of the sale and purchase agreement. Upon completion of the

disposal, the Maximus Group has ceased to be subsidiaries of the Company.

Details of the disposal of 55% of the issued share capital of Maximus was
disclosed in the Company’s announcements dated 25 April 2017, 31 May
2017 and 28 June 2017 and the Company’s circular dated 7 June 2017
respectively.

DEEMED DISPOSAL AS A RESULT OF
SUBSCRIPTION OF 40% ISSUED SHARE
CAPITAL FOR IC BUSINESS

On 31 October 2017, Smart Chip Investment Company Limited, as the
subscriber, entered into the subscription agreement with Minilogic, a direct
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, pursuant to which the subscriber
has agreed to subscribe for, and Minilogic has agreed to allot and issue, the
subscription shares (representing 40% of the issued share capital of Minilogic
as enlarged by the allotment and issue of the subscription shares upon
completion) at the consideration of HK$3.4 million. Completion took place on
the same day as the date of the subscription agreement, being 31 October
2017. Upon completion, Minilogic was held as to 60% by the Group and 40%
by the subscriber and Minilogic continues to be a subsidiary of the Company.
Accordingly, the assets, liabilities and financial results of Minilogic and its
subsidiary continues to be consolidated into the financial statements of the
Group.

Details of the deemed disposal were disclosed in the Company’s
announcement dated 31 October 2017.
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TERMINATION OF ACQUISITION OF AN
HEALTH SUPPLEMENT BUSINESS

On 29 September 2017, Excellence Steps Limited, a direct wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company as the purchaser and Perfect Day Ventures
Limited as the vendor and being an independent third party of the Group
entered into a sale and purchase agreement in relation to the proposed
acquisition of 60% of the issued share capital of Aggressive Resources
Limited for a consideration of an aggregate sum of HK$97.8 million.
Aggressive Resources Limited and its subsidiary is principally engaged in the
sourcing, manufacturing, designing, packing, wholesaling and trading of
health supplement products and as the Original Equipment Manufacturer of
various health supplement products in Hong Kong. As disclosed in the
circular dated 22 December 2017, the completion of the acquisition is
conditional upon, among others, the passing of the resolution by the
shareholders at the extraordinary general meeting. Since the resolution was
not passed by the shareholders at the extraordinary general meeting, the
acquisition agreement was terminated on 15 January 2018.

Details of the proposed acquisition were disclosed in the Company’s
announcements dated 29 September 2017, 24 October 2017, 7 November
2017, 21 November 2017, 5 December 2017, 19 December 2017 and 10
January 2018 and the Company’s circular dated 22 December 2017
respectively.

OUTLOOK

The economic of Hong Kong and the PRC are anticipated to be challenging
in the year 2018 in light of the uncertainties over near-term economic outlooks
and changing business environment of Hong Kong and the PRC. The US
Federal Reserve Bank is expected to gradually normalise its monetary policy
with balance sheet reduction and implement its rate cycle. Facing the
challenging environment in Hong Kong and the PRC, we will continue to
enhance the operational efficiency in IC business by closely monitoring the
development of the products and optimizing our resource allocation. We are
also going to divert more attention and resource to develop the money
lending business and the newly acquired property management business in
the PRC respectively.

Looking forward, considering the recent global economic prospects, the
management will continue to exercise prudency in looking for any suitable
business opportunities in future, so as to broaden the source of our revenues
and cash flows, taking into account the funding requirement and associated
business risk.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Pursuant to Rule 18.44 of the GEM Listing Rules, the Board is pleased to
present this corporate governance report for the year ended 31 December
2017.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Group has committed to upholding high standards of corporate
governance. The Board considers that enhanced public accountability and
corporate governance are beneficial for the healthy growth of the Group,
improving customer and supplier confidence and safeguarding the interests
of shareholders of the Group.

The Board has continued to monitor and review the corporate governance
principles and practices to ensure compliance. The Company has adopted
the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix 15
to the GEM Listing Rules as its own code and has complied with the CG
Code throughout the year ended 31 December 2017, except the following
deviations:

Under code provision A.6.7, independent non-executive directors and other
non-executive directors should also attend general meetings and develop a
balanced understanding of the views of shareholders.

1. Mr. Ye Jian (resigned as a non-executive Director on 31 August 2017)
was unable to attend the annual general meeting of the Company held
on 28 April 2017 and the extraordinary general meeting held on 23
June 2017 as he was obliged to be away for his business matter.

2. Mr. Liu Kam Lung (being a non-executive Director at the relevant time)
was unable to attend the extraordinary general meeting of the Company
held on 23 June 2017 as he was obliged to be away for his business
matter.

3. Mr. Ko Yin Wai (being an independent non-executive Director at the
relevant time) was unable to attend the extraordinary general meeting
of the Company held on 23 June 2017 as he was obliged to be away
for his business matter.
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DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by Directors (the “Model Code”) on terms no less exacting than
the required standard of dealings set out in Rule 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM
Listing Rules.

Upon the specific enquiry made to all the Directors, the Company was not
aware of any non-compliance with the Model Code regarding securities
transactions by the Directors during the year ended 31 December 2017.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Composition

The Board currently comprises seven directors including three executive
Directors, namely Mr. Zhang Qing (Chairman), Dr. Sung Tak Wing Leo (Chief
Executive Officer) and Mr. Lau Mo, one non-executive Director namely Mr. Liu
Kam Lung and three independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr.
Cheung Chi Man Dennis, Mr. Chiu Yu Wang and Mr. Ko Yin Wai. An updated
list of Directors identifying their roles and functions and whether they are
independent non-executive Directors has been published on the websites of
the Company and the Stock Exchange respectively. The profiles of the
Directors are set out in the section “Profiles of Directors and Senior
Management” of this annual report.

As disclosed in the announcement dated 31 August 2017, Mr. Ye Jian

resigned as a non-executive Director due to his other personal and business
commitments.
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During the year ended 31 December 2017, four regular Board meetings and
seven other Board meetings were held in addition to circulation of written
resolution. The attendance record of individual Directors to the Board and the
committee meetings during the year ended 31 December 2017 are shown
below:

HZE2017F12A31BILFE  REME®E R
HEN HBITTAREEEEREERTR
HibZEE &S - HE2017F12A318 L F
E EANESREFSEREEEETENEF
e

Attendance record of meetings held in 2017

R2017FRBTHEBHFELE

Annual General Extraordinary Audit Remuneration Nomination
Name of member Meeting General Meeting Board Committee Committee = Committee
RE A BRREFRE BRRBAAE EEEg ERZEES FHEEE REZET
In number In number In number In number In number In number
(in %) (in %) (in %) (in %) (in %) (in %)
R R R R R R
(Bt (BHL) (B (EHH) (BHL) (AHH)
Total Number of Meetings 1 1 11 6 2 2
BRREAY (Note 3)
(M 5E3)
Number of Meetings
attended/Total
HEEBAE HY
Executive Directors
HITES
Mr. Zhang Qing (Chairman) 11 11 11/11 N/A N/A N/A
SREE S (F ) (100%) (100%) (100%) TEA ~EA TiEA
Dr. Sung Tak Wing Leo
(Chief Executive Officer) 11 11 11/11 N/A N/A N/A
REBEB L+ (7THAEHR) (100%) (100%) (100%) TiE AR TEA T iE A
Mr. Lau Mo (Note 1) N/A 01 5/5 N/A N/A N/A
215 & (M) TERA (0%) (100%) A NEmA A
Non-Executive Directors
FHITES
Mr. Ye Jian (Note 2) 01 0N 7/7 N/A N/A N/A
HEE AL (HiE2) (0%) (0%) (100%) T E A iE A T iE A
Mr. Liu Kam Lung 11 0N 10/11 N/A N/A N/A
BeiEtE (100%) (0%) (91%) TEA ~EA TE A
Independent
Non-Executive Directors
BYKHTES
Mr. Cheung Chi Man Dennis 11 11 11/11 6/6 2/2 2/2
RENX A (100%) (100%) (100%) (100%) (100%) (100%)
Mr. Chiu Yu Wang 11 11 11/11 6/6 2/2 2/2
iR a7 e (100%) (100%) (100%) (100%) (100%) (100%)
Mr. Ko Yin Wai 1M o1 11/11 6/6 2/2 2/2
mERELE (100%) (0%) (100%) (100%) (100%) (100%)
Note: HRE
1. Mr. Lau Mo was appointed as an executive Director with effect from 12 May 1. FHRELEEZERNITES  R2017F5712
2017. S

2. Mr. Ye Jian resigned on 31 August 2017.

3. The Board held four regular Board meetings and seven other full Board meetings
during the year ended 31 December 2017.
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THE RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE BOARD

The Board is responsible for the control and leadership of management of the
Company’s business and is collectively responsible for the Company’s affair
under the Board’s direction and supervision. All the Directors should make
decision objectively in the interests of the Company.

The overall responsibilities of the Board include considering and making
decisions on the following matters:

(i) Setting the corporate goals of the Group and formulating the Group’s
strategy and monitoring the implementation;

(i) Diversification and extension of activities into new business area;
@iy  Approving the annual, half year and quarterly results;

(iv)  Dividend policy;

(v) Material acquisitions and disposal;

(v)  Reviewing and monitoring the Group’s internal control systems;
(vi)  Monitoring the performance of the Management; and

(vii)  Determining and reviewing the composition and diversity of the Board.
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BOARD COMPOSITION AND DIVERSITY
POLICY

The Company has adopted the board diversity policy since 30 August 2013.
The policy sets out the approach to achieve diversity in the Board that should
have a balance of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate
to the requirements of the Group’s business and compliance with policies.
The composition and diversity policies of the Board is reviewed annually and
regularly. The Board should ensure that its changes in composition will not
result in any undue interference. The Board members should possess
appropriate professionalism, experience and trustworthiness in performing
duties and functions. The Board would diversify its composition according to
the Company’s situations and need. While participating in nomination and
recommendation of director candidates during the year, each member of the
Board may consider a range of diversity perspectives, including but not
limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background, or professional
experience in achieving diversity for the benefit of the Company’s various
business development and management. The Board is to review the policy
concerning diversity of Board members, and to disclose the policy or a
summary of the policy in the corporate governance report, including any
quantitative targets and standards and its progress with policy
implementation.

During the year of 2017, the Board has reviewed the diversity of the Board
and considered the Board composition and diversity policy appropriate.
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MANAGEMENT

The daily management, administration and operation of the Company are
delegated to the Chief Executive Officer and senior management (the
“Management”). The delegated functions and assignments are periodically
reviewed. Approval has to be obtained from the Board prior to entering into
any significant transactions by the above mentioned officers.

The overall responsibilities of the Management include considering and
making decisions on the following matters:

i) Implementing the Group’s policy and strategies as set by the Board;

(i) Strategic planning of different business and functions;

(i)  Closely monitoring operational and financial results in accordance with
plans and budgets;

(iv)  Putting adequate operational, planning and financial control systems in
place; and

(vy  Managing the Group’s day to day business.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

In compliance with Rules 5.05(1) and (2) of the GEM Listing Rules, the
Company has appointed three independent non-executive Directors; and at
least one of whom has appropriate professional qualifications or accounting
or related financial management expertise. Each of the independent non-
executive Directors has made an annual confirmation in writing of his
independence pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules and the
Company considers that all the independent non-executive Directors were
independent.

All independent non-executive Directors are identified as such in all corporate
communications by the Company containing the names of the Directors.

Mr. Zhang and Mr. Lau, the executive Directors of the Company, are

brothers-in-law. Save as otherwise disclosed herein, there is no family or
other material relationship among members of the Board.
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CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

All Directors, including independent non-executive Directors, should keep
abreast of their collective responsibilities as Directors and of the businesses
and activities of the Group. The Group also provides briefings and other
training to develop and refresh the Directors’ knowledge and skills, and
updates all Directors on the latest developments regarding the GEM Listing
Rules and other applicable regulatory requirements to ensure compliance and
to enhance their awareness of good corporate governance practices.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Directors provided their
training record to the Company in respect of their participation in training
activities such as attending seminars relevant to their duties and
responsibilities as directors of a listed company, particulars of which are as
follows:

FEEXER

MEEE(BRBIIFATEST)BRRE THE
EREENERBRBRERAEENEL LD
[ o AN 5% [ 7T 42 £t 5 3 I At 35 B A B E
FHEENMBMEE LIRHEBEGEM L
MRAREMEREEREZETNMETE
RBEF BRETRREARSHRILEE
AERZERME-

HZE2017F12ABLFERN EFRAR
AR 2 EEYE S 2 B IR (H R
ERERLTARNEENBREMNEEHNHF
) BT

Reading materials relevant to
director’s duties and responsibilities
and/or attending seminar(s) relevant

to the skill of the director’s position
MECHESREREEZENR
FEEHESHUREEABEZHTSE

Executive Directors

BITES

Mr. Zhang Qing (Chairman)

RERE(EE)

Dr. Sung Tak Wing Leo (Chief Executive Officer)
RIGHEELT (FTEHAEH)

Mr. Lau Mo (Note 1)

23 5 A (M FET)

Non-Executive Directors
FHITES

Mr. Ye Jian (Note 2)
S A (M 5E2)

Mr. Liu Kam Lung
BEeiELE

Independent Non-Executive Directors
BYFHITES

Mr. Ko Yin Wai

SEREE

Mr. Chiu Yu Wang

HEOL R

Mr. Cheung Chi Man Dennis

9R A& XA A

Notes:

1. Mr. Lau Mo was appointed as an executive Director with effect from 12 May
2017.

2. Mr. Ye Jian resigned on 31 August 2017.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The Chairman of the Board of the Company is Mr. Zhang Qing. The Chief
Executive Officer of the Company is Dr. Sung Tak Wing Leo. The roles of the
Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer are separated and not performed
by the same individual to prevent power concentration on any one individual.
The Chairman is primarily responsible for managing the Board, whereas the
Chief Executive Officer is primarily responsible for overseeing the various
businesses of the Group. Their respective roles and responsibilities are
summarised as follows:

Responsibilities of the Chairman include:

(i) leading the Board and ensuring that the Board functions effectively and
smoothly;

(ii) chairing the Board and shareholder’s meetings;

(i)  approving the agenda for each Board meeting, taking into account,
where appropriate, any matters proposed by the other Directors and
the Company Secretary for inclusion in the agenda;

(iv)  ensuring that all Directors receive all relevant information prior to each
meeting and are properly briefed on issues arising at Board meetings;

(v)  ensuring all key and appropriate issues are discussed by the Board in a
timely and constructive manner;

(v)  encouraging all Directors, including the independent non-executive
Directors, to actively participate in all Board and Board Committees
meetings and promoting a culture of openness for the Directors to
share and voice their concerns on all matters during each meeting;

(vi)  ensuring good corporate governance practices and procedures are
established and followed; and
(vii) taking appropriate steps to provide effective communication with

shareholders and to ensure that shareholders’ view are communicated
to the Board as a whole.
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Responsibilities of the Chief Executive Officer include:

(i) implementing the Group’s policy and strategies as set by the Board;

(i) strategic planning of different business and functions;

(i) closely monitoring operational and financial results in accordance with
plans and budgets;

(iv)  assuming full accountability to the Board for all aspects of the Group’s
operations and performance;

(v)  maintaining ongoing dialogue with the Chairman and the other
Directors;

(vi)  developing and leading an effective executive team;

(vi)  putting adequate operational, planning and financial control systems in
place; and

(viii)  representing the Company and managing the Group’s day to day
business.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF
DIRECTORS

All the Directors (including the independent non-executive Directors) are
appointed for an initial term of one year and subject to retirement by rotation
and eligible for re-election in accordance with the Company’s articles of
association (the "Articles"). At each annual general meeting, not less than one
third of the Directors then in office shall retire and every Director is subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years.

All existing Directors are entitled to a fixed remuneration per month or fee per
annum respectively. The remuneration of each Director is subject to the
annual review of the Board with reference to his contribution in terms of time,
effort and his expertise.

Details of remuneration paid to each of the Directors during the year are
disclosed in note 12 to the consolidated financial statements.

All Directors are entitled to be reimbursed for reasonable expenses incurred

during the performance of their duties to the Company and are eligible for
share options under the Share Option Scheme.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established the board committees, namely, the audit
committee, the remuneration committee and the nomination committee, all
with specific terms of reference clearly defining the powers and responsibilities
of the respective board committees. All board committees are required by
their terms of reference to report to the Board in relation to their decisions,
findings or recommendations.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an audit committee (“Audit Committee”) with
written terms of reference that are in conformity with the requirements of the
CG Code which are available on the websites of the Hong Kong Exchanges
and Clearing Limited and the Company.

The Audit Committee is currently composed of the three independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Cheung Chi Man Dennis, Mr. Chiu Yu Wang
and Mr. Ko Yin Wai, and chaired by Mr. Cheung Chi Man Dennis, with all
members being independent non-executive Directors of the Company in full
compliance with Rule 5.28 of the GEM Listing Rules.

For the year ended 31 December 2017, six audit committee meetings were
held and the members’ attendance is shown on page 21 of this annual report.

The role and function of the Audit Committee include the following:

() Relationship with the Company’s auditors

(@  to be primarily responsible for making recommendations to the
Board on the appointment, reappointment and removal of the
external auditor and to approve the remuneration and terms of
engagement of the external auditor, and any questions of
resignation or dismissal;

(b)  to review and monitor the independence and objectivity of the
external auditors and the effectiveness of the audit process in
accordance with applicable standards. The Audit Committee
should discuss with the external auditors the nature and scope of
the audit and reporting obligations before the audit commences;
and
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to develop and implement policy on engaging the external
auditors to supply non-audit services. For this purpose, “external
auditors” includes any entity that is under common control,
ownership or management with the audit firm or any entity that a
reasonable and informed third party knowing all relevant
information would reasonably conclude to be part of the audit
firm nationally or internationally. The Audit Committee should
report to the Board, identifying and making recommendations on
any matters where action or improvement is needed.

(ii) Review of the Company’s financial information

(@)

to monitor the integrity of the financial statements, annual report
and accounts, half-year report and quarterly reports of the
Company, and to review significant financial reporting judgments
contained in them. In reviewing these reports and accounts
before submission to the Board, the Audit Committee should
focus particularly on:

(1) any changes in accounting policies and practices;

(2)  major judgmental areas;

(8)  significant adjustments resulting from audit;

(4)  the going concern assumptions and any qualifications;

(5)  compliance with accounting standards; and

(6) compliance with GEM Listing Rules and legal requirements
in relation to financial reporting.
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Regarding (ii)(a) above,

(1)  members of the Audit Committee should liaise with the
Board and senior management, and the Audit Committee
must meet, at least twice a year, with the external auditors;
and

(2)  the Audit Committee should consider any significant or
unusual items that are, or may need to be, reflected in the
reports and accounts and should give due consideration to
any matters that have been raised by the Company’s staff
responsible for the accounting, internal audit and financial
reporting functions, compliance officer or the external
auditors.

(iii) Oversight of the Company’s financial reporting
system, risk management and internal control
systems

(@)

to review the financial controls, and unless expressly addressed
by a separate Board risk management and internal control
committee, or by the Board itself, to review the risk management
and internal control systems of the Company;

to discuss the risk management and internal control systems
with the management to ensure that the management has
performed its duty to have effective systems. This discussion
should include the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and
experience, training programmes and budget of the Company’s
accounting, internal audit and financial reporting functions;

to consider major investigation findings on risk management and
internal control matters as delegated by the Board or on its own
initiative and the management’s response to these findings;

to ensure co-ordination between the internal and the external
auditors, and to ensure that the internal audit function is
adequately resourced and has appropriate standing within the
Company, and to review and monitor its effectiveness;

to review the financial and accounting policies and practices of
the Company and its subsidiaries;
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) to review the management letter of the external auditors, any
material queries raised by the external auditors to management
about accounting records, financial accounts or systems of
control and the management’s response;

(99 to ensure that the Board will provide a timely response to the
issues raised in the management letter of the external auditors;

(h)  to report to the Board on the matters in the code provisions in
the Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance
Report set out in Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing Rules;

(i) to consider other topics, as defined by the Board;

0] to review arrangements employees of the Company can use, in
confidence, to raise concerns about possible improprieties in
financial reporting, internal control or other matters. The Audit
Committee should ensure that proper arrangements are in place
for fair and independent investigation of these matters and for
appropriate follow-up action; and

(k) to act as the key representative body for overseeing the
Company'’s relations with the external auditors.

Major accomplishments in 2017 comprised the following:

(@  reviewed the quarterly, half-yearly and annually results of the Group as
well as discussed and reviewed financial and other reports for the year;

(b)  reviewed the external auditors’ significant findings and management’s
response to the recommendation raised;

(c)  reviewed the effectiveness of the risk management and internal control
systems and the adequacy of the accounting, internal audit and

financial reporting functions of the Group;

(d)  reviewed and approved the external auditors’ statutory audit scope for
2017 and the letter of representation to be given by the Board;

(e)  considered and approved the 2017 external audit fees and engagement
letters;
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) monitored the audit and non-audit services rendered to the Group by
its external auditor and ensures their engagement in other non-audit
services, if any, will not impair their audit independence or objectivity.

There was no disagreement between the Board and the Audit Committee on
the selection, appointment, resignation or dismissal of the external auditors
for the year ended 31 December 2017.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the audited financial statements of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2017 and recommended approval to
the Board.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established a remuneration committee (“Remuneration
Committee”) with written terms of reference in accordance with the
requirement of the CG Code. In accordance with provisions set out in the CG
Code are available on the websites of the Hong Kong Exchanges and
Clearing Limited and the Company.

The Remuneration Committee is currently composed of the three independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Cheung Chi Man Dennis, Mr. Chiu Yu
Wang and Mr. Ko Yin Wai, and chaired by Mr. Cheung Chi Man Dennis.

For the year ended 31 December 2017, two remuneration committee
meetings were held and the members’ attendance is shown on page 21 of
this annual report.

The role and function of the Remuneration Committee includes:

(i) to make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy and
structure for all Directors’ and senior management remuneration and
on the establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for
developing remuneration policy;

(ii) to review and approve the management’s remuneration proposals with
reference to the Board’s corporate goal and objectives;

(i) to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages
of individual executive Directors and senior management. This should
include benefits in kind, person rights and compensation payments,
including any compensation payable for loss or termination of their
office or appointment;
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(iv)  to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of non-
executive Directors;

(v)  to consider salaries paid by comparable companies, time commitment
and responsibilities and employment conditions elsewhere in the
Group;

(v)  to review and approve compensation payable to executive Directors
and senior management for any loss or termination of office or
appointment to ensure that it is consistent with contractual terms and
is otherwise fair and not excessive;

(vl to review and approve compensation arrangements relating to
dismissal or remove of directors for misconduct to ensure that they are
consistent with contractual terms and are otherwise reasonable and
appropriate; and

(viiii  to ensure that no Director or any of his associates is involved in
deciding his own remuneration.

Major accomplishments in 2017 comprised the following:

(i) reviewed matters relating to the existing remuneration packages and
emoluments of Directors and senior management;

(i) considered and reviewed the Group’s remuneration policy with
reference to time commitment and responsibilities of the Directors and
the senior management, desirability of performance-based

remuneration; and

(i) reviewed the remuneration package of the newly appointed Director.

ANNUAL REMUNERATION PAYABLE TO THE
MEMBERS OF SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The annual remuneration of the members of the senior management by band
for the year ended 31 December 2017 is as follows:

Remuneration Bands
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established a nomination committee (“Nomination
Committee”) with written terms of reference. The terms of reference of the
Nomination Committee are in conformity with the requirements of the CG
Code and are available on the websites of the Hong Kong Exchanges and
Clearing Limited and the Company.

The Nomination Committee is currently composed of the three independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Cheung Chi Man Dennis, Mr. Chiu Yu
Wang and Mr. Ko Yin Wai, and chaired by Mr. Cheung Chi Man Dennis.

For the year ended 31 December 2017, two Nomination Committee meetings
were held and the members’ attendance is shown on page 21 of this annual
report.

The role and function of the Nomination Committee includes:

(i) to review the structure, size and composition (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board at least annually and make
recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Company’s corporate strategy;

(i)  toidentify individuals suitably qualified to become Board members and
select or make recommendations to the Board on the selection of,
individuals nominated for directorships;

(iiy  to assess the independence of independent non-executive Directors;

(iv)  to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-
appointment of Directors and succession planning for Directors in
particular the Chairman and the chief executive of the Company; and

(v)  where the Board proposes a resolution to elect an individual as an
independent non-executive Director at the general meeting, it should
set out in the circular to shareholders and/or explanatory statement
accompanying the notice of the relevant general meeting why the
Nomination Committee believes he should be elected and the reasons
why the Nomination Committee considers him to be independent.

Major accomplishments in 2017 comprised the following:
(i) recommended to the Board with respect to the retirement and re-
election of Directors at the last annual general meeting held on 28 April

2017; and

(i) recommended to the Board on the appointment of a new Director.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance duties set
out in the code provision D.3.1 of the CG Code.

The Board held one meeting for the purpose of reviewing the compliance of
corporate governance policies for the year ended 31 December 2017.

The duties of the Board include:

(i) to develop and review the Group’s policies and practices on corporate
governance and make recommendations to the Board;

(i) to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

(i) toreview and monitor the Group’s policies and practices on compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements;

(iv)  to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance
manual applicable to employees and Directors; and

(v)  to review the Group’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in
the CG Report.

Major accomplishments in 2017 comprised the following:

(i) evaluated the Group’s policies and practices on corporate governance
and made appropriate amendments;

(i)  arranged the training and continuous professional development of
Directors and senior management; and

(iy  reviewed the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure
in the Corporate Governance Report.
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AUDITORS

Auditors’ Remuneration

The fees in respect of audit and non-audit services provided by the external
auditors to the Group for the year ended 31 December 2017 amounted to
approximately HK$633,000 and HK$200,000 respectively. The non-audit
service represented service fees for the acquisition of Quick Wit Group and
disposal of Maximus.

The accounts for the year 2017 were audited by JH CPA Alliance Limited
whose term of office will expire upon the forthcoming annual general meeting
of the Company. JH CPA Alliance Limited will retire at the forthcoming annual
general meeting upon expiration of its term of office. The Audit Committee
has recommended to the Board the appointment of CF Partners Limited as
the new auditor of the Company in place of JH CPA Alliance Limited and the
relevant resolution shall be put forth for shareholders’ consideration and
approval at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the preparation and true
and fair presentation of the Financial Statements in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the
Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong).

This responsibility includes designing, implementing and maintaining internal
control relevant to the preparation and the true and fair presentation of the
Financial Statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and
making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances. The
Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern as at 31 December 2017. Accordingly, the
Directors have prepared the Financial Statements for the year ended 31
December 2017 on a going concern basis.

The statement of the external auditors of the Company about their reporting

responsibilities on the financial statement is set out in the section of
“Independent Auditor’s Report” contained in this annual report.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Company improves its business and operational activities by identifying
the areas of significant business risks via a regular review and taking
appropriate measures to control and mitigate these risks. The management
of the Company reviews all significant control policies and procedures and
highlights all significant matters to the Board and Audit Committee.

The Board acknowledges its responsibility to establish, maintain and review
the effectiveness of the Group’s system of internal controls with a view to
ensuring that shareholders’ investments and the Group’s assets are
safeguarded. The Company has established internal audit department to
monitor compliance with policies and procedures and the effectiveness of
internal control structures of the Group. The internal audit department reports
directly to the Audit Committee and ensure the internal controls are in place
and functioning properly as intended. In the year under review, Infinity
Concept Ripple Limited as an external professional firm, has reviewed the
effectiveness of the internal control systems of the Group, covering material
controls, including financial, operational and compliance controls and risk
management functions. In addition, there is regular dialogue between the
Audit Committee and the Group’s external auditors so that both are aware of
the significant factors which may affect their respective scope of work.

Audit Committee reviewed the internal control system in respect of the year
ended 31 December 2017 by reference to the internal control review report
issued by Infinity Concept Ripple Limited and considered the system effective
and adequate. The Board conducted a review of the internal control system
of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year ended 31 December 2017,
including financial, operational and compliance control, and risk management
functions. The Board assessed the effectiveness of internal control by
considering the reviews performed by Infinity Concept Ripple Limited. The
Company complies with the code provisions relating to internal control
contained in the CG Code for the year ended 31 December 2017.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Ng King Hang resigned as the Joint Company Secretary and Ms. Leung
Cheuk Yu was appointed as the Joint Company Secretary on 30 September
2017.

As at 31 December 2017, the Joint Company Secretaries were Dr. Sung Tak
Wing Leo and Ms. Leung Cheuk Yu.

Details of backgrounds and qualification of the Joint Company Secretaries of
the Company are set out in the section of “Profiles of Directors and Senior
Management” of this annual report.

A written record had been received by the Company from Dr. Sung Tak Wing
Leo and Ms. Leung Cheuk Yu to confirm that each of them took not less than
15 hours of relevant professional training during the year ended 31 December
2017. The Company is of the view that Dr. Sung Tak Wing Leo and Ms.
Leung Cheuk Yu have complied with Rule 5.15 of the GEM Listing Rules.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS TO CONVENE
EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL MEETING

In order to safeguard shareholders’ interests and rights, separate resolutions
are proposed at shareholders’ meetings on each substantial issue, including
the election of individual directors, for shareholders’ consideration and voting.

The following procedures for shareholders of the Company to convene an
extraordinary general meeting are subject to the Articles, and the applicable
legislation and regulation, in particular the GEM Listing Rules:

(i) any one or more shareholders of the Company holding at the date of
deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital
of the Company (the “Eligible Shareholder(s)”) carrying the right of
voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all times have the
right, by written requisition to the Board or the company secretary of
the Company (the “Company Secretary”), to require an extraordinary
general meeting (the “EGM”) to be called by the Board for the
transaction of any business specified in such requisition pursuant to
Article 58 of the Articles; and

(ii) if within 21 days of the deposit of the requisition, the Board fails to
proceed to convene such EGM, the Eligible Shareholder(s) himself/
herself/themselves may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the Eligible Shareholder(s) concerned as a result
of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the Eligible
Shareholder(s) by the Company.
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PROCEDURES FOR SENDING ENQUIRIES TO
THE BOARD

Apart from sending email to info@megalogic.com.hk, shareholders may send
their enquiries and concerns to the Board by addressing them to the
headquarters and principal place of business of the Company in Hong Kong
at Suite 2101, 21/F, Chinachem Century Tower, 178 Gloucester Road, Wan
Chai, Hong Kong, by post or by fax to (852) 25639 0323, for the attention of
the Company Secretary.

PROCEDURES FOR SHAREHOLDERS TO PUT
FORWARD PROPOSALS AT SHAREHOLDERS’
MEETINGS

There are no provisions allowing shareholders to move new resolutions at the
general meetings under the Companies Law, Chapter 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as
consolidated and revised) of Cayman Islands. However, pursuant to the
Articles, shareholders who wish to move a resolution may by means of
requisition convene an EGM following the procedures set out above.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company has established a range of communication channels between
itself and its shareholders, investors and other stakeholders. These include
the annual general meeting, the annual, interim and quarterly reports, notices,
announcements and circulars and the Company’s website at www.
megalogic.com.hk.

CONSTITUTION DOCUMENTS

During the year, there was no change in the Company’s constitutional
documents.
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PROFILES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EEREREBAEBNEE

DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. Zhang Qing (“Mr. Zhang”), aged 48, is an executive Director and
Chairman of the Board of the Company with effect from 1 July 2014 and was
appointed as the compliance officer of the Company with effect from 30 April
2015. He was appointed as an investor relations officer of the Company since
18 March 2014. Mr. Zhang is also a director of the certain subsidiaries of the
Company. Mr. Zhang obtained a bachelor's degree in economics from
Guangzhou Institute of Foreign Trade* (B /M¥4MNE 5 E2%) (currently known
as Guangdong University of Foreign Studies (BRIMNEINEKE)) in the
People’s Republic of China in July 1991 and further obtained a master’s
degree in business administration from San Diego State University in the
United States in December 1998. From July 1991 to July 1996, he worked as
the foreign sales staff of China National Light Industrial Products Import &
Export Corporation*. From February 2000 to November 2003, Mr. Zhang
worked as the manager of investment department of Sichuan Harmony
Enterprises (Group) Limited*. From July 2006 to February 2013, he worked as
the investment manager of Canada Shenghe Investment Inc. Besides, Mr.
Zhang acted as the director of Sichuan Harmony Enterprises (Group) Limited*
during the period from 8 March 2011 to 12 September 2013. Mr. Zhang is a
brother-in-law of Mr. Lau Mo, an executive Director and a substantial
shareholder of the Company (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules)

The English translation of names or any descriptions in Chinese which are
marked with “*” is for identification purpose only.

Dr. Sung Tak Wing Leo (“Dr. Sung”), aged 57, is currently an executive
Director, chief executive officer, joint company secretary and authorised
representative of the Company. Dr. Sung was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director of the Company on 23 December 2011, re-designated
as an executive Director of the Company on 7 March 2014, was appointed as
a joint company secretary of the Company with effect from 24 December
2014 and was promoted from chief financial officer to the chief executive
officer of the Company with effect from 30 April 2015. Dr. Sung is also a
director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. Dr. Sung is responsible for
the accounting and finance management, and business development as well
as company secretarial matters of the Group. Dr. Sung obtained a bachelor’s
degree of Commerce in Management and Marketing from Curtin University of
Technology in Australia in 2002 and also obtained a Master Degree of
Accountancy from Lingnan University in 2012. Dr. Sung has been awarded
the distinction of an honorary doctor in Business Administration from
American Purlinton University on 12 January 2013. Dr. Sung was admitted as
an associate member of Association of International Accountants, UK in 2016
and he was admitted as a fellow of Institute of Public Accountants, Australia,
a fellow of Institute of Financial Accountants, UK and a certified Management
Accountant, Australia in 2017. From September 2004 to February 2014, Dr.
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Sung served as the managing director and a responsible officer of King’s HT
Securities Limited, a licensed corporation under the SFO, and accumulated
working in the securities industry for about 12 years. Before entering into
securities industry, Dr. Sung has worked for several solicitors’ firms in Hong
Kong for about 17 years.

Mr. Lau Mo (“Mr. Lau”), aged 50, was appointed as an executive Director
of the Company on 12 May 2017. Mr. Lau is an experienced investor in
securities and financial products. Mr. Lau has accumulated extensive
experience and connections in international trade, corporate operation,
management, investment and financial business for more than 20 years. Mr.
Lau graduated from West China University of Medical Sciences * (79! Z£ 75 g8
BIKE) (now known as West China Centre of Medical Sciences, Sichuan
University) with a bachelor degree in Pharmacy in 1990. Mr. Lau subsequently
obtained a master degree in Economics from the Chinese Academy of Social
Sciences in 1998. Mr. Lau is the sole owner of Champsword Limited, a
company which is beneficially interested in 415,000,000 ordinary shares of
the Company, representing approximately 29.69% of the issued share capital
of the Company as at 31 December 2017.

Mr. Lau is a brother-in-law of Mr. Zhang Qing, an executive Director of the
Company.

The English translation of names or any descriptions in Chinese which are
marked with “*” is for identification purpose only.

Non-Executive Director

Mr. Liu Kam Lung (“Mr. Liu”), aged 54, previously an executive Director of
the Company, was re-designated as a non-executive Director of the
Company on 16 October 2014. Mr. Liu obtained a Diploma of Business
Administration from Hong Kong Shue Yan College (now known as Hong
Kong Shue Yan University) in 1990. Mr. Liu was admitted as an associate of
The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators of the United
Kingdom, an associate of The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries,
an associate of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, a fellow
of The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, a full member of the
Society of Registered Financial Planners and an associate of the Taxation
Institute of Hong Kong in 1993, 1994, 1995, 1999, 2009 and 2010
respectively. Mr. Liu has over 26 years of experience in the financial industry.
Mr. Liu is currently the chief executive officer of China Rise Finance Group
Company Limited, a subsidiary of Symphony Holdings Limited (stock code:
1223.HK). Mr. Liu is also the independent non-executive director of Pak Tak
International Limited (stock code: 2668.HK). Mr. Liu was the independent
non-executive director of Enterprise Development Holdings Limited (stock
code: 1808.HK) for the period from January 2015 to April 2017. Mr. Liu was
a non-executive director of Kith Holdings Limited (stock code: 1201.HK) for
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the period from October 2010 to June 2013. In addition, from March 2011 to
October 2014, Mr. Liu was an executive Director, finance director, company
secretary and authorised representative of the Company.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Cheung Chi Man Dennis (“Mr. Cheung”), aged 50, was appointed as
an independent non-executive Director of the Company on 30 April 2015. Mr.
Cheung is also the independent non-executive director of the Prosper
Construction Holdings Limited (stock code: 6816.HK), the chairman of the
audit committee, a member of the remuneration committee, nomination
committee and risk management committee. He was a former independent
non-executive director (from November 2005 to October 2008), executive
director (from October 2008 to December 2013), chief financial officer (from
October 2008 to December 2013) and company secretary (from October
2008 to September 2014) of Peace Map Holding Limited (formerly known as
Ming Hing Waterworks Holdings Limited) (stock code: 0402.HK), a company
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. He was also an independent
non-executive director of Powerwell Pacific Holdings Limited (stock code:
8265.HK) from September 2010 to September 2014, a company listed on
the GEM. Prior to taking up the above-mentioned post of the Company, he
was the chief finance officer of the China division of Midland Holdings Limited
(stock code: 1200.HK) from November 2004 to November 2008, a company
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Cheung was a director
of XACT INTEGRATED MARKETING LIMITED, a private company
incorporated in Hong Kong, which was dissolved by deregistration pursuant
to section 291AA of the then prevailing Companies Ordinance (Chapter 32 of
the Laws of Hong Kong) on 7 September 2007. To the best of the knowledge
and belief of Mr. Cheung, XACT INTEGRATED MARKETING LIMITED was
principally engaged in commercial advertising and had ceased business and
was solvent at the time of it being dissolved by deregistration. Mr. Cheung
has over 24 years of experience in accounting and financial management. He
obtained a master’'s degree in commerce from the University of New South
Wales, Australia in April 1993 and a bachelor’s degree in mechanical
engineering from the University of London, United Kingdom in August 1990.
Mr. Cheung is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and member of The Taxation Institute of Hong Kong.

Mr. Chiu Yu Wang (“Mr. Chiu”), aged 58, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director of the Company on 17 February 2014.
He obtained a certificate in Business Studies (Banking) from Lee Wai Lee
Technical Institute of the Vocational Training Council Hong Kong in August
1983. He has over 20 years of marketing experience in banking industry.
Since May 2010, Mr. Chiu has become a shareholder and a director of
Sparkle Well Environmental Lighting Company Limited, which is principally
engaged in trading of environmental lighting products.
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Mr. Ko Yin Wai (“Mr. Ko”), aged 55, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director of the Company on 23 December 2011. He currently
is an enterprise consultant for Dongguan Changping Qiaohui Lipeng Plastic &
Hardware Manufacturing Company (R2% Fi5EBHEZ B RS 2 7E) and
a marketing strategic consultant for Shenzhen Lanshuo Communication
Equipment Company Limited (FIJITHEEBREER 2 F). Mr. Ko has
been working in the electronic consumer products industry for about 19
years.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Li Kwei Chung (“Mr. Li”), aged 48, is one of the founders of the Group.
He was an executive Director of the Company during the period from 15 June
2011 to 30 April 2015. He was the chief executive officer and compliance
officer of the Company until 30 April 2015. Mr. Li has been a director of a
subsidiary of the Company, MiniLogic Device Corporation Limited, since
September 2004 and is also a director of a Company’s subsidiary. He is
responsible for daily operations, research and development activities,
procurement and quality control of the Group. Mr. Li obtained a bachelor’s
degree of Engineering and master’s degree of Science in Engineering from
the University of Hong Kong in 1992 and 1998 respectively. He has over 20
years of experience in the semiconductor field. Mr. Li was appointed as a
member of the Information and Communication Technology R&D Centre
Technology Review Panel of ASTRI for the years of 2011 to 2014. His
responsibilities includes advising ASTRI on improving the quality of ASTRI's
R&D projects in terms of technical merit as well as the commercialisation
prospects and technology transfer potential of the projects and assisting in
evaluating the effectiveness of funded projects in terms of assisting Hong
Kong and Pearl River Delta based companies’ to upgrade their technological
competitiveness.

Mr. Lam Nim Yin (“Mr. Lam”), aged 58, joined one subsidiary of the
Company, MiniLogic Device Corporation Limited, in March 2007 and is
currently the marketing manager. From June 2013 to January 2016, he was a
director of MiniLogic Device Corporation Limited. He is responsible for sales
and marketing activities, logistic and warehouse control. Mr. Lam has been
working in semiconductor industry for about 29 years. During the period from
1993 to 2009, he served as a director of a company engaging in trading of
electronics such as IC.
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Mr. Liu Loi Ying (“Mr. Liu”), aged 40, joined one subsidiary of the
Company, MiniLogic Device Corporation Limited, in July 2003 and is currently
the engineering director and team leader in the R&D Department. He is
responsible for leading a team of engineers in R&D operations, and
supporting sales and marketing activities. Mr. Liu was an executive Director of
the Company during the period from 15 June 2011 to 30 April 2013. He
obtained a bachelor’'s degree of Engineering in Computer Science and
Computer Engineering and a master’s degree of Science in IC Design
Engineering from The Hong Kong University of Science and Technology in
2001 and 2005 respectively. He has been working in the semiconductor field
for about 15 years.

Ms. Leung Cheuk Yu (“Ms. Leung”), aged 32, is an associate of Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and holds a bachelor’s degree
of Business Administration in Accounting from The Open University of Hong
Kong. Ms. Leung has over 9 years of experience in the field of auditing,
accounting, taxation and company secretarial services. Ms. Leung joined the
Company on 20 March 2017 as a company secretary officer and was
responsible for the company secretarial matter of the Group. She has served
as joint company secretary and authorised representative of the Company
since 30 September 2017.

Mr. Yuen Wai Yiu Gary, aged 33, joined one subsidiary of the Company,
Easy Loan Finance Limited (“Easy Loan”), on 24 July 2015 and was appointed
as a director of Easy Loan on 26 February 2016 and is responsible for money
lending business and daily operations of Easy Loan. He obtained a bachelor’s
degree in Computing and Information Systems from Hong Kong Baptist
University in 2008 and a Master Degree of Accountancy from Lingnan
University in 2012. He has been working in the money lending business for
about 9 years.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Dr. Sung Tak Wing Leo and Ms. Leung Cheuk Yu are the Joint Company
Secretaries of the Company. For details of their profile, please refer to the
paragraphs headed “Executive Directors” and “Senior Management” under
this section.

COMPLIANCE OFFICER

Mr. Zhang Qing is the compliance officer of the Company. For details of his
profile, please refer to the paragraph headed “Executive Directors” under this
section.
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The directors (“Directors”) of Megalogic Technology Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) submit herewith their annual report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December
2017.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES, GEOGRAPHICAL
ANALYSIS OF OPERATION AND BUSINESS
REVIEW

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The principal
activities and other particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries are set out in
note 1 to the consolidated financial statements. The Group acquired Quick
Wit Group, which is principally engaged in provision of investment and
planning consulting service, real estate agent, property management services
and car parking management services in the PRC during the year. The Group
completed the disposal of 55% of the issued share capital in Maximus and
the deemed disposal as a result of the allotment of subscription shares which
represented 40% of the issued share capital of Minilogic during the year.
Except the above, there were no other significant changes in the nature of the
Group’s principal activities during the year.

The analysis of geographical locations of the Company and its subsidiaries for
the year are set out in note 1 to the consolidated financial statements.

The business review of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year can be
found in the section of “Management Discussion and Analysis” set out on

pages 8 to 18 of this annual report. This discussion forms parts of this
Directors’ Report.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATION

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2017 and the state
of the Company’s and the Group’s affairs as at that date are set out in the
consolidated financial statements on pages 63 to 68 of this annual report.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2017.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Details of the segment information of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2017 are set out in note 6 to the consolidated financial statements.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group and
the Company during the year are set out in note 17 to the consolidated
financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in reserves of the Group and the Company during
the year are set out in the “Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity” and
note 32(b)(ii) to the consolidated financial statements respectively.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during the year are
set out in note 32(a) to the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

The Company’s reserve available for distribution as at 31 December 2017
was approximately HK$129,231,000.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles, or the laws
of the Cayman Islands, which would oblige the Company to offer new shares
on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the
last 5 financial years is set out on page 156 of this annual report.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

No equity-linked agreements were entered into by the Company during 2017
or existed as at 31 December 2017.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
LISTED SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed
any of the Company’s listed securities during the year ended 31 December
2017.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Details of the Share Option Scheme are set out in note 33 to the consolidated
financial statements.

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Zhang Qing (Chairman)
Dr. Sung Tak Wing Leo (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Lau Mo (appointed with effect from 12 May 2017 as executive Director)

Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Ye Jian (resigned on 371 August 2017)
Mr. Liu Kam Lung

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Cheung Chi Man Dennis
Mr. Chiu Yu Wang
Mr. Ko Yin Wai

ROTATION OF DIRECTORS IN THE
FORTHCOMING ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

In accordance with the Article 83(3) of the Company’s Articles of Association,
Mr. Lau Mo, who was appointed as an executive Director on 12 May 2017,
shall hold office until the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company
and shall then be eligible for re-election. Mr. Lau has agreed to offer himself
for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.
Pursuant to the Article 84 of the Articles, Dr. Sung Tak Wing Leo, Mr. Chiu Yu
Wang and Mr. Ko Yin Wai shall retire from office as Directors by rotation at
the forthcoming annual general meeting and, being eligible, have agreed to
offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICES CONTRACTS

Each of the independent non-executive Directors and non-executive Director
is appointed for an initial term of one year commencing from their respective
dates of appointment and shall continue thereafter from year to year until
terminated by one month’s notice in writing served by either party on the
other party.

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting has a service contract which is not determinable by the Group within
one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS AND
CONTRACTS THAT ARE SIGNIFICANT IN
RELATION TO THE COMPANY’S BUSINESS

No other transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance in relation to
the Group’s business to which the Company, its controlling shareholder or
any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party and in which a
Director of the Company and the Director’s connected party had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at
any time during the year ended 31 December 2017.

PROFILES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Profiles of the Directors and senior management of the Group are set out on
pages 40 to 44 of this annual report.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up by the
Remuneration Committee which takes into account their merit, qualifications
and competence.

The emoluments of the Directors are decided by the Remuneration
Committee, having regard to the Company’s operating results, individual

performance and comparable market statistics.

Furthermore, the Company has adopted the share option scheme to reward
participants for their contribution to the Group.
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REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE
INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and five individuals with highest
emoluments are set out in note 12 to the consolidated financial statements.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEME

Details of the retirement benefit scheme of the Group are set out in note 4(n)())
to the consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY
ASSOCIATED CORPORATION

As at 31 December 2017, the interests and short position of the Directors
and chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company and any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”)), which
were required (a) to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and
short positions which they are taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO), or (b) to be and were entered in the register required
to be kept by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or (c) as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Rules 5.46 to 5.68 of the GEM Listing Rules, were as follows:
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Long and Short Position

Ordinary shares and underlying share of the Company

#R

Z'K’

Company’s issued

2.
~

KRB

ANERRROREERS
Approximate
percentage of total
issued shares capital

Number of the

ordinary shares held of the Company
Name of Directors Capacity/Nature of interests (Note 1) (Note 2)
FEADRE BT HARDEE BITRAE
EERROHE RENBNBEDL
EEnR B REHtE (FfaE1) (FfaE2)
Executive Directors
HITES
Mr. Zhang Qing Personal interest 4,000,000(L) 0.29%
REE S (PN 4,000,000(%7F)
Dr. Sung Tak Wing Leo Personal interest 10,000,000(L) 0.72%
RigHRE L (PN £ 10,000,000(%7)
Mr. Lau Mo Interest of a controlled corporation (Note 3) 415,000,000(L) 29.69%
278,000,000(S) 19.89%
2IE k& EEHEEER (5E3) 415,000,000(#F)
278,000,0000%)
Notes: Bt 3%
1. The letter “L” denotes long positions in the shares and underlying shares of the 1. [HF 13N A D FIRRGD RBERHD Z25E - %]
Company and the letter “S” denotes short positions in the shares and underlying ERAQNRKGD MBI Z KR -
shares of the Company.
2. The percentages are calculated on the basis of 1,397,782,400 ordinary shares of 2. BALLTIRER2017F12A31B AR AR E %
the Company in issues as at 31 December 2017. 17.21,397,782,400 |k L BARFrat &
3. Mr. Lau Mo is the beneficial owner of all of the issued share capital of 3. 2 ® % & B Champsword Limited & #f & %

Champsword Limited, and is therefore deemed to be interested in the
415,000,000 ordinary shares of the Company in which Champsword Limited is
beneficially interested. As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated
11 September 2017, Champsword Limited has pledged the 278,000,000
ordinary shares of the Company in favour of U Credit (HK) Limited as security for
a term loan facility provided to Champsword Limited. U Credit (HK) Limited thus
has security interest over these shares.
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2017, so far as is known to the
Directors or Chief Executive Officer of the Company, none of the Directors
and chief executive of the Company had any interests or short positions in
any shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which (a)
were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and
short positions which they were taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO), or (b) were required, pursuant to section 352 of the
SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein, or (c) were required,
pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.68 of the GEM Listing Rules to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries or
fellow subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of,
the Company or any other body corporate.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN THE SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2017, so far as is known to the Directors or Chief
Executive Officer of the Company, the following persons or corporations (other
than a director or chief executive of the Company) had interests or short
positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in
the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to 336 of the SFO:
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Long and Short Positions

Ordinary shares of the Company

HRRKR

ZANVN

Total number of the
Company’s issued
ordinary shares held

X

ANEERRD

Approximate
percentage of total
issued share capital

Name of shareholders Capacity/Nature of interests (Note 1) of the Company
S NN N E HERATE BT
BERERGEH iR A< 48 B
BERESE LB B RENtE (Mt=E1) BROBEDL
Champsword Limited Beneficial owner (Note 2) 415,000,000(L) 29.69%
278,000,000(S) 19.89%
EmlEAa A (ME2) 415,000,000( #F)
278,000,000(%)
Mr. Lau Mo Interest of a controlled corporation (Note 2) 415,000,000(L) 29.69%
278,000,000(S) 19.89%
2155 & EEHEEER (M52) 415,000,000(#F)
278,000,000(%)
U Credit (HK) Limited Beneficial owner of security interest 278,000,000(L) 19.89%
(Notes 2 and 3)
BEE(EB)ARAF EHER 2 E=RA A (H5E2%3) 278,000,000(%F)
China Strategic Financial Interest of a controlled corporation (Note 3) 278,000,000(L) 19.89%
Holdings Limited
EEHDEEER (H5E3) 278,000,000 4F)
China Strategic Asset Interest of a controlled corporation (Note 3) 278,000,000(L) 19.89%
Holdings Limited
HEEEITERERDF AR ER (FRE3) 278,000,000(#F)
China Strategic Interest of a controlled corporation (Note 3) 278,000,000(L) 19.89%
Holdings Limited
PEREBEERAA EEHDEEER (5E3) 278,000,000(4F)
Notes: B sE -
1. The letter “L” denotes long positions in the shares and underlying shares of the 1. [ IR ARATIRD RBEROD Z2HE - %]
Company and the letter “S” denotes short positions in the shares and underlying BERAXATRMD REBEIRMDZ AR -
shares of the Company.
2. Mr. Lau Mo is the beneficial owner of all of the issued share capital of 2. 2 ® & & & Champsword Limited & #f E %

Champsword Limited, and is therefore deemed to be interested in the
415,000,000 ordinary shares of the Company in which Champsword Limited is
beneficially interested. As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated
11 September 2017, Champsword Limited has pledged the 278,000,000
ordinary shares of the Company in favour of U Credit (HK) Limited as security for
a term loan facility provided to Champsword Limited. U Credit (HK) Limited thus

has security interest over these shares.
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3. U Credit (HK) Limited is wholly-owned by China Strategic Financial Holdings
Limited. China Strategic Financial Holdings Limited is wholly-owned by China
Strategic Asset Holdings Limited which in turn is wholly-owned by China
Strategic Holdings Limited. Thus China Strategic Financial Holdings Limited,
China Strategic Asset Holdings Limited and China Strategic Holdings Limited are
deemed to be interested in the 278,000,000 ordinary shares of the Company in
which U Credit (HK) Limited has security interest.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2017, so far as is known to the
Directors and Chief Executive Officer of the Company, and based on the
public records filed on the website of Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing
Limited and records kept by the Company, no other persons or corporations
(other than Directors and Chief Executive Officer of the Company) had
interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the Company
as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under section
336 of the SFO.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The information in respect of the Group’s sales and purchases attributable to
the major customers and suppliers respectively during the year are as follows:

3. Z{Z 5 (F74) A R A & /A China Strategic Financial

Holdings Limited 2 & # £ ° China Strategic Financial
Holdings Limited R K B EXREBR R A2 &
H’E MAREEERARAAAHPRE
ER AT ZE®EHA - ALt China Strategic
Financial Holdings Limited + & 5 & E{E ik & R
ARARPREEERAABRAEEEEE
(F#)BR AR A KM &= #9278,000,000
B AR A LR R e

B EXFT#H TSN R2017F 12 A31H @ BLA
REIEBERITHAHMA UREREFEER
SREEMBRABBH EHEREH QKK
RARRREFENZSE  BIEEMATSER
(RRARESHITHRBERIN BIBEARAIE
BEAS LI EIEHEIB6IEMFEE 2 ZE LM
B AR RIAR 0 S B A AR 10 R B R = Sk

A

=

TREFRMHER

AEENETEEFPREEED BEEFAHE
ERRBOHERMT

Sales Purchases

SHE e

The largest customer S YN 7% N/AT i
Five largest customers in aggregate AAREFAR 27% N/A“TiE
The largest supplier RAMER N/AT 3 32%
Five largest suppliers in aggregate hRHEREEET N/AT 3 3 81%

Save as disclosed in this annual report and to the best knowledge of the
Directors, none of the Directors, their close associates or any shareholders
(which to the knowledge of the Directors own more than 5% of the
Company’s share capital) has any interest in the Group’s five largest
customers or suppliers during the year ended 31 December 2017.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or
any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or
existed during the year.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Significant related party transactions entered into by the Group during the
year ended 31 December 2017 are disclosed in note 40 to the consolidated
financial statements, which do not fall under the definition of “connected
transaction” or “continuing connected transaction” in Chapter 20 of the GEM
Listing Rules.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicity available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this annual report, the
Company has maintained a sufficient public float as required under the GEM
Listing Rules.

INTEREST IN A COMPETING BUSINESS

During the year ended 31 December 2017, none of the Directors, the
controlling shareholders of the Company and their respective close associates
(as defined in the GEM Listing Rules) had any interest in any business which
competes or is likely to compete, directly or indirectly, with the business of
the Group or any other conflicts of interest with the Group.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company has taken out and maintained directors’ liability insurance
which provides appropriate cover for the Directors and directors of the
subsidiaries of the Group.

At no time during the year 2017 and up to the date of this Directors’ Report,
there was or is, any permitted indemnity provision being in force for the
benefit of any of the Directors and directors of the subsidiaries of the Group.

IMPORTANT EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD

Details of important events affecting the Company that have occurred after
the reporting period are set out in note 43 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

A corporate governance report is set out on pages 19 to 39 of this annual
report. Mr. Zhang Qing whose biographical details are set out on page 40 of
this report, is the Compliance Officer of the Company and Dr. Sung Tak Wing
Leo and Ms. Leung Cheuk Yu whose biographical details are set out on page
40 and 44 of this annual report respectively, are the Joint Company
Secretaries of the Company.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Environmental, Social and Governance Report of the Company prepared
in accordance with Appendix 20 to the GEM Listing Rules will be published
within three months after the publication of this annual report.

AUDITOR

The financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2017 have been
audited by JH CPA Alliance Limited, Certified Public Accountants.

There has been no change in auditor of the Company in the preceding three
years ended 31 December 2017.

JH CPA Alliance Limited will retire at the forthcoming annual general meeting
upon expiration of its term of office. The Board proposed to appoint, subject
to the approval of the shareholders of the Company at the forthcoming annual
general meeting, CF Partners Limited as the new auditor of the Company to
hold office until the conclusion of the next forthcoming annual general
meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Mr. Zhang Qing
Chairman

Hong Kong, 23 March 2018
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B B AR S

JH CPA Alliance Limited
HEGE: iy

Certified Public Accountants

FRARRDDRAEEEIR

¥ RETSARTETOIE

Unit 701, 7/F, Tower A, New East Ocean Centre
9 Science Museum Road

Tsim Sha Tsui East, Kowloon, Hong Kong

E# Email: info@jhcpa.com.hk

TO THE MEMBERS OF
MEGALOGIC TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Megalogic
Technology Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 63 to 155, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2017, and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement
of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2017,
and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the “HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audlit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfiled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of
the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit
of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matters

Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
BYZHEMERE (&)

FREFZEER

BREXEEASE m§¥%%$*%V$
HHEGAVERERTPREENETHE - &

%%%%%Aﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ$ﬁﬁﬁm
FERER MTERHEEBEBHRER -

HEEZSR

Accounting for business combination
Refer to note 34(c) to the consolidated financial statements

In January 2017, the Group completed the acquisition of Quick Wit
Ventures Limited and its subsidiaries (the “Quick Wit Group”). Due to the
complexity of and significant judgments and assumptions involved in the
purchase price allocation for the acquisition, we have identified it as a key
audit matter.

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

We have clarified with the management for any existence of intangible
assets and purchase price allocation upon the acquisition; and

We audited the acquired assets and assumed liabilities at the acquisition
date and challenged the management’s assumptions and justifications for
recognising the goodwill.

Impairment assessment of goodwill
Refer to note 18 to the consolidated financial statements

In respect of the goodwill amounting to HK$137,448,000 arose from
acquisition of Quick Wit Group, the management concluded that there was
no impairment of it. For the impairment assessment, it involved the
significant management assumptions and judgments with respect to
underlying cash flows, discount rates and future growth rates for calculation
of value in use of the cash-generating unit.

Given that significant level of the goodwill, we have identified it as a key
audit matter.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
B 3% AT 3R ()

Key audit matters

HREELSR

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Our audit procedures in relation to the impairment assessment of goodwill
included:

° Evaluation of the independent valuer’'s competence, capabilities and
objectivity;

° Assessing the cash flow projections and challenging the assumptions
in comparison with recent performance; and

° Challenging the assumptions and methodologies used by the valuer.

Impairment assessment of loans receivables
Refer to note 23 to the consolidated financial statements

As at 31 December 2017,
approximately HK$135,422,000.

the Group had loans receivables of

In exercising impairment assessment of the loans receivables, the
management applied own judgment and used subjective assumptions. It
includes assessing customers with default risk, identifying indication of
impairment based on creditworthiness of customers and the level of
collaterals in proportion to the outstanding receivables balances. Estimates
are used in assessing the recoverable amount of the collateral. Since the
loans receivables represented significant amounts of the total assets, we
have identified it as a key audit matter.

How our audit addressed the key audit matter
We assessed controls over the approval, recording and monitoring of loans
receivables, and evaluated the methodologies, inputs and assumptions

used by the Group in impairment assessment.

We assessed factors for determining whether any indication of impairment,
which include:

° Checking subsequent settlement of loans receivables; and

° Checking historical repayment record to ascertain whether any
likelihood of default.

We sent audit confirmation letters to majority of borrowers to ascertain the
existence and accuracy of the outstanding loans receivables.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the annual report,
other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditors’ report
thereon (“Other Information”).

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
Other Information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the Other Information and, in doing so, consider
whether the Other Information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this Other Information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS AND
THE AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but
to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
B 3% AT 3R ()

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report
that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a body, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the

reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made
by the directors.

60

MBS S P H®RE

EENER THERBEAMBERIEST
FEANMFRERMEBNERAEANER
RABMSAEERET THABREEERDN
B HRE - BEER BTUERBRIR
BRI ZIARERNEEMBEN - FETE
AARENARFEMEMATE EFgAE
EREE - ABRELSKTHRE BT
REREEEMENETHNEABEERE
A BHER PR AL o 5 AR BR 7T DA fy BRRF 2 88 RR 5
- R IR G I TR B 85 AR PR Bl 3K [E 48
ERAEZESAMBBRREMBEMELD
ROERE > BIEBR SRR AT BARIEE X ©

ERBEEBRAENETEANBES &
SERTREHE RETRERREE -5

o EH R AR REFRERME T
EHMBBRFEERNERRANAR
Rt RATEFEFABREZEAR
UEBRBRARLEENE]NBRE (FH
BEEERNER - AR REFA LS K& $
wRORE BERER ERBRM - FOEE
R ARSI 2 £ Btk K B8 3% 3 B #KGF
i 28 B A B K 8 AR PR A L B B R 8 AR
MEFNERERFANRRAES -

fREET AN ANIIES - ARG E
WEFEF BENYIFE BE5E

¥
NEEHNE R MEEXRER -

s HEEFEMHRASHERENGEMRIE
HEst At RERREENN SN -

Megalogic Technology Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017



° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
B 3% AT 3R ()

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s
report is Chan Chi Kwong, Dickson.

JH CPA Alliance Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 23 March 2018

CHAN Chi Kwong, Dickson
Practicing Certificate Number: P04383
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

= AN
ma

S hEMEERER
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
HE0I7TE12A31BILEE

2017 2016
20174 20164F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’'000
B 5 FExT A&
Continuing Operations BEREEK
Revenue &= 7 75,925 50,920
Cost of sales and services 558 M AR A AN (28,521) (17,400)
Gross profit EF 47,404 33,514
Other income H A YA 8 459 7
Other gains and losses Hub s RS 9 569 126
Staff costs 8 TR (18,354) (12,412)
Depreciation and amortisation T E K5 (1,541) (1,537)
Operating lease rental — land and buildings &2HEH&E — LW REF (2,138) (1,832)
Other operating expenses Hih s &5 2 (9,291) (8,512)
Finance cost s ER 10 (857) (354)
Profit before tax from continuing BRBEREFELE
operations B2 EF 16,251 9,000
Income tax expense FSHiA X 13 (6,386) 2,173)
Profit for the year from continuing REFERLEEK
operations FREF 9,865 6,827
Discontinued Operation ERIEEEEK
Profit for the year from discontinued RECKRIEEEER >
operation FRER 14 462 3,765
Profit for the year FRRF 10,327 10,592
Other comprehensive income/(expense), H#h2E W% (B X)
net of income tax (HIBRFT B %)
ltems that may be subsequently HiEngEENEBm2EE -
reclassified to profit or loss:
Exchange differences arising on MEGINEBEEZ
translation of foreign operations MEH =78 586 (20)
Total comprehensive income FRE2EKELE
for the year 10,913 10,572
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income (Continued)
FmeEakEMEEKE R ()
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

HE2017F12831BIEFE

Megalogic Technology Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017

2017 2016
2017 5% 20164
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 FH T FAT
Profit/(loss) for the year attributable to ~ F R #EF|,(Ei8)
Owners of the Company: AKATEBAERL:
from continuing operations RABERLEED 10,298 6,827
from discontinued operation REERIEEEETR (571) 2,071
9,727 8,898
Non-controlling interests: FEER R A
from continuing operations REFELEED (433) -
from discontinued operation REDKRIEEEETR 1,033 1,694
600 1,694
10,327 10,592
Total comprehensive income EBEFEFREZEKEERE:
for the year attributable to:
Owners of the Company ViN/NETE ¥ =N 10,313 8,878
Non-controlling interests SRR M &R 600 1,694
10,913 10,572
HK cents HK cents
AL oAl
Earnings per share attributable to EANTRHEEAEEERER 16
owners of the Company
Basic and diluted EARREH
For profit for the year F A g ) 0.70 0.64
For profit for the year from continuing REFBEEEEB 2
operations F N F 0.74 0.49
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e MBI R

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2017
MR2017912 A31H

2017 2016
2017 5 20164F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5 FEx AT
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - HENMERE 17 3,254 3,795
Goodwiill EES 18 137,448 27,280
Intangible asset myEE 19 = 1,822
Loans receivables B W E 23 3,331 5,216
Total non-current assets BERBEE 144,033 38,113
Current assets REEE
Inventories T8 21 3,567 4,432
Trade receivables FELE B EE R 22 4,107 9,851
Loans receivables fE U B & 23 132,091 250,738
Other receivables, deposits and HibpEhsiE g e K&
prepayments SEM 2B 24 2,613 2,004
Bank balances and cash SBITEBR LIRS 25 39,013 8,005
Total current assets BRBEE 181,391 275,030
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade payables ENE SRR 26 1,292 543
Other payables and accruals H {th FE A~ N FEET RIE 27 5,655 3,415
Amount due to a former non-controlling A —MATH B AR 2 —fiL
interest shareholder of a former subsidiary AIEIEZERERKRER 2RIB 28 - 5,258
Tax payables FERT IR 5,136 1,527
Provision B 29 - 123
Total current liabilities BREBAE 12,083 10,866
Net current assets BEREBEE 169,308 264,164
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBER 313,341 302,277
Non-current liability FRBEE
Deferred tax liabilities EERTEE & 31 — 342
Total non-current liability BERBER = 342
Net assets BEE 313,341 301,935
Capital and reserves EXREE
Share capital A% A 32(a) 139,778 139,778
Reserves & 32(b) 170,864 160,283
Equity attributable to owners of the Company 7~ A 71# A A JE(L HE 25 310,642 300,061
Non-controlling interests JEE R S 2,699 1,874
Total equity DB 313,341 301,935

FEIE15E M A B HMER B HN2018F 3 A
BRAEESgH ARKERE YhHTHIE
EREREE

The consolidated financial statements on pages 63 to 155 were approved
and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 23 March 2018 and
signed on its behalf by:

ZHANG Qing SUNG Tak Wing Leo
RE REH
Director Director
BF 2o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
GABEBHR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
HE2017F12A31BIEFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

AAAEE AR
(Accumulated
Share losses)/ Non-
Share Share Merger Statutory option Exchange retained Sub- controlling Total
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve profits total interests equity
] et i8R EX (RitE#R)/ FER L £
i HE e EERE % 3] RE iy EE k)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTExr THx TEx FHT T FHT FTEr THx FHxT TER
At 1 January 2016 #R2016F1 18 138,240 143243 17,941 - - (20) (14,803) 284,601 — 284,601
Profit for the year EREF - - - - - - 8898 8898 1604 10,592
Other comprehensive FREMZ2EMEX:
expense for the year:
Exchange differences arising 128 /8 5h ¥ 1 & 4
on translation of foreign ZERESR
operations - - - - - (20) - (20) - (20)
Total comprehensive FRE2EHZ)/
(expense)/income Wi R
for the year — — — — — (20) 8,898 8,878 1,694 10,672
Recognition of equity-settied & 52 5 1 4 B i% 1
share-based payments EACERR )
(Note 11) - - - - 968 - - 968 — 968
Issue of shares upon exercise & 171# 2 % H
of share options granted BRERTRN
(Note 32(a)(i) (B 5£32(a)()) 1,538 5044 - - (968) - - 5,614 - 5,614
Non-controlling interests EBAHEEL
arising on business FERER
combination - - - - - - - - 180 180
At 31 December 2016 and 120165128318
1 January 2017 K%2017F1818 139,778 148,287 17,941 - - (40) (5,905) 300,061 1,874 301,935
Profit for the year EREF - - - = = = 9721 9,727 600 10,327
Other comprehensive ERHEM2EMEX:
expense for the year:
Exchange differences arising #2885 £ #E £
on translation of foreign ZERER
operations - - - - - 586 - 586 - 586
Total comprehensive income 4 A3 2 B YK &5 42 58
for the year - - - - - 586 9,727 10,313 600 10,913
Change in ownership interest KB AR 2 HEHE
in a subsidiary that donot ~ EEFEE (&
result in a loss of control BEA LG )
(Note 36) (Ft3E36) - - - - - - 268 268 3,132 3,400
Disposal of subsidiaries HENRBAR
(Note 35(d)) (P 5£35(d)) - - - - - - - - (2,907)  (2,907)
Transfer to statutory reserve 81 2 % 7 fE {6
(Note 32(b)) (M 7E32(b)) = = = 508 = = (508) = - -
At 31 December 2017 R20175612A31H 139,778 148,287 17,941 508 - 546 3,582 310,642 2,699 313,341
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

= A ==
,f.'vT\ (=] IE@/MLE%:Z
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
HE2017F12A31BILFE

2017 2016
20175 20164
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Bt 5 FExT FAT
Cash flows from operating activities RERKLEITEB2EHERE
Profit before tax % B4 A A
From continuing operations KEFERLEER 16,251 9,000
From discontinued operation REERIEEE 14 919 4,477
17,170 138,477
Adjustments for; KRAETHEIE :
Bad debts AR 136 -
Bank interest income HRATH B WA (16) 6)
Depreciation of property, plant and M- -BEREEBTE
equipment 1,716 1,767
Amortisation of intangible asset BLEAEEH 187 62
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEYE WENEE
equipment, net 18 558 2 —
(Reversal of provision)/provision for slow- EiE R BETE (BE
moving and obsolete inventories Bm), B (945) 259
Accumulated interest on promissory note AHZER 7 255 B 857 354
Waive of accumulated interest on HREEANERZ ZFHE
promissory note (857) (354)
Equity-settled share-based payments % 4 45 B 9 15 3R — 968
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries HEK B AR EE
(Note 35(d) (Pt 5 35(d)) 1,833 -
Operating cash flows before EEESEEA
working capital changes KEHRSRHE 20,083 16,527
Decrease in inventories FERD 1,810 461
Decrease/(increase) in trade receivables JEWE 5B FOR A (1E ) 3,741 (5,603)
Decrease/(increase) in loans receivables W B FOR A (38 n) 120,532 (169,534)
Increase in other receivables, deposits and Hib e sk1E « e RTERM R
prepayments TH 3 h1 (690) (406)
Decrease in trade payables JERTE 5 BR 08 D (176) (647)
Increase in other payables and accruals H fth B I JE ST FRIB LG AN 2,387 943
(Decrease)/increase in amount due to a former J& < — & Bl M B A & 2 —fiL
non-controlling interest shareholder of A FE 1= IR R AR 3R 2 3R IA
a former subsidiary (R ) /4 0 (955) 1,589
Cash generated from/(used in) operations xE/ (AR)RE RS 146,732 (156,670)
Income tax paid EATER1SH (3,648) (941)
Net cash from/(used in) operating XE (AR EEEH>
activities FBRE 143,084 (157,611)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (Continued)
FERERER (HE)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
HZE2017F 1231 HILFE

2017 2016
2017 20164
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B 3 FET FAT
Cash flows from investing activities RERETH 2 HERE
Payment for purchase of property, BEYWE BMENMEREBEZMARK
plant and equipment (1,864) (1,598)
Acquisition of subsidiaries U BE P B8 A~ 7] 34(e) (96,402) (7,741)
Additions to development cost of intangible % 2 & 2 ff 2% A 2 2 38 N
asset = (1,884)
Proceeds from disposal of subsidiaries HEWB AR ZTERIE 35(e) 22,187 —
Bank interest received BUERITH B 16 6
Net cash used in investing activities ARRETEZFES (76,063) (11,217)
Cash flows from financing activities KERETEBZ2EHERE
Proceeds from issue of shares of a subsidiary %77 i /B 2 7 I& (5 &= FE 12 i%
to non-controlling interests w2 TS 5RIA 3,400 -
Issue of shares upon exercise of share THEERHERE
options granted EITRAD = 5,614
Early redemption of promissory note AHZRIREED (40,000) (17,500)
Net cash used in financing activities AREREZHZ2FHS (36,600) (11,886)
Net increase/(decrease) incashandcash & RE S ZEY F i~
equivalents O 2) 30,421 (180,714)
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January R1B81BWEEREEE
BY 8,005 188,739
Effects of foreign exchange rate changes, J)NEE RS 8 v 2% - ¥ 5
net 587 (20)
Cash and cash equivalents at MR12B31EMNBRERELE
31 December By 39,013 8,005
Analysis of balances of cash and cash RERBRESEBEYEGHIN:
equivalents:
Bank balances and cash RITEBR LA S 39,013 8,005
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M ERERME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
HE2017F12A31BILFE

GENERAL INFORMATION 1. — B
The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 31 March KABR2011FIAIBRERASES
2011, as an exempted company with limited liability under the FRERNRFEREHEFMKILAE—
Companies Law Cap. 22 of the Cayman lIslands. The address of its MER R AR E TR A - XA [T
registered office is located at 190 Elgin Avenue, George Town, Grand = jE #b HE 7 72190 Elgin Avenue, George
Cayman KY1-9005, Cayman Islands. The address of its principal place Town, Grand Cayman KY1-9005, Cayman
of business is located at Suite 2101, 21/F, Chinachem Century Tower, Islands - EF EL Z it AF B EF S
178 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong. TITE1785R E R 2 EIH21 2101 F -
The Company is an investment holding company. The principal RN —BEERE AR ERBA
activities of its subsidiaries (together with the Company referred to as AlERAANARABIAER])MNETE
the “Group”) are: (1) the provision of integrated circuit (“IC”) solutions ¥ AE NREBEEXEBRTERERK]
and the design, development and sales of integrated circuits (“ICs”); (2) MR WHREEKRSR(EKRS
money lending business in Hong Kong (“HK”) through the provision of DR FAELEE: QEBREBERE
unsecured and secured loans to customers, including individuals and AEOREB (BB NREREERE
corporations under the provisions of the Money Lenders Ordinance; BRBZFE BIEMEANRRA R IREEIE
and (3) the provision of investment and planning consulting service, real HRERBER: RQRHPEARLRM
estate agent, property management services and car parking ([ ) HEREHEHKIZRRE -
management services in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”). EHWERKLE MEEEREREEBZE
The Group had discontinued the information security business during ERG ALEBERFAERIEKEHRE
the year. MREZHEK -
The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong KIFAPMERRAKQRNIEEE S
dollar (“HK$”), which is the same as the functional currency of the T(BETH 2R B2 EFRIEAEEI -
Company and all value are rounded to the nearest thousand except eI AREREN T -
when otherwise indicated.
Information about subsidiaries ME AT Z2ER
Particulars of the subsidiaries of the Company at as 31 December 2017 Ro017E12A31H  KAFZHE A A
are as follows: HBEWT
Proportion of
ownership interest
held by the Company
ARRAEEZEARERLH
Place of
Incorporation Issued Ordinary/ Principal
Name of Subsidiary and Operation Paid up Capital Directly Indirectly Activities
HEMALR BROTEERZ
HEARER B BRHRE B B TEER
Megalogic Business Limited British Virgin Islands United States dollar (‘US$") 100% - Investment holding
(“BVI) US$1
RERXHS 1E([Ex) RAEER
(RERx#S])
Megalogic Investment Limited BVI USs$1 100% — Investment holding
EEELEHS E REER
Minilogic Investment Limited BVI Us$10 60% — Investment holding
(Note 36) (2016: 100%)
(P 5536) EEEAHS 10X T REER
Excellence Steps Limited BVI USS$1 100% - Investment holding
AERERHES 1E7T REER
Quick Wit Ventures Limited* BVI USs$100 100% — Investment holding
RBERAHS 100% T REER
Megalogic Business Management ~ HK HK$10,000,000 100% - Business consultant
Consultant Limited
RAICEEBEMERAR & 10,000,000 7T EBER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

A%

& M EE (&)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
HE2017F12831BIEFE

1. GENERAL INFORMATION (Continued)

Info

rmation about subsidiaries (Continued)

1. " REB @
A 7] 2 & #om)

Proportion of
ownership interest

held by the Company
ARBREEEEERLH
Place of
Incorporation Issued Ordinary/ Principal
Name of Subsidiary and Operation Paid up Capital Directly Indirectly Activities
EMARLR BRTEERZ
HEARERE BEwE BRRAE EE % TEEK
Easy Loan Finance Limited HK HK$80,000,000 - 100% Money lending
PRI BHERRA EE 80,000,000 7t &
MiniLogic Device Corporation HK HK$18,321,554 - 60% Design, development
Limited (“MiniLogic HK”) (Note 36) (2016: 100%) and sales of ICs
MEImMARA BB 18,321,654 78 7T et FAER
(MalERES]) (F736) HEEKER
Megalogic China Development HK HKS$1 - 100% Investment holding
Limited
REIFBEERARDA 0 1T REER
RERERCEEREFRLR  PRC HK$2,500,000 - 100% Inactive
(Note (i) H 2,500,000 7T R334
(P55 )
Easy Finance Assets Management  HK HK$10,000,000 - 100% Investment holding
Limited (Note (ii))
REASEEERERAA Bk 10,000,000 7T e pudily
(iE=30))
Western Property Management HK HK$1 - 100% Investment holding
(HK) Limited*
BEENEER (FB)ERRA A 18T REER
)| R EEE R AR AR PRC Renminbi (‘RMB”) - 100% Property
RMB1,000,000 management
services
FE AEB(ARE]) MEEBRS
A E%1,000,0007T

*Acquired during the year.

Notes:

0

(i

The registered capital was HK$50,000,000. As of 31 December 2017, the
paid up capital was HK$2,500,000 and the remaining registered capital to
be injected on or before 30 March 2026.

With effect from 10 January 2017, Easy Trade Securities Limited has
changed its name to Easy Finance Assets Management Limited.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
GRE KRR (E)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

HE2017F12A31BILFE

GENERAL INFORMATION (continued) 1. —RERmw

Information about subsidiaries (Continued) = NGTPA-¢ 10 )

During the year, the following subsidiaries (collectively “Maximus FRELE THMHBRAEHKBE
Group”) were disposed. [Maximus &£ &l ]) °

Proportion of ownership
interest held by the Company

before disposal
REEHARARAHAZERRE
L £:3:4"1]
Place of
Incorporation Issued Ordinary/ Principal
Name of Subsidiary and Operation Paid up Capital Directly Indirectly Activities
AL K ERTEBRZ
i 2 7 % EE Y BaRA B ME  TEEE
Maximus Venture Holdings Limited BVI US$50,000 - 55% Investment holding
EBRUES 50,0003 7T REER
Maximus Group Consulting Limited BvVI US$50,000 - 556% Investment holding
EERZHS 50,000% 7T REER
Maximus Consulting (Hong Kong) Limited ~ HK HK$10,000 - 55% Information security
(“Maximus Consulting HK”)
HeaEMBRERAA 0 10,0007 7T BARRE
(TR ERRER])

7
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

=
)

Bt 75 R R B R ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
HE2017F12831BIEFE

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”), which collective term includes all applicable
individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”),
accounting principles and standards generally accepted in Hong Kong
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. These consolidated financial statements also comply with
the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on GEM of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“GEM Listing Rules”). A summary of the significant accounting policies
adopted by the Group is set out in note 4 to the consolidated financial
statements below.

HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs that are first
effective or available for early adoption for the current accounting period
of the Group. Note 3 to the consolidated financial statements provides
information on any changes in accounting policies resulting from initial
application of these new and revised HKFRSs to the extent that they
are relevant to the Group for the current and prior accounting periods
reflected in these consolidated financial statements.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HKFRSs

(@) New and revised HKFRSs adopted

In the current year, the Group has adopted all the new and
revised HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA that are relevant to its
operations and effective for its accounting year beginning on 1
January 2017. Other than explained below regarding the impact
of Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative, the adoption of
these new and revised HKFRSs has had no significant financial
effect on these financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 7 require an entity to provide disclosures
that enable users of financial statements to evaluate changes in
liabilities arising from financing activities, including both changes
arising from cash flows and non-cash changes. Disclosure of the
change in liabilities arising from financing activities is provided in
Note 39 to the consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HKFRSs (Continued)

(b)

Issued but not yet effective new and revised

HKFRSs

The Group has not applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs that have been issued but not yet effective in these

financial statements:

HKFRS 9
HKFRS 15
HKFRS 16
HKFRS 17
HK (IFRIC)-Int 22
K (IFRIC)-Int 23
Amendments to HKFRS 2

Amendments to HKFRS 4

Amendments to HKFRS 9

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28 (2011)

Amendments to HKFRS 15

Amendments to HKAS 28

Annual Improvements
2014-2016 Cycle

Annual Improvements
2015-2017 Cycle

Amendments to HKAS 40

Financial Instruments'

Revenue from Contracts with Customers'

Leases?

Insurance Contracts*

Foreign Currency Transactions and
Advance Consideration'

Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments®

Classification and Measurement of
Share-based Payment Transactions'

Applying HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments
with HKFRS 4 Insurance Contracts'

Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation®

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an
Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture®

Clarifications of HKFRS 15 Revenue from
Contracts with Customers'

Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures®

Amendments to HKFRS 1 and HKAS 28"

Amendments to HKFRS 3 and 11 and
HKAS 12 and 23°

Transfers of Investment Property'

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018,

with earlier application permitted

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019,

with earlier application permitted

adoption

No mandatory effective date yet determined by available for

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021,

with earlier application permitted
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

REERRMET (E)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
HE2017F12831BIEFE

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HKFRSs (Continued)

(b)

Issued but not yet effective new and revised
HKFRSs (Continued)

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what
the impact of these new and revised HKFRSs is expected to be
in the period of initial application. So far the Group has identified
some aspects of the new HKFRSs which may have a significant
impact on the consolidated financial statements. Further details
of the expected impacts are discussed below. As the Group has
not completed its assessment, further impacts may be identified
in due course and will be taken into consideration when
determining whether to adopt any of these new and revised
HKFRSs before their effective date and which transitional
approach to take, where there are alternative approaches
allowed under the new HKFRSs.

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

In September 2014, the HKICPA issued the final version of
HKFRS 9, bringing together all phases of the financial instruments
project to replace HKAS 39 and all previous versions of HKFRS 9.
The standard introduces new requirements for classification and
measurement, impairment and hedge accounting. The Group
expects to adopt HKFRS 9 from 1 January 2018. The Group is
currently assessing the impact of the standard.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HKFRSs (Continued)

(b)

Issued but not yet effective new and revised
HKFRSs (Continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

HKFRS 15 establishes a new five-step model to account for
revenue arising from contracts with customers. Under HKFRS
15, revenue is recognised at an amount that reflects the
consideration to which an entity expects to be entitled in
exchange for transferring goods or services to a customer. The
principles in HKFRS 15 provide a more structured approach for
measuring and recognising revenue. The standard also
introduces extensive qualitative and quantitative disclosure
requirements, including disaggregation of total revenue,
information about performance obligations, changes in contract
asset and liability account balances between periods and key
judgments and estimates. The standard will supersede all current
revenue recognition requirements under HKFRSs. In June 2016,
the HKICPA issued amendments to HKFRS 15 to address the
implement issues on identifying performance obligations,
application guidance on principal versus agent and licences of
intellectual property, and transition. The amendments are also
intended to help ensure a more consistent application when
entities adopt HKFRS 15 and decrease the cost and complexity
of applying the standard. The Group expects to adopt HKFRS 15
on 1 January 2018 and is currently assessing the impact of
HKFRS 15 upon adoption.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

REERRMET (E)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
HE2017F12A31BIEFE

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HKFRSs (Continued)

(b)

Issued but not yet effective new and revised
HKFRSs (Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 replaces HKAS 17 Leases, HK(IFRIC)-Int 4
Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease, HK(SIC)-
Int 15 Operating Leases — Incentives and HK(SIC)-Int 27
Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving the Legal
Form of a Lease. The standard sets out the principles for the
recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases
and requires lessees to recognise assets and liabilities for most
leases. The standard includes two recognition exemptions for
lessees — leases of low-value assets and short-term leases. At
the commencement date of a lease, a lessee will recognise a
liability to make lease payments (i.e., the lease liability) and an
asset representing the right to use the underlying asset during
the lease term (i.e., the right-of-use asset). The right-of-use asset
is subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation
and any impairment losses unless the right-of-use asset meets
the definition of investment property in HKAS 40. The lease
liability is subsequently increased to reflect the interest on the
lease liability and reduced for the lease payments. Lessees will
be required to separately recognise the interest expense on the
lease liability and the depreciation expense on the right-of-use
asset. Lessees will also be required to remeasure the lease
liability upon the occurrence of certain events, such as change in
the lease term and change in future lease payments resulting
from a change in an index or rate used to determine those
payments. Lessees will generally recognise the amount of the
remeasurement of the lease liability as an adjustment to the right-
of-use asset. Lessor accounting under HKFRS 16 is substantially
unchanged from the accounting under HKAS 17. Lessors will
continue to classify all leases using the same classification
principle as in HKAS 17 and distinguish between operating
leases and finance leases. The Group expects to adopt HKFRS
16 on 1 January 2019 and is currently assessing the impact of
HKFRS 16 upon adoption.

76

£
Bt 7%

i
o
E

BmE LR FE165%H

EETBHHRELENFI6HIASR
BT EAEITHR/AE] B
(BB BREREZES) 28
FAG [ ETLHERTEZHE] -
E5(ERIREZES)-REFI5
SRIAEEHE — BERINES (KL
RREZES)-REE2THRFES
RHEELXBEFAKXZHALT] %
EBEHER T2 2R EE
FAEMRL  WERKABARKS
BHERREERARGE - EAE
BEHRTABEBAMEHRERRH R
—KEEESEMREREHAE - R
THEMBBEE ABAEERINAE
EREERENRAAEANEE
BE)RRERAFEABAEEENE
FEEEGBREFERAEEE) BRIk
EEAREEFEB B S ER
FAHFIREMENTE  BEAE
BEEBEZEARZTINE R
REGEfE HEaBEE kS
RREBESEH B MEMERA
BENZMRED - EKFEAKESD 5
BRHEAENMNERIRERE
BREEEMTERA - &R AB K
ERETEHRLEREHTER
EaE PR HEHEREE A
RETZENRN —HIE&LLL
EEBFMBIBAKRBENRESE -
AFBAA—MBEHGFEHREAE
NHERRAEEAREENS
B BB BHMEERF165 A
HHABBEHENFEI7THEALH
ANGHEETR - HHAABESE
FREEEGTEREI7HMER
Mo BERANEMEHEETHE
THzoREEHERRERE -
AEBTEH H2019F1 51 HH W
EEMBREERNE165  BAILE
TERMEET HRE LA FE16
FHEE-

Megalogic Technology Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a)

(b)

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2017 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements is the historical cost
convention.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires management to make judgments, estimates
and assumptions that affect the application of policies and
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The
estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and various other factors that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form
the basis of making the judgments about carrying values of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods
if the revision affects both current and future periods.

Judgments made by management in the application of HKFRSs
that have significant effect on the financial statements and major
sources of estimation uncertainty are discussed in note 5 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December
2017. A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity),
directly or indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is
achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the investee (i.e.,
existing rights that give the Group the current ability to direct the
relevant activities of the investee).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
REERRMET (E)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
HE2017F12831BIEFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(b)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a majority
of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers
all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has
power over an investee, including:

(@  the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of
the investee;

(o)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

(c)  the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the
same reporting period as the Company, using consistent
accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date on which the Group obtains control, and continue
to be consolidated until the date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the parent of the Group
and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group
assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows
relating to transactions between members of the Group are
eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one
or more of the three elements of control described above. A
change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of
control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i) the
assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary, (i) the
carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (i) the
cumulative translation differences recorded in equity; and
recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received, (i) the
fair value of any investment retained and (jii) any resulting surplus
or deficit in profit or loss The Group’s share of components
previously recognised in other comprehensive income is
reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as appropriate, on
the same basis as would be required if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

()

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred is measured at the
acquisition date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition date
fair values of assets transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed
by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree. For each business combination, the Group elects
whether to measure the non-controlling interests in the acquiree
that are present ownership interests and entitle their holders to a
proportionate share of net assets in the event of liquidation at fair
value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable
net assets. All other components of non-controlling interests are
measured at fair value. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial
assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and
designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic
circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition
date. This includes the separation of embedded derivatives in
host contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the previously
held equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition date fair value
and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer is
recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability is measured at fair
value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted for within
equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the
aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount
recognised for non-controlling interests and any fair value of the
Group’s previously held equity interests in the acquiree over the
identifiable net assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the sum
of this consideration and other items is lower than the fair value
of the net assets acquired, the difference is, after reassessment,
recognised in profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
REERRMET (E)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
HE2017F12831BIEFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

()

(d)

Business combinations and goodwill (Continued)

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for
impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired.
The Group performs its annual impairment test of goodwill as at
31 December. For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill
acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition date,
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units (“CGUS”),
or groups of CGUs, that are expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination, irrespective of whether other
assets or liabilities of the Group are assigned to those units or
groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount
of the CGU (group of CGUs) to which the goodwill relates. Where
the recoverable amount of the CGU (group of CGUS) is less than
the carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. An
impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a
subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a CGU (or group of CGUs)
and part of the operation within that unit is disposed of, the
goodwill associated with the operation disposed of is included in
the carrying amount of the operation when determining the gain
or loss on the disposal. Goodwill disposed of in these
circumstances is measured based on the relative value of the
operation disposed of and the portion of the CGU retained.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings and leasehold
land (classified as finance leases) held for use in the production
or supply of goods or services, or for administrative purposes,
are stated in the consolidated statement of financial position at
cost, less subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent
accumulated impairment losses, if any.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(d)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are recognised in profit
or loss during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is calculated at
rates sufficient to write off their cost less their estimated residual
value over the estimated useful lives on a straight line basis. The
principal annual rates used for this purpose during the reporting
period are as follows:

30%-31.7%

20%

19%-30%
25%-30%

20%

Over the lease term

Computer equipment
Instruments

Office equipment

Motor vehicle

Furniture and fixtures
Leasehold improvement

The estimated useful lives and depreciation method are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to
arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising
on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and
equipment is determined as the difference between the sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised
in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
REERRMET (E)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
HE2017F12831BIEFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(€)

Intangible asset

Internally-generated intangible asset — research and
development expenditure

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense in
the period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from development
activities (or from the development phase of an internal project) is
recognised if, and only if, all of the following have been
demonstrated:

—  the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset
so that it will be available for use or sale;

—  the intention to complete the intangible asset and use or
sell it;

—  the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

— how the intangible asset will generate probable future
economic benefits;

—  the availability of adequate technical, financial and other
resources to complete the development and to use or sell
the intangible asset; and

—  the ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable
to the intangible asset during its development.

The amount initially recognised for internally-generated intangible
asset is the sum of the expenditure incurred from the date when
the intangible asset first meets the recognition criteria listed
above. Where no internally generated intangible asset can be
recognised, development expenditure is recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which it is incurred. Subsequent to initial
recognition, internally-generated intangible asset is carried at
cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment
losses (if any).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(f)

Impairment of non-financial assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its non-financial assets (other than goodwill,
inventories and contract assets) to determine whether there is
any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment
loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the
asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss (if any). When it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates
the recoverable amount of the CGU to which the asset belongs.
When a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be
identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual CGU,
or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of CGU for
which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be
identified.

Intangible asset with definite useful lives is tested for impairment
whenever there is an indication that it may be impaired.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which
the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or CGU) is estimated to be
less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or
the CGU) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment
loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or CGU) is increased to the revised estimate
of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset (or CGU) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss
is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
REERRMET (E)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
HE2017F12831BIEFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(9)

Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction
to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either in the
principal market for the asset or liability, or in the absence of a
principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset
or liability. The principal or the most advantageous market must
be accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability
is measured using the assumptions that market participants
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that
market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in
its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or
disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the
fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a
whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is observable, either directly or indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(9)

(i)

Fair value measurement (Continued)

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that
is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end
of each reporting period.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is calculated on the first-in-first-out basis and
comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other
costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location
and condition. Net realisable value represents the estimated
selling price for inventories less all estimated costs of completion
and costs necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in which
the related revenue is recognised. The amount of any write-down
of inventories to net realisable value and all losses of inventories
are recognised as an expense in the period the write-down or
loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any write-down of
inventories is recognised as a reduction in the amount of
inventories recognised as an expense in the period in which the
reversal occurs.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instruments.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair
value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other
than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the
financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

wRE IS R AR M A ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

HE2017F12831BIEFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

4., FESHTHER @

() Financial instruments (Continued) () €8I Eum

()  Financial assets () =mEE
Financial assets of the Group are classified into the AEBWNeRMEERSER
following specified categories: “financial assets at fair value ATHEEER: EAFEER
through profit or loss” (“FVTPL") and “loans and )\ BRI ATFES AR
receivables”. The classification depends on the nature and HZzemBEEMETLE
purpose of the financial assets and is determined at the WHIE] - nEAETFELREE
time of initial recognition. All regular way purchases or ZHEEREHME YRE
sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised RERABET - FTANER
on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are FTRABASNLEZSRMEE
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery B EEBHELEERANRK
of assets within the time frame established by regulation or IR L HE 7B Ak
convention in the marketplace. HERBANRTISHE T LED
Frsl BRARNEE 2 & @b

BEBAILE -

(i) Effective interest method (i) BBERZRZE
The effective interest method is a method of calculating the TR = ,ﬁ DEAEEHR T A
amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating HER AR HEBHBER Y
interest income over the relevant period. The effective BEFBWABFE BEF
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated K TR (&7 T B8 By 6 HR 5%
future cash receipts (including all fees and points paid or A B HR R E AL IR
received that form an integral part of the effective interest HARKRERAR(BEEXRE
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) [ [ s N e o R (S N i = i =)
through the expected life of the debt instrument, or, where ENBEWRERREF X
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount SRAREMBESITE)E
on initial recognition. YR BREFE R F -
Income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt BEILAEMNKZE HIEERF
instruments other than these financial assets classified as REEER HRAFETFA

at FVTPL. Rz MEERN -

(i) Financial asset at FVTPL (i) BAFETFABERZZS

Financial asset is classified as at FVTPL when the financial
asset is either held for trading or it is designated as at
FVTPL.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

() Financial instruments (Continued)

(il

Financial asset at FVTPL (Continued)

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
selling it in the near term; or

° on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual pattern of
short-term profit-taking; or

° it is a derivative that is not designated and effective
as a hedging instrument.

A financial asset other than a financial asset held for trading
may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if:

° such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that
would otherwise arise; or

° the financial asset forms part of a group of financial
assets or financial liabilities or both, which is
managed and its performance is evaluated on a fair
value basis, in accordance with the Group’s
documented risk management or investment
strategy, and information about the grouping is
provided internally on that basis; or

° it forms part of a contract containing one or more
embedded derivatives, and HKAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement permits
the entire combined contract to be designated as at
FVTPL.

87
REISHEBBRAT 2017F3

wRE B SRR MR ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

HE2017F12A31BILFE

4, FESFTHE @

) 8T A @

(il

BAFESTAERZE
BEE (#)

fitf & R T RS R - Al S A
EEAEARFEE:

e BAMEIEEMART
AR o

. RUSBRBHARE
EBATENEHTS
BIAMEAN—BH
T3 B0 I L 4 40 E
FE R o

e HATEERERER
HHPTAMTAETAR-

SREAE(BEEEOSMA
EB SN TR TIER TR
SRR T BB FE

AN -

o REEHBBRIAERD
A EEE B AR B R
R EEAD I K

e ZERMEEBK—#ED
REEATHMABXS
BEEREBRBEHRS
B — 8 MREAE
| 1 7 B AL B B IR ek
BRRE ZBEENE
BRERBETARFER
HEWETHE BEAH
7R E R TR I R
[ A AR LR 2K

e HEREBEE HIEZHA
BRARTETIANER
W—an - mMEE G
HERIFEIFL @ T A :
BRRTERFHEME
HEANBERERYT
B ABEFE-



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
REERRMET (E)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
HE2017F12831BIEFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(i) Financial instruments (Continued)

(il

(iv)

Financial asset at FVTPL (Continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any
gains or losses arising on remeasurement recognised in
profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or
loss incorporates any dividend or interest earned on the
financial asset and is included in the “other gains and
losses” line item. Fair value is determined in the manner
described in note 4(g) to the consolidated financial
statements.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. Loans and receivables (including trade
receivables and bank balances and cash) are measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method, less
any impairment.

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate, except for short-term receivables where the
recognition of interest would be immaterial.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets other than those at FVTPL are assessed
for indicators of impairment at the end of each reporting
period. Financial assets are considered to be impaired
when there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or
more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the
financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of the
investment have been affected.

Objective evidence of impairment could include:

° significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

° breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency
in interest or principal payments; or

° it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or

° the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

() Financial instruments (Continued)

v)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For certain categories of financial assets, such as trade
receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired
individually are, in addition, assessed for impairment on a
collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for a
portfolio of receivables could include the Group’s past
experience of collecting payments, an increase in the
number of delayed payments in the portfolio past the
average credit period and observable changes in national
or local economic conditions that correlate with default on
receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount
of the impairment loss recognised is the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the current
market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such
impairment loss will not be reversed in subsequent periods
(see the accounting policy below).

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade receivables, where the carrying amount
is reduced through the use of an allowance account. When
a trade receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written
off against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously written off are credited against the
allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of the
allowance account are recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

wRE IS R AR M A ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

HE2017F12831BIEFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

4, FESFTHE @

() Financial instruments (Continued) () €8I Eum
(v) Impairment of financial assets (Continued) v) ®EERE®
For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a HRIEZEHEKNAFTEN SR
subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss BE WREBBABZBE
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to BB D - TR L BRI
an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, BEENEBEEHFEXERE
the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed % BlZ R EERNMEE
through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount BEBEZHED BERER
of the investment at the date the impairment is reversed BORERAHNEMETS
does not exceed what the amortised cost would have 1B 38 15 17 2 1 3208 (B A 5
been had the impairment not been recognised. AN o
(vi) Financial liabilities and equity instruments (vip eMEBERKRAIA
Classification as debt or equity S48 A ERE KR
Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are SEERETHNBEHEEERAK
classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in TEDZRBEHNLHERND R
accordance with the substance of the contractual SRHEBEBEMRATIAENTES
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and moEAsmBERRA -
an equity instrument.
Equity instruments BATA
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a BRATEZBHAEEENE
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all ENNGmEAER) AT
of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group are BERNALY B AREEZ
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue 1TEY R A T A DA T U B A9 BT
costs. BSRENBREEFITHAE
HIAR o
Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is ARnBEEAE ZRATLEAR
recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss REZNEEERINLE -
is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue AAFEE - HE BT
or cancellation of the Company’s own equity instruments. A ZCRANT AR —#
TEnRBEm AR L E
8 o
(vii) Financial liabilities (vi) ERAE

Financial liabilities of the Group (including trade and other
payables) are subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest rate method unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are
stated at cost.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

() Financial instruments (Continued)

(il

(viii)

Financial liabilities (Continued)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments through the expected life of the
financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period to
the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest
basis.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another
entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to
control the transferred asset, the Group continues to
recognise the asset to the extent of its continuing
involvement and recognises an associated liability. If the
Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group
continues to recognise the financial asset and also
recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and receivable and the
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is
recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
REERRMET (E)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
HE2017F12831BIEFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

0]

Financial instruments (Continued)

(viii) Derecognition (Continued)

On derecognition of a financial asset other than in its
entirety, the Group allocates the previous carrying amount
of the financial asset between the part it continues to
recognise, and the part it no longer recognises on the
basis of the relative fair values of those parts on the date of
the transfer. The difference between the carrying amount
allocated to the part that is no longer recognised and the
sum of the consideration received for the part no longer
recognised and any cumulative gain or loss allocated to it
that had been recognised in other comprehensive income
is recognised in profit or loss. A cumulative gain or loss
that had been recognised in other comprehensive income
is allocated between the part that continues to be
recognised and the part that is no longer recognised on
the basis of the relative fair values of those parts.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
they expire. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration
paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on
hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments that
are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value, having been within three months of maturity at
acquisition. Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand
form an integral part of the Group’s cash management are
also included as a component of cash and cash
equivalents for the purpose of the consolidated statement
of cash flows.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(k)

()

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event and it
is probable that the Group will be required to settle the obligation,
provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of
the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the
consideration required to settle the present obligation at the end
of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and
uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a provision is
measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present
obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash
flows (where the effect of the time value of money is material).

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a
provision are expected to be recovered from a third party, a
receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that
reimbursement will be received and the amount of the receivable
can be measured reliably.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will
be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the
obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and movements in
deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current tax and movements in
deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss
except to the extent that they relate to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case the
relevant amounts of tax are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for
the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the
end of the reporting period and any adjustment to tax payable in
respect of pervious years.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
REERRMET (E)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
HE2017F12831BIEFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

()

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible and
taxable temporary differences respectively, being the differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial
reporting purposes and their tax bases. Deferred tax assets also
arise from unused tax losses and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax liabilities,
and all deferred tax assets to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profits will be available against which the asset can
be utilised, are recognised. Future taxable profits that may
support the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences include those that will arise
from the reversal of existing taxable temporary differences,
provided those differences relate to the same taxation authority
and the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either
in the same period as the expected reversal of the deductible
temporary difference or in periods into which a tax loss arising
from the deferred tax asset can be carried back or forward. The
same criteria are adopted when determining whether existing
taxable temporary differences support the recognition of deferred
tax assets arising from unused tax losses and credits, that is,
those differences are taken into account if they relate to the same
taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and are expected
to reverse in a period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit
can be utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax assets and
liabilities are those temporary differences arising from goodwill
not deductible for tax purposes, the initial recognition of assets or
liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable profit (provided
they are not part of a business combination), and temporary
differences relating to investments in subsidiaries to the extent
that, in the case of taxable differences, the group controls the
timing of the reversal and it is probable that the differences will
not reverse in the foreseeable future, or in the case of deductible
differences, unless it is probable that they will reverse in the
future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

()

Income tax (Continued)

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and is reduced to the extent that it
is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow the related tax benefit to be utilised. Any such
reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes probable that
sufficient taxable profits will be available.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and movements
therein, are presented separately from each other and are not
offset. Current tax assets are offset against current tax liabilities,
and deferred tax assets against deferred tax liabilities, if the
company or the group has the legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the following
additional conditions are met:

— in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
company or the group intends either to settle on a net
basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously; or

— in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority
on either:

—  the same taxable entity; or

—  different taxable entities, which, in each future period
in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities
or assets are expected to be settled or recovered,
intend to realise the current tax assets and settle the
current tax liabilites on a net basis or realise the
assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

REERRMET (E)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
HE2017F12A31BIEFE

4. SIGNIFI

(Continued)

CANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(m) Revenue recognition

Reven

ue is measured at the fair value of the consideration

received or receivable and represents amounts receivable for
goods sold or services provided in the normal course of
business, net of returns and discounts. Provided it is probable
that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue

and ¢

osts, if applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue is

recognised in profit or loss as follows:

(i)

(i

Revenue from the sales of goods
Revenue is recognised when goods are delivered at the
customers’ designated location which is taken to be the
point in time when the customer has accepted the goods
and the related risks and rewards of ownership. Revenue
is after deduction of any trade discounts.

Revenue from fixed-price contracts

Revenue from fixed-price contracts for the provision of
application specific integrated circuit service (“ASIC
Service”) is recognised under the percentage of completion
method, which is based on the services performed to date
as a percentage of the total services to be performed
under the relevant contract.

Revenue from the provision of total solutions for
information security services

Revenue from the provision of total solutions for information
security services is recognised by reference to the stage of
completion of the contract under which revenue is
recognised in the accounting periods upon services being
rendered. The stage of completion of a transaction is
determined by services performed to date as a percentage
of total services to be performed.

Revenue from the provision of property
management services in the PRC

Revenue from property management services in the PRC
included property management fees and property
consulting service fees are recognised when services are
rendered in accordance with the terms of the agreements
and value-added services is recognised when services are
rendered.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(m) Revenue recognition (Continued)

(iv)

(vi)

Revenue from the provision of property
management services in the PRC (Continued)

The Group are entitled to retain the full amount of received
property management fees on a lump sum basis. By
receiving such the property management fees, the Group
shall bear expenses associated with, among others, staff,
cleaning, garbage disposal, gardening, security and
general overheads covering the common areas. During the
term of the contract,
management fees the Group collected is not sufficient to
cover all the expenses incurred, the Group is not entitled to
request the property owners to pay the shortfall.
Accordingly, on a lump sum basis, the Group recognises
as revenue the full amount of property management fees
the Group charged to the property owners and property
developers when services are provided, and recognises
the expenses as costs of services the Group incurred in
connection with performing our services.

if the amount of property

Revenue from rental income under operating
leases

Rental income receivable under operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments over the
periods covered by the lease term.

Interest income

Interest income is accrued on a time basis by reference to
the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate
applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of
the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on
initial recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
REERRMET (E)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
HE2017F12831BIEFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(n)

Employee benefits

(i)

Short term employee benefits and contributions
to defined contribution retirement plan

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions
to defined contribution retirement plans and the cost of
non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which the
associated services are rendered by employees. Where
payment or settlement is deferred and the effect would be
material, these amounts are stated at their present values.

The Group participates in a Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme (“the MPF Scheme”) under the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for all
qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The MPF Scheme is a
defined contribution retirement plan administered by
independent trustees. Under the MPF Scheme, the Group
and its employees are each required to make contributions
to the plan at 5% of the employees’ relevant income,
subject to a cap of monthly relevant income of HK$30,000.
Contributions to the MPF scheme vest immediately. The
assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those
of the Group, in fund under the control of trustees.

The PRC subsidiary of the Group also participates in a
defined contribution retirement benefit scheme (“the PRC
Scheme”) organised by the PRC municipal and provincial
government authorities whereby the PRC subsidiary is
required to contribute a certain percentage of their payroll
to the retirement benefit scheme. The Group has accrued
for the required contributions which are remitted to the
respective local government authorities when the
contributions become due. The local government
authorities are responsible for the pension obligations
payable to the retired employees covered under the PRC
Schemes.

The total expenses recognised in profit or loss represents
contributions payable to these schemes by the Group at
rates specified in the rules of the schemes. The Group has
no other material obligation for payment of retirement
benefits beyond the contributions as described above.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(n) Employee benefits (Continued)

(i

(il

Termination benefit

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of when
the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of those
benefits and when it recognises restructuring costs
involving the payment of termination benefits.

Share option scheme

The Company operates a share option scheme for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the Group’s
operations. Employees (including directors) of the Group
receive remuneration in the form of share-based payments
whereby employees render services as consideration for
equity instruments (“equity-settled transactions”).

For share options granted under the share option scheme,
the fair value of the employee’s services rendered in
exchange for the grant of the options is recognised as an
expense and credited to share option reserve under equity.
The total amount to be expensed over the vesting period is
determined by reference to the fair value of the options
granted at the grant date. At the end of each reporting
period, the Group revises its estimates of the number of
options that is expected to become exercisable. It
recognises the impact of the revision of the original
estimates, if any, in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive
corresponding adjustment to share option reserve over the
remaining vesting period.

income, and a

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified,
as a minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms
had not been modified if the original terms of the award are
met. In addition, an expense is recognised for any
modification, which increases the total fair value of the
share-based payments, or is otherwise beneficial to the

employee as measured at the date of modification.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
REERRMET (E)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
HE2017F12831BIEFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(n)

(o)

(p)

Employee benefits (Continued)

(iliy Share option scheme (Continued)

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as
if it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any
expense not yet recognised for the award is recognised
immediately. However, if a new award is substituted for the
cancelled award, and is designated as a replacement
award on the date that it is granted, the cancelled and new
awards are treated as if they were a modification of the
original award, as described in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as
additional share dilution in the computation of earnings per
share, if any.

Leases

Leases which do not transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to the Group are classified as operating
leases. Where the Group has the use of assets under operating
leases, payments made under the leases are charged to profit or
loss in equal instalments over the accounting periods covered by
the lease terms, except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the pattern of benefits to be derived from the
leased asset. Lease incentives received are recognised in profit
or loss as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
made. Lease should recognise the aggregate benefit of
incentives as a reduction of rental expense over the lease term.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of those
assets. The capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases when
the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.
Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs capitalised. All other
borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are
incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that
an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(@)

(r

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in the
respective functional currency (i.e. the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates) at the rates
of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At the
end of the reporting period, monetary items denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that
date. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are recognised
in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of the
Group (i.e. HK$) at the rate of exchange prevailing at the end of
the reporting period, and their income and expenses are
translated at the average exchange rates for the period, unless
exchange rates fluctuate significantly during that period, in which
case, the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of transactions
are used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under
the heading of exchange reserve.

Related parties

(A) A person, or a close member of that person’s
family, is related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(ii) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or the Group’s parents.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
REERRMET (E)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
HE2017F12831BIEFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

() Related parties (Continued)

(B) An entity is related to the Group is any of the
following conditions applies:

(i

(iii)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viil)

the entity and the Group are members of the same
group (which means that each parent, subsidiary
and fellow subsidiary is related to the others);

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member
of a group of which the other entity is a member);

both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third party;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (A); or

a person identified in (A)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity); and

the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a

part, provides key management personnel services
to the Group or to the parents of the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

GRE KRR (E)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
HE2017F12A31BILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. TESTHRwm

(Continued)

(s) Segment report

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the consolidated financial statements, are identified
from the financial information provided regularly to the Group’s
most senior executive management for the purposes of allocating
resources to, and assessing the performance of, the Group’s
various lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated for
financial reporting purposes unless the segments have similar
economic characteristics and are similar in respect of the nature
of products and services, the nature of production processes,
the type or class of customers, the methods used to distribute
the products or provide the services, and the nature of the
regulatory environment. Operating segments which are not
individually material may be aggregated if they share a majority of
these criteria.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS 5. & K€ M B % (&3t

AND ESTIMATES

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 4 to the consolidated financial statements,
management is required to make judgments, estimates and
assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that
are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and
underlying assumptions are based on historical experience and other
information that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ
from these estimates.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

REERRMET (E)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
HE2017F12831BIEFE

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgments, apart from those
involving estimations, which have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognised in the financial statements:

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial period.

(i)

(ii)

Business combination

The recognition of business combination requires the Group
making of judgment and estimation in relation to the purchase
price allocation for the acquisition over the fair value of the
acquired assets and the assumed liabilities of the acquired entity.
If any unallocated portion is positive it is recognised as goodwill
and if negative, it is recognised in the consolidated statement of
profit and loss or other comprehensive income.

Impairment of goodwill

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered any
impairment. For the purposes of impairment reviews, the
recoverable amount of goodwill is determined based on value-in-
use calculations. The value-in-use calculations primarily use cash
flow projections based on five years financial budgets approved
by management. There are a number of assumptions and
estimates involved in the preparation of cash flow projections for
the period covered by the approved budgets. Key assumptions
include the expected growth in revenues, timing of future capital
expenditures, growth rates and selection of discount rates to
reflect the risks involved. Management prepares the financial
budgets reflecting actual and prior year performance and market
development expectations. Judgment is required to determine
key assumptions adopted in the cash flow projections and
changes to key assumptions can significantly affect these cash
flow projections and therefore the results of the impairment
reviewed.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND EST'MATES (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment
and intangible asset

In applying the accounting policy on property, plant and
equipment and intangible asset with respect to depreciation and
amortisation, management estimates the useful lives of various
categories of property, plant and equipment and intangible asset
based on the historical experience of the actual useful lives of
assets of similar nature and functions. The Group will revise the
depreciation and amortisation charge where useful lives are
different to those previously estimated, or it will write off or write
down technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that have been
abandoned or sold.

Allowance for slow-moving and obsolete
inventories

Allowance for slow-moving and obsolete inventories is made
based on the ageing and estimated net realisable value of
inventories. The assessment of the allowance amount involves
judgment and estimates. Where the actual outcome in future is
different from the original estimate, such difference will impact
the carrying value of inventories and the allowance charge/write-
back in the period in which such estimate has been changed.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

=
)

Bt 75 R R B R ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
HE2017F12831BIEFE

5.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

(v) Impairment of non-financial assets (other
than goodwill)

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of
impairment for all non-financial assets at the end of each
reporting period. Non-financial assets with finite useful lives are
tested for impairment when there are indicators that the carrying
amounts may not be recoverable. An impairment exists when the
carrying value of an asset or a CGU exceeds its recoverable
amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal
and its value in use. The calculation of the fair value less costs of
disposal is based on available data from binding sales
transactions in an arm’s length transaction of similar assets or
observable market prices less incremental costs for disposing of
the asset. When value in use calculations are undertaken,
management must estimate the expected future cash flows from
the asset or CGU and choose a suitable discount rate in order to
calculate the present value of those cash flows.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The chief operating decision maker has been identified as the executive
directors and certain senior management (collectively referred to as the
“CODM”) that make strategic decisions. Information reported to the
CODM, for the purposes of resource allocation and assessment of
segment performance focuses on the types of goods or services
delivered or provided.

The CODM considers that the Group has three reporting segments,
namely IC business, being the design, development and sales of ICs,
money lending business and information security business, prior to the
completion of acquisition of a property management business in the
PRC on 20 January 2017. In addition, the Group disposed of
information security business during the year which is presented as
discontinued operation. Details are set out in note 14 to the
consolidated financial statements. Following the acquisition and the
disposal, the Group was engaged in three business segments, namely
IC business, money lending business and property management
business in the PRC. The CODM regularly reviews the nature of their
operations and the products and services. Each of the Group’s
business segments represents a strategic business unit that offers
products and services which are subject to risks and returns that are
different from those of the other business segments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

GRE KRR (E)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
HE2017F12A31BILFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. TEER @
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results from UTAREREEDIE DM ARE
continuing operations and assets and liabilities by reportable operating SEEEEBWENEENEERARB
segments: LA
() Segment results () oEE
2017
2017 £
Money Property
IC Lending Management Total
ERE ME YEER &5t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
F#& T F#& T F#&E T FE T
Segment revenue pal: L
Revenue from external 3k B 4N R & 5 ) U 25
customers 19,639 19,676 36,610 75,925
Segment results DEEE (2,907) 12,228 16,990 26,311
Bank interestincome R 1T B U A 1
Finance cost M EA (857)
Corporate administration 7> 2 17 B Ak 2K
costs (9,204)
Profit before tax from B AT K QFE KL
continuing operations % 7% 2 & F| 16,251
Income tax expense i f > (6,386)
Profit for the year from 26 [ #5548 48 & ¥ 7%
continuing operations 2 £E 1A % 7l 9,865
Segment assets DEEE 9,952 153,493 21,036 184,481
Unallocated assets ROBEE 140,943
Total assets WEE 325,424
Segment liabilities SHEE 2,228 4,297 4,545 11,070
Unallocated liabilites k9 B & & 1,013
Total liabilities waeEd 12,083
Other segment HihpHEH
information
Depreciation of property, 1% - E MR EITE
plant and equipment 1,148 312 45 1,505
Additions to property, REME - BE MR
plant and equipment 1,636 62 137 1,835
Other materialnon- H#tEKFREEE
cash items
Reversal of provision for ¥ 4 & 48 i 17 &5 18 #5
slow-moving and el
obsolete inventories 945 - - 945
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

REERRMET (E)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
HE2017F12831BIEFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

6.

oEE R @

(i) Segment results (Continued) () DEELE@E
2016
20164F
Money
IC Lending Total
EXER W& &aEr
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FAT AT FAT
Segment revenue 2 EB U =
Revenue from external customers REINABEFPHRE 23,908 27,012 50,920
Segment results DEEE (2,249 14,671 12,422
Bank interest income RITF B WA 5
Finance cost W& A (354)
Corporate administration costs 1 EITHBUK AR (3,073)
Profit before tax from continuing BREAIREESEEL 2
operations i 9,000
Income tax expense gt (2,173)
Profit for the year from continuing REBEREEBRZ
operations F N 6,827
Segment assets D ERE E 11,826 260,215 272,041
Assets related to discontinued BRI EEBNEE
operation 11,265
Unallocated assets KOBEEE 29,837
Total assets HmEE 313,143
Segment liabilities PEMEE 1,349 2,238 3,687
Liabilities related to discontinued ERIFEEXBEMNAR
operation 7,100
Unallocated liabilities AABEARE 521
Total liabilities HwEE 11,208
Other segment information HiaHar
Depreciation of property, plant and ME MENREITE
equipment 1,213 141 1,354
Additions to property, plant and RNEWE  BER&E
equipment 627 737 1,364
Other material non-cash items HMEARFBRLER
Provision for slow-moving and obsolete & &5 & 18 i 17 & # 45
inventories 259 — 259

Segment revenue reported above represents revenue generated
from external customers. There were no inter-segment sales
during the year ended 31 December 2017 (2016: Nil).

LWE2RzDBREBINATP
EA W B 22017412 A 31
B 1t FE I &5 3 E 8% (2016
F:F)o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

0]

(ii)

Segment results (Continued)

Segment results represent the profit earned/incurred by each
segment without allocation of other income and corporate
administration costs including directors’ emoluments, investment
and other income, other gains and losses, and income tax
expenses. This is the measure reported to the CODM for the
purposed of resources allocation and assessment of segment
performance.

Information about major customers from
continuing operations

The Group's revenue from customers which accounted for 10%
or more of the Group's total revenue from continuing operations
are as follows:

wRE B SRR MR ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

HE2017F12A31BILFE

6. DEER @

(i)

o EEE )

DEEKBIEE D BRI EEZ 4
Ao DEt A BLE M A R T
RA(BREEHH REREM
WA~ H st BB A R PR 1S 1
X)) b VAT ELERKEER
BADEEBERRFAEDHREAN
Bz

BESEER I TERR
1 & B
REERBGEAEEARGHFEK
BEBHEKZEI0%HALHNTR
WS

2017 2016

2017 F 20164

HK$’000 HK$’000

FER FET

Customer A ZEA N/A 5,131
T

Note: N/A: not applicable, as the corresponding figure did not contribute
over 10% of the total revenue of the Group.

The Group’s operations are located in Hong Kong and the PRC.
The geographical location of customers is based on the location
of the customers, irrespective of the origin of the goods or
services. The geographical location of the non-current assets is
based on the physical location of the asset, in the case of
property, plant and equipment. The Group’s revenue from
external customers by geographical location of customers and
information about its non-current assets (other than loans
receivables) by geographical location of the assets are set out
below:
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e MR IR AR B ()
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

HE2017F12831BIEFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

6. DHER =

~

operations (excluding loans receivables)

(i) Revenue information of continuing (i) REFELCLEBEIRE
operations from external customers F =& F
2017 2016
2017 % 2016 F
HK$’000 HK$'000
T#E T FAT
HK (place of domicile) EF4& (EEH) 25,331 30,770
The PRC, excluding HK and Taiwan R TEEEBAREE 48,599 19,2083
Korea 45 373 193
Taiwan = 153 264
Russia B2 Hy 1,465 485
Others Hifb 4 5
75,925 50,920
(iv) Non-current assets information of continuing (iv) BEREER 2 RBE

EES (BRERERMD)

2017 2016
20174 20165
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FAT
HK (place of domicile) B (Eii) 137,999 28,296
The PRC, excluding HK and Taiwan FE AEEEEREE 341 248
Taiwan & 2,362 1,666
140,702 30,210
7. REVENUE 7. W&

Revenue represents the net invoice value of goods sold after
allowances for returns and trade discounts, the value of services
rendered, and interest income from money lending business during the
year. An analysis of the Group’s revenue from continuing operations is

WaHEFAKHBREEREENNER
BREEEMMERFE  MEHRRBEH
BERKEREXRBOMBEA - A&
BRAFELEEBORESTMT

Megalogic Technology Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017

as follows:

2017 2016
20175 20164
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
Sales of ICs HEER T 18,229 22,335
Provision of ASIC services TE@%ASICHE?% 1,410 1,573
Interest from money lending business MEEBHFE 19,676 27,012
Provision of property management services REMEETERS 36,610 -
75,925 50,920
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
GRE KRR (E)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

HE2017F12A31BILFE

OTHER INCOME 8. Hay A

KERBREERTOHEMBA D0

An analysis of other income from continuing operations is as follows:

T

2017 2016
2017 & 20164
HK$’000 HK$'000
FH& T FET
Interest income from: R BULA -
— Bank deposit —HRITEFER 16 5
— Others —He 119 -
Sundry income HMIE U A 324 2
459 7
OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES 9. Hibhm=REBE

An analysis of other gains and losses from continuing operations is as
follows:

KEFBERLEEBNEMKE RERD

T -

2017 2016
20175 20164F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FE R AT
Bad debts R (136) -
Loss on disposal of property, HEME  BEREE
plant and equipment, net ZEBFE 2 -
Exchange loss, net ME W, 2 B 5 (150) (228)
Waive of accumulated interest on oA HZERE 2 255 8
promissory note 857 354
569 126
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
REERRMET (E)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

HE2017F12831BIEFE

10. FINANCE COST 10. B EH
An analysis of finance cost incurred in continuing operations is as BEKEEBMEENMGEER TN
follows: T
2017 2016
2017 F 20164
HK$’000 HK$’000
FE& T FHET
Accumulated interest on promissory note AHEZE 7 255 8 857 354
857 354
11. PROFIT BEFORE TAX 11. BR B Al 2 F
The Group’s profit before tax from continuing operations is arrived at REBKABESEEBOGRB ISR
after charging: 2Bk -
2017 2016
2017 F 2016 F
HK$’000 HK$'000
T& T FET
(a) Staff costs (@) BEIRAE
Staff costs including directors’ BREEEFWHEME AL
emoluments
— Salaries, allowances and benefits —%He EURREWEF
in kind 17,511 11,103
— Equity-settled share-based —REEERN TR
payments — 968
— Retirement benefit contributions — R B 843 341
18,354 12,412
(b) Other items (b) EtEE
Auditor’s remuneration 1% SR & B
— audit services — E R 633 535
— other services — H R 200 350
Cost of inventories recognised as BRAEAAINFERA
expenses (Note 21) (P 5E21) 13,734 17,406
Design and development costs B i k3D N 833 841
112
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
GRE KRR (E)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

HE2017F12A31BILFE

12. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND
FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

12.EERAEEREEHFMAL
Y B =

(@ EEME

RIEEB R AEH FE383(1) Ik kA
RI(BEEENZER) ROIE236
BEHNESHHOT :

(@) Remuneration of Directors

Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section 383(1) of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the
Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors)
Regulation are as follows:

Year ended 31 December 2017
HZ2017F12A31ALLEE

Salaries,
allowances Retirement
and benefits benefits
Name of Director Director’s fee in kind contributions Total
e 2R RIKER
Exps Exnmg BYER =t &4t = &t
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THERT THET THET THER
Executive Directors BITES
ZHANG Qing (Chairman) RE(F/E) - 2,361 18 2,379
SUNG Tak Wing Leo REE
(Chief Executive Officer) (T A#E#) - 2,366 18 2,384
LAU Mo £l
(Appointed on (20174
12 May 2017) 5R12HEZT) - 829 12 841
Non-Executive Directors kHTES
LIU Kam Lung BéE 137 - - 137
YE Jian R
(Resigned on (20174
31 August 2017) 8 A31HET) 91 - - o1
Independent Non-Executive BV FHITES
Directors
CHEUNG Chi Man Dennis REX 175 - - 175
KO Yin Wai =SEE 137 - - 137
CHIU Yu Wang WA R 137 - - 137
Total A&t 677 5,556 48 6,281
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

wRE IS R AR M A ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

HE2017F12831BIEFE

12. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND

FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS (Continued) Ay B

(@) Remuneration of Directors (Continued)

12.EEREEREEHFMAL

(a)

€ @)
= =

cAC )

Year ended 31 December 2016
HE2016F12 A1 BIEFE

Equity-
Salaries, settled
allowances share- Retirement
and benefits based benefits
Name of Director Director’s fee in kind payments  contributions Total
e 2UR MRt & B R RAE A
EEME BEEHRE EmEH % £ 5 5% BELTA &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FAT FAT FAT FHAT
Executive Directors
ZHANG Qing (Chairman) — 1,800 252 18 2,070
SUNG Tak Wing Leo
(Chief Executive Officer) - 1,800 629 18 2,447
Non-Executive Directors
LIU Kam Lung 129 — — — 129
YE Jian (Resigned on BB (R2017F
31 August 2017) 8H31HEIHT) 129 — — — 129
Independent Non- BAUFHTES
Executive Directors
CHEUNG Chi Man Dennis 162 - - - 162
KO Yin Wai 129 — - - 129
CHIU Yu Wang 129 — 87 — 216
Total 678 3,600 968 36 5,282
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12. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS (continued)

(b)

Five highest paid individuals’ remuneration

The five highest paid individuals of the Group included 3 (2016: 2)
directors of the Company, details of whose remuneration are set
out in above. Details of the remuneration for the year of the
remaining 2 (2016: 3) highest paid individuals are as follows:

wRE B SRR MR ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

HE2017F12A31BILFE

12.EENTBREHFHMAL
B B £ ()

b) EEESFMALHME

AEENAEESTMALTEF
BIEARRABIZH(2016F 1 2% ) &
ECHEMFBIALXEES -
FERNHBT28(20165F :38) &5
FHMALHOHEHFSOT

2017 2016

2017 F 20164

HK$’000 HK$’000

THE T FET

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind ~ # 4 -~ ZBL X E W@ F| 1,393 1,795
Retirement benefits contributions IRRAE A ET B 3k 36 47
1,429 1,842

The remuneration of 2 (2016: 3) non-director highest paid
individuals with the highest were all within Nil to HK$1,000,000.

None of emoluments has been paid to these individuals as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation
for loss of office during the financial year (2016: Nil). In addition,
none of the directors of the Company has waived or agreed to
waive any emoluments during the year (2016: Nil).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
REERRMET (E)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

HE2017F12831BIEFE

13. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 13. FTEHAX
An analysis of income tax expense from continuing operations is as KEAFERSEBNAERBE I HTH
follows: N
2017 2016
2017 & 20164
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FE& T A&
Current tax: RO EARR IR -
Charge for the year FALZE
Hong Kong Profits Tax BEEMEH 2,054 2173
PRC Enterprise Income Tax FRESEMGH 4,332 —
6,386 2,173
Hong Kong Profits Tax is provided at a rate of 16.5% on the estimated FRN - BENEHILZESENGTERDR
assessable profits for the year arising in Hong Kong during the year. BB A 2 16.5% 8 RIig 1 -
Under the Enterprise Income Tax (‘EIT”) law of the PRC and BEPHCEMRSH(OEMRER]) =
Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate of the PRC RO¥EMRGBREAZTHIEDN  PEENE R
subsidiary are subject to 25%. Bl Z TR B25% o
A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before tax at the HRBEANARARTREKILHHE AT
statutory rates for the jurisdictions in which the Company and the S RDERE R 2 B 5 A s FVAE R R 5t
majority of its subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax expense at the BEoMEBERY HERERHRFE 2R
effective tax rates are as follows: BHRZHEEROT
2017 2016
2017 & 20164F
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#E T FAT
Profit before tax from continuing operations 33 45 48 4 % 75 &4 (4 B4 A1 % A 16,251 9,000
Tax at the statutory tax rate BATERMEGTEMTIE 4,084 1,446
Expenses not deductible for tax B IE M F T °] 008 2 257 382
Income not subject to tax BAERBTBA (1) (@)
Tax losses not recognised AERRIBEEE 2,046 591
Tax losses utilised from previous periods AL ATEE 2 B EE - (245)
Tax charge from continuing operations atthe IR EMEH Kt E R G FELL ¥
effective rate B BIESZH 6,386 2,173
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

14. DISCONTINUED OPERATION

GRE KRR (E)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
HE2017F12A31BILFE

14. DR IEREERK

Disposal of information security business

On 25 April 2017, the Group entered into a sale and purchase
agreement to dispose of Maximus Group, which carried out all of the
Group’s information security business. The disposal was completed on
28 June 2017. Details of the assets and liabilities disposed of, and the
calculation of the loss on disposal are disclosed in note 35(d) to the

financial statements.

The profit for the year from the discontinued operation included in the

profit for year are set out below:

The comparative profit and cash flows from discontinued operation

have been re-presented to include the operations classification as

discontinued in the current year.

HEEMRZER

MR2017F4 /8250 AEBFIYL—1HE
EWE A EMaximusEE - EH EF R
EEFMBENMRLES -ZBELEER
2017F6R28HEK - EERBEZ
EURHEBBEZHAEFBRERMB
2% M 5E35(d) °

RED RIS EBFREFNERS
MELHA -

EEJRAEREEEXHOLLE R T
EREERE Ut AXFEER LS
E 3Vl

REISHEBBRAT 2017F3

2017 2016

2017 £ 20164

HK$’000 HK$’000

FBx FAT

Revenue IR &= 7,594 9,832
Cost of sales and services SHE KBRS A AR (1,728) (2,354)
Gross profit ER 5,866 7,478
Other income HAb A 1 350
Other gains and losses Hoh Uy 7 M T 1B = @11
Staff costs B TA (2,089) (1,517)
Depreciation and amortisation & K& i (362) (292)
Operating lease rental — land and buildings &2 EM & — L RNEF (274) (370)
Other operation expenses HaZERM% (390) (861)
Profit before tax BR B AT R R 2,752 4,477
Income tax expense 8 fif X (457) (712)
2,295 3,765

Loss on disposal of operation (Note 35(d)) & 2 # /&5 18 (Bt 5 35(d)) (1,833) —

Profit for the year from discontinued FARBCRIELEERN
operation & A 462 3,765
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REERRMET (E)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
HE2017F12831BIEFE

14. DISCONTINUED OPERATION (continued)

14. R IEBEEE @

Megalogic Technology Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017

2017 2016
2017 F 2016 4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHET FET
Profit for the year from discontinued REERIEKEEERE ZFNAN
operation is arrived at after charging: A B
(@) Staff costs @@ EBIKAK
— salaries, allowances and benefits — e EHEREWER
in kind 1,998 1,389
— contributions to retirement benefits — RIRE R FH 8 K
scheme 91 128
2,089 1,517
(o) Other items (o) HfIEE
Auditor’s remuneration 1% 25 B % B 38 75
2017 2016
2017 F 2016 4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHET FET
The net cash flows from discontinued RECKRIEEEEBNFHES
operation is as follows: MEBWT :
Net cash from operating activities RELEES 2 FHEE 5,126 1,545
Net cash from/(used in) investing kE/ (BR)IREERSZ
activities FIH e 1 (2,118)
Net cash inflow/(outflow) FRERACRE) 5,127 (573)
HK cents HK cents
A pee (I
(Loss)/earnings per share: T (BB & -
Basic and diluted, from the discontinued EXMEE REOKRIELEE
operation (Note 16) 275 (H3E16) (0.04) 0.15
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

wRE B SRR MR ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

HE2017F12A31BILFE

15. DIVIDENDS 15. R 2

No dividends was declared or paid during the year ended 31 December
2017 (2016: Nil).

HZE2017F12A31BILFE T ETIK
R EARE (2016 F « &) ©

16. EARNINGS PER SHARE 16. R & A

(a) Basic earnings per share

The calculation of basic earnings per share are based on the
profit/(loss) attributable to owners of the Company and the
weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during the
year.

The Group had no potentially dilutive ordinary shares in issue
during the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016.

The calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share are based

(a)

BREXREF

BREABNDREARAHESE
AEMESEF (BB RFARABEIT
LRABRMEFAHBEE -

H E20174F R2016%F12 4318 1
FEAEBETEBEHEE BT
T -

BERERAREFTRNTIRATE

on: £EHE
2017 2016
20174 20164F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FHET
Profit/(loss) attributable to owners of Z< A T B A FE45 % F
the Company: J(E58) -
From continuing operations REFELEED 10,298 6,827
From discontinued operation RECRIEEFET (571) 2,071
9,727 8,898
Number of shares (thousands)
BROHE (FR)
Shares & &
Weighted average number of ordinary FADEITEBER
shares in issue during the year MmEFHE A 1,397,782 1,388,746
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
REERRMET (E)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

HE2017F12831BIEFE

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 17. % BERKE

Computer Office Motor Furniture Leasehold
Equipment Instruments Equipment Vehicle and Fixture Improvement Total
EMRE I8 BWAZERHE RE BREREE HEPELE &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET FHT FET FET FHET FHT
Cost A
At 1 January 2016 H2016F1 A 1H 415 11,414 53 - 11 546 12,539
Acquisition of subsidiaries 1 B Y/ 8 ) - - 727 182 100 580 1,589
Additions NE 20 620 263 — 98 597 1,598
Disposals e - - - - ®) - @)
At 31 December 2016 20166124318
and 1 January 2017 K2017F1A1H 435 12,034 1,043 182 304 1,723 15,721
Acquisition of subsidiaries g3 0N
(Note 34(c)) (Pt 5£34(c)) 16 - 18 - - - 34
Additions "E 82 1,610 36 120 1 15 1,864
Disposal of subsidiaries HEHBAR
(Note 35(c)) (B 5£35(c)) - - 910) (182) (103) (627) (1,822)
Disposals HE (1) (226) - - (6] - (240)
At 31 December 2017 R2017F12A31H 522 13,418 187 120 199 1,111 15,557
Accumulated depreciation REtiTE
At 1 January 2016 H2016F1 B 1H 269 8,689 26 - 50 402 9,436
Acquisition of subsidiaries Ui B B 8 2 ) - - 441 106 42 139 728
Charge for the year FRLH 82 1,176 131 30 38 310 1,767
Written back on disposals R E R R - - - - @) - @)
At 31 December 2016 20166124318
and 1 January 2017 K2017F1A1H 351 9,865 598 136 125 851 11,926
Acquisition of subsidiaries g3 00N
(Note 34(c) (W13E34(c)) 16 - 15 - - - 31
Charge for the year FRZH 82 1,123 127 48 44 292 1,716
Eliminated on disposal of HEMBAREEH
subsidiaries (Note 35(c)) (Wt #£35(c)) - - (632) (159) (60) (281) (1,132)
Written back on disposals R ERER (1) (226) - - (1) - (238)
At 31 December 2017 R2017F12A31H 438 10,762 108 25 108 862 12,303
Net carrying amount REFEE
At 31 December 2017 20174124318 84 2,656 79 95 91 249 3,254
At 31 December 2016 R2016F 12 A31H 84 2,169 445 46 179 872 3,795
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

wRE B SRR MR ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

HE2017F12A31BILFE

18. GOODWILL 18. B &

HK$’'000
FET

Cost and carrying amount RARREE
At 1 January 2016 ©K20164F181H -
Acquisition of subsidiaries 1 58 Bt /B 2 7 27,280
At 31 December 2016 and 1 January 2017 R2016F 12 A31H &2017F1A1H 27,280
Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 34(d)) U 55 B B8~ J) (B 51 34(d)) 137,448
Disposal of subsidiaries (Note 35(d)) o E B8 A7) (B 5E35(d)) (27,280)
At 31 December 2017 M20179F 12 431 H 137,448

Impairment testing of goodwill

Goodwill acquired through business combination is allocated to
property management business in th PRC CGU in 2017 and information
security CGU in 2016 for impairment testing.

Property management business in the PRC CGU

The recoverable amount of the property management CGU has been
determined based on a value in use calculation using cash flow
projections from financial budgets covering a five-year period approved
by senior management. The discount rate applied to the cash flow
projections is 29.8% and cash flow beyond the five-year period are
extrapolated using a growth rate of 2.9%.

Assumptions were used in the value in use calculation of the property
management CGU as at 31 December 2017. The following describes
each key assumption on which the management has based its cash
flow projections to undertake impairment testing of goodwill:

Budgeted turnover — Budgeted turnover is based on the expected

growth rate of the market in which the CGU operates and the expected
market share of the CGU.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

GREERRMET (E)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
HE2017F12A31BIEFE

18. GOODWILL (Continued)

Property management business in the PRC CGU (Continued)

Budgeted gross margin — The basis used to determine the value
assigned to the budgeted gross margin is the average gross margin
achieved in the year immediately before the budget year, increased for
expected efficiency improvements and expected market development.

Discount rate — The discount rate used is before tax and reflects

specific risks relating to the CGU.

The values assigned to key assumptions are consistent with external

information sources.

Based on the annual impairment test performed, no impairment loss
has been provided in relation to the property management CGU. The
recoverable amount of the CGU is higher than its carrying amount.

Information security CGU

The recoverable amount of the CGU is determined by the value-in-use.
The calculation was carried out by cash flow projections based on
financial budgets approved by the management covering a five-year
period. Cash flows for the five-year period are estimated based on past
performance, the management’s expectation for market development
and a pre-tax discount rate of 12.8%. Cash flows beyond the five-year
period are extrapolated using an estimated growth rate of 3.1%. The
estimated growth rates used are comparable to the average inflation

rate of the last 10 years.

The key assumption used in the value-in-use calculation is the average
annual growth rate of turnover, which is determined based on the
management’s expectation for market development. The discount rate
used is pre-tax and reflects specific risks relating to this segment. Any
adverse change in the key assumptions could reduce the recoverable

amount below carrying amount.

The management reassessed the recoverable amount of the CGU as at
31 December 2016 by reference to the discounted cash flow
calculation with the above estimation and was of the opinion that no
impairment loss should be recognised as the recoverable amount of
the CGU is higher than its carrying amount.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
GRE KRR (E)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

HE2017F12A31BILFE

19. INTANGIBLE ASSET 19. BEEE

Capitalised
development
costs Software Total
BERLH
8 A B®H &5t
HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’'000
FAET FA&T A&
Cost 24N
At 1 January 2016 K2016%F1 511 — — -
Addition through internal development 3% 38 A 2B 2R B 1,884 — 1,884
Transfer (out)/in () #A (1,884) 1,884 -
At 31 December 2016 MR2016F 12 A31H X

and 1 January 2017 201741 A1H — 1,884 1,884
Disposal of subsidiaries HE M B A A

(Note 35(c)) (M 7E35(c)) — (1,884) (1,884)
At 31 December 2017 2017512 A31H — — —
Accumulated amortisation E-Sig: £
At 1 January 2016 M201646F1 A1 H — - -
Charge for the year FARTH - 62 62
At 31 December 2016 MR2016F 12 A31H X

and 1 January 2017 2017%F1 A1H — 62 62
Charge for the year FRETH — 187 187
Eliminated on disposal of subsidiaries & i J& 2 & B ¥ 4%

(Note 35(c)) (Pt 3£ 35(c)) - (249) (249)
At 31 December 2017 M20174F 12 431 H — — —
Net carrying amount: REFE:

At 31 December 2017 M20174 12 431 H — — —
At 31 December 2016 R20164F12 A31H — 1,822 1,822

MR RARELEZEBVEE  §#f
BRI K AR R2016F B ERL R IR - 1%
SEBRAEAHIAERERS

Development costs of software were capitalised during the year 2016
as the software was internally generated intangible asset, with definite
useful lives is amortised on a straight-line basis over 5 years.

The software mainly represented a method for parsing and correlating B E 95— AR &8 A SUE R AT
analysis of input data. RAEE DT 3 0% ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
REERRMET (E)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

HE2017F12831BIEFE

20. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH 20. B0 BEERBARIZEK
MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING FEERER
INTERESTS
Details of the Group's subsidiaries that have BEEAEEREZZE
material non-controlling interests are set out MBARZHEBWNT
below:
Percentage of Profit/(loss)
equity interest for the year
held by non- allocated to = Accumulated
controlling non-controlling non-controlling
Name of subsidiary interests interests interests
FERER SEWTFHFER
BFAEZ ERZFRN )
= NI REELE BT (EBE) FERER
2017 2017 2017
2017 5§ 2017 2017 F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET
MiniLogic HK (note (i)
WalmEES (M) 40% (432) 1,504
2016 2016 2016
20164 20164F 20164F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT FHET
Maximus Consulting HK (note (ji))
BR VA & AR [ (B A (i) 45% 1,694 1,699
Notes: M -
0] MiniLogic HK became an indirectly-owned subsidiary during the year. 0] HEASREARERANKABERBEAR
7l e
(ii) Maximus Consulting (HK) was disposed during the year. (ii) FAEMERNFEFRELE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

20. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH 20.

MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING
INTERESTS (Continued)

Details of the Group's subsidiaries that have
material non-controlling interests are set out
below: (Continued)

The following table summarised the financial information of the above
subsidiaries. The amounts disclosed are before any intra-company
eliminations.

GRE KRR (E)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
HE2017F12A31BILFE

EREZCEE
MEBARZHERMT @ @

TREMIA LB RARZHBER
KESEREEANRBMETEMEH
GOk

2017 2016
2017 20164
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FERT FAT
Maximus
MiniLogic HK  Consulting HK
HMEEREE HAEMER
Current assets mEEE 7,201 9,223
Non-current assets IERBEE 2,698 2,688
Current liabilities mEBE (6,139) (7,794)
Non-current liabilities BB E = (342)
Equity attributable to owners of the Company Zx 2 &) % B A JE 15 7 25 (2,256) (2,076)
Non-controlling interests IR E R (1,504) (1,699)
Revenue Wz 19,639 9,832
Expenses -3 (22,536) (6,066)
Profit and total comprehensive income for F AR A & 2w
the year attributable to: BEEBR :
Owners of the Company ZIN/NCTEZ N (2,465) 2,072
Non-controlling interests I3 AR = (432) 1,694
(2,897) 3,766
Dividend paid to non-controlling interests S FIEERER KA = -
Net cash from operating activities KE RS 2R e TR 1,644 1,545
Net cash used in investing activities WEGEEFMA 2R FH (1,635) (2,118)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash BeRBESEEME M CR D
equivalents R 9 (573)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
REERRMET (E)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

HE2017F12831BIEFE

21. INVENTORIES 21. 78
2017 2016
2017 & 2016 4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Raw materials E MR 655 450
Work in progress RS 1,520 2,546
Finished goods X G 2,572 3,561
4,747 6,557
Less: Provision for slow-moving and obsolete S : & 44 & i@ s 77 & B
inventories (1,180) (2,125)
3,567 4,432
During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group made a reversal HE0I7TF12A3MHIEFE - KEEE
of provision of approximately HK$945,000 for slow-moving and HH % 8 12 3 B A7 R 1] 4) /% 945,000
obsolete inventories (2016: provision of HK$259,000). 77T (2016 4F : #45259,00078 7T) ©
The above amounts were included in “cost of inventories recognised as Ll eHWA ASEFENIBRIEARX
an expense” for the respective years. WEEMNA] -
22. TRADE RECEIVABLES 22. EWWE Z RN
2017 2016
2017 5 20164
HK$’000 HK$'000
FB T FAT
Trade receivables JEUWE 5 IR 3K 4,107 7,985
Recognised services receivables B 7 3R AR 75 FE W BR 3K - 1,866
4,107 9,851
The recognised service receivables were services performed to EERRGERERBERBITER 2R
customers pending for invoicing, which is subject to mutually agreed % BIREAR B 1T 2 3RAE5K K
payments terms. HARE o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

22. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

(@)

Ageing analysis

The Group normally allows a credit period ranging from “cash on
delivery” to 120 days to its trade customers. The following is an
ageing analysis of trade receivables at the end of each reporting
period, presented based on the invoice date:

wRE B SRR MR ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

HE2017F12A31BILFE

22. EIRE 5 R @

AR 2 AT

AEBBEREESREPRMH#HNE
ANRIE120BNEEHR - UTR
REFEMRREZBHZ2IW
W E 5 IR BRI D AT

2017 2016

2017 20164

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FAT

0-30 days 0-30H 2,743 5,130
31-60 days 31-60 H 918 1,675
61-90 days 61-90 H 446 834
More than 90 days @90 H - 346
4,107 7,985

The Group has implemented policies that require appropriate
credit checks on potential customers before granting credit. The
Group has adopted a policy of only dealing with creditworthy
counterparties. The Group’s exposure and credit ratings of its
counterparties are monitored by management. The maximum
credit risk of such financial assets is represented by the carrying
value of asset.

Before accepting any new customer, the Group uses an internal
credit assessment process to assess the potential customer’s
credit quality and defines credit limits of the customer. Credit
limits attributed to customers are reviewed by the management
regularly. In determining recoverability of a trade receivable, the
Group considers any change in credit quality of the trade
receivable from the date credit was initially granted up to the end
of the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

REERRMET (E)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
HE2017F12831BIEFE

22. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

(b) Trade receivables that are not impaired

Included in the Group’s trade receivables balance are debtors
with approximately aggregate carrying amount of HK$3,252,000
and HK$3,144,000 which are past due as at 2017 and 2016
respectively for which the Group has not provided for impairment
loss. The Group does not hold any collateral or other credit
enhancements over its trade receivables balances. Trade

receivables are non-interest bearing.

The ageing analysis of the Group’s trade receivables that are not
individually nor collectively considered to be impaired are as

follows:

22. EIRE 5 R @

(b) WEREEZEWE S KRN

AREEEWRE SRR P
EREMAES X4 A3,252,000/8 7T
}%.3,144,0007% 7T &) & WL 3R 18 7%
ELHBEE D B 2017 F %2016 F
WmE - MASEERAREBIEE
PEE AEETERBEKE SR
RESBFEAMNERDIEME
B oaiai - FEWE 2 BRI 5T
B o

o

AEBEYEMBHREBRE R
BENEREZRFREDTNOT

2017 2016

2017 20164

HK$’000 HK$’000

FExT FAT

Neither past due nor impaired FE 48 BRSO (B 855 4,841
Past due but not considered impaired w0 HR B R A R AE VB

1-30 days 1-30H 2,787 874

31-60 days 31-60 H 465 1,100

61-90 days 61-90 H - 824

More than 90 days HiBo0H - 346

3,252 3,144

4,107 7,985

Trade receivables that were past due but not impaired related to
a number of independent customers for whom there is no recent
history of default. Based on past experience, management
believes that no impairment allowance is necessary as there has
not been a significant change in credit quality up to the date of
this report and the balances are still considered fully recoverable.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

23. LOANS RECEIVABLES

GRE KRR (E)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
HE2017F12A31BILFE

23. EWE R

2017 2016
2017 20164
HK$’000 HK$'000
T& T FET
Loans to customers EXRTEZHERP 134,557 253,968
Accrued interest receivables JE Uk FE 5T R B 865 1,986
135,422 255,954

Analysed as: DA
Non-current assets IERBEE 3,331 5,216
Current assets TmENEE 132,091 250,738
135,422 255,954

Loans receivables arise from the Group’s money lending business.
They are repayable according to repayment schedules, normally with
contractual maturity between 3 months and 12 years as at 31
December 2017 (2016: between 1 month and 12 years). Loans to
customers bear annual interest rate ranging from 6.5%-18% as at 31
December 2017 (2016: 10%-26.4%).

Except for loans receivables with a carrying amount of approximately
HK$16,519,000 (2016: HK$86,972,000) as at 31 December 2017,
which are secured by collaterals provided by customers, all loans
receivables as at 31 December 2017 and 2016 are unsecured.

The following is an ageing analysis of loans receivables at the end of
each reporting period, presented based on the remaining period to
contractual maturity date:

EREFTAAEECHREEBEE - R
2017128310 EREBEERKHERE
FoAHEBA RN TIEAE12F
(20164 : 11 A =124 ) - 2017412
A31H MEFPREHERZN F6.5%
F18% 2 F F) F 5 B (2016 F 1 10% =
26.4%) °

B MR2017F12A31H Bk @ B 4 A
16,519,0007% 7T (2016 4F : 86,972,000
TOMBEWRE R ERFIRM 2\ R E
BRI - R2017F k201612 A31H
) BT 8 JE R B TR A0 A E A o

NTREREAREZHBTHHEEEGH D
HIB 252 B E SRR DT -

2017 2016

20175 20164

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FH& T

Within 1 year 1F R 132,091 250,738
Over 1 year and up to 5 years FRE1FE5F = 432
Over 5 years A5 F 3,331 4,784
135,422 255,954

The above balances are neither past due nor impaired.

The Group has implemented policies that require appropriate credit
checks on potential customers before granting loan.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

=g E e )
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

HE2017F12831BIEFE

23.

LOANS RECEIVABLES (Continued)

The Group’s exposure and credit ratings of its counterparties are
monitored by management. The maximum credit risk of such financial
assets is represented by the carrying value of asset. Before accepting
any new customer, the Group uses an internal credit assessment
process to assess the potential customer’s credit quality and defines
credit limits.

In determining recoverability of loans receivables, the Group considers
any change in credit quality of the loans receivables from the date of
the loan was initially granted up to the end of the reporting period.

23.

L ALSSENT )

EEESEEASEMEE 0 ER&E
HBFITWEEFL - HHEZREENR
SEERRREEMNEREE - REME
MMEF 28 NEBERAINEEF
HREFAFHEEEPNEEERZRRA
EfEERSE-

ETRUEFNAKRDREER ~AEH
EEEVABRLEREAEREHKRE
WEREELAEZMWEMEE -

24. OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND 24. HihEW T IE - ®REKkTE
PREPAYMENTS T RIE

2017 2016

2017 5 20164F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FAET

Deposit for purchase of raw materials RERME ZEZ2 318 926

Deposit for acquisition (Note) W 88 2 & (M 5E) 1,000 -

Rental and utilities deposits for leases Mz He RKEERS 659 806

Prepayment for legal and professional fees %12 & B % & [ 78 1< 2018 190 81
Prepayment of utilities and insurance for MEHEBARBEIKE &1%[5

property owner and tenant 2 BT FRIA 342 -

Others HAth 104 191

2,613 2,004

Note:  Since the acquisition of health supplement business was terminated on
15 January 2018, the deposit was refunded in January 2018.
25. BANK BALANCES AND CASH

Bank balances and cash comprise cash and short-term deposits with
an original maturity of three months or less which are held with financial
institutions and carry interest at prevailing market rates. The average
effective interest rates of the Group’s bank balances are 0.40% and
0.01% per annum, as at 31 December 2017 and 2016 respectively.

M BRMREEREBOWRIER2018F1 A
158 421F - BUZ S B R2018F1 AR -

25. BITHBRIR S

R1T4

HERI KRR =

Em IR BRERe RTERR e/
& A s AT KR IAR

TS R BHEHF R - R20174F

K2016F12 831 H » KEBEITA

& B Y

FHERFEFED R A0.40% X% 0.01% °

2017 2016

2017 & 20164

HK$’000 HK$’000

FE T FET

Cash at bank and in hand ROKEFRS 39,013 8,005
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
GRE KRR (E)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

HE2017F12A31BILFE

26. TRADE PAYABLES 26. EFE F RN
An ageing analysis of the Group’s trade payables, presented based on REBRZSREARIREZAHZYN G
the invoice date at the end of each reporting period, is as follows: BRESEZTOESR ST T :
2017 2016
2017 F 20164
HK$’000 HK$'000
F& T FET
0-30 days 0-30H 799 383
31-60 days 31-60 H 493 160
1,292 543
27. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 27. H {th FE {3 &% FEFT 1B
2017 2016
2017 20164
HK$’000 HK$'000
T#&ET FET
Receipt in advance from customers FBWERPF 2 RIE 1,206 1,972
Deposit received BiizE 546 507
Accrued expenses JEEHE A 3,053 672
Other payables H A FE A 5K IB 802 216
Amount due to a former director JER—RIAIEEE ZRIE 48 48
5,655 3,415
The amount due to a former director is unsecured, interest-free and BN —AIEES 2 RELRELRR 2
repayable on demand. BYEEEREE-
28. AMOUNT DUE TO A FORMER NON- 28. Bt —REAIEB AT Z
CONTROLLING INTEREST SHAREHOLDER — VA EFFIERERRKR
OF A FORMER SUBSIDIARY H2ZME
The amount was unsecured, interest-free and fully repaid during the ZHBAEER RETRERNE LR
year. B o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

REERRMET (E)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
HE2017F12831BIEFE

29. PROVISION 29. B 1&

2017 2016
20175 20164F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FH T FAT

Provisions for long service payments REIRR TS © B 1
At 1 January m1A1H 123 —
Acquisition of subsidiaries WM B AT — 123
Disposal of subsidiaries (Note 35(c)) BB A E (M FE35(c)) (123) —
At 31 December MR12A31H — 123

30. PROMISSORY NOTE

30. & HEE

On 1 May 2016, the Company issued promissory note (“PN”) with an
aggregate principal amount of HK$17,500,000 as part of the
consideration for acquiring 55% of the issued share capital of Maximus
Venture Holdings Limited. The fair value of PN was approximately
HK$17,500,000 on 1 May 2016. PN bear interest at 6% per annum
and matured at the third anniversary from the date of issue, being 30
April 2019. The interest rate on initial recognition is 6% per annum.

On 20 January 2017, the Company issued PN with an aggregate
principal amount of HK$40,000,000 as part of the consideration for
acquiring entire issued share capital of Quick Wit Ventures Limited (the
“Quick Wit”). The fair value of PN was approximately HK$40,000,000
on 20 January 2017. PN bear interest at 6% per annum and matured
at the third anniversary from the date of issue, being 19 January 2020.
The interest rate on initial recognition is 6% per annum.

The movement of the carrying amount of PN during the year ended 31
December 2017 and 2016 was set out below:

R2016F5A1H KRR BEITRAEAS
#17,500,00078 7T 2 A K ZHE ([ & =
1)+ 1E & U EE Maximus Venture Holdings
Limited 2 55% B B TR A B 3 5 K (& »
AR EENR2016F5 1B 2 RAFELN B
17,500,000 7T ° & X 2 45 1% F 7| K6 [E
AAEEREITHHBAE =BT
BN2019F 4 30H - R¥I T R KM F
MEABE -

R2017F1 8208 A AR BETHERS
%840,000,0007 7T 2 & X E2E - EAK
B# Quick Wit Ventures Limited ([ Quick Wit])
CERBEBHTRANBYNRE - &K
Z B R2017F1A20B 2 R FEHN A
40,000,000/ JT © & i BB R F H K6 [E
AEREREITHHRAE AT
B12020F 1 A19H - B X HER 2 F Fl &
BB[E -

B E20174 R2016%F 12 A31H It £ E
WANRZRETmEZSHHEI DT

2017 2016

20174 2016 4F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FHET

Issue of PN BITERHEE 40,000 17,500
Accumulated interest 27 8 857 354
Waive of accumulated interest MR RETF B (857) (354)
Early redemption REEE (40,000) (17,500)
At 31 December ®12 A31H - -
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31. DEFERRED TAXATION

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

wRE B SRR MR ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

HE2017F12A31BILFE

1. EER 18

(a) Deferred tax assets and liabilities () BRANELBBEEERE
recognised: & :
The components of deferred tax (assets)/liabilities recognised in RIFEMBERNRERNELR
the consolidated statement of financial position and the B(EE)/BEAKBY ARER
movements during the year are as follows: FAMEESHMAT
Accelerated
tax Intangible Unused tax
depreciation assets losses Total
hn 2 B 1% KREABL I
wE BREEE -] &5t
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FAT FAET FAET FAT
At 1 January 2016 201641 A1 8 451 - (451) -
Acquisition of subsidiaries U BE P B A B 57 - (132) (75)
(Credited)/charged to Wz (G )\)/
profit or loss Mk (121) 301 237 417
At 31 December 2016 and R2016F 12 A31 H
at 1 January 2017 % 2017F1 A1H 387 301 (346) 342
Disposal of subsidiaries HE B AR (14) (270) — (284)
(Credited)/charged to profit or R 4EzEH (5T A),/
loss e 56 (31) (83) (58)
At 31 December 2017 2017412 A31H 429 - (429) -

(b)

Deferred tax assets not recognised

As at 31 December 2017, the Group has unused tax loss of
approximately HK$36,871,000 (2016: HK$27,444,000) available
for offset against future profits that may be carried forward
indefinitely. Deferred tax assets have been recognised in respect
of approximately HK$2,598,000 (2016: HK$2,098,000) of such
tax loss. No further deferred tax asset has been recognised in
respect of the tax loss due to the unpredictability of future profit

streams.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

REERRMET (E)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
HE2017F12A31BIEFE

(@)

32. SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES 2. AR #ME
Share capital (a) B
Number
of shares Nominal value
BHEE HE
000 HK$’000
TFix FAETT
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each BROABTHEER
Authorised: EIE
At 31 December 2016 and MN2016F12A31H K&
31 December 2017 20175128310 10,000,000 1,000,000
Issued and fully paid: ERITRAR:
At 1 January 2016 R2016%F1 A1 H 1,382,400 138,240
Issue of shares upon exercise of ITEBEIRERITR G
share options (Note (i) (B &) 15,382 1,538
At 31 December 2016, 2016512 A31H « 20174
1 January 2017 and 31 December 2017 1 A1 H k2017412 A31H 1,397,782 139,778

(i) On 3 August 2016, a total of 15,382,400 ordinary shares
of HK$0.10 each were issued upon exercise of share
options granted under the share option scheme. The
excess of the exercise price over the par value of the
shares issued was credited to the share premium account.

(ii) Details of the Company’s share option scheme and the
share options issued under the scheme are included in
note 33 to the consolidated financial statements.

(b)
() Group

Movements in components of equity

(b)

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements
therein for the current and prior years are presented in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 66 of

the consolidated financial statements.

Merger reserve arose as a result of the reorganisation

taken place on 20 December 2011 which represents the
differences between the issued shares and share premium
of MiniLogic HK upon group reorganisation and the nil-paid
issued of 380,000 shares of the Company which credited

as fully paid.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

32. SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)

(b) Movements in components of equity (Continued)

(i)

(i)

wRE B SRR MR ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

HE2017F12A31BILFE

32. AR f# 4 @
(b) #ERAKEE @)

Group (Continued) () FT%B@
The statutory reserve represents the appropriation of 10% EEREBIEBERBES
of profit after tax determined based on the relevant AR EARLME ([
accounting rules and regulations of the People’s Republic DeE e st R B & 8 41
of China (“PRC”) in accordance with the relevant PRC laws B EBRBEEFNNI0% B
until the PRC statutory reserve reaches 50% of the ZEHRBEETHBINENREA
registered capital of the relevant subsidiaries. The statutory b 8~ B AR R B9 50% &
reserve can be applied either to set off accumulated losses e AFERETRARMEZR
or to increase capital. FrES S E -
The Company @iy AT
The reconciliation between the opening and closing REBGARRZERKIT D
balances of each component of the Group’s consolidated FHEFERGEHRDERER
equity is set out in the consolidated statement of changes RERDZEHR  ARAS
in equity. Details of the changes in the Company’s EREZFAXID N REEF
individual components of equity between the beginning VEFROBEFBOT :
and the end of the year are set out below:
Share Share Accumulated
capital premium losses Total
BA BROEE RitER &5t
HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FAET FHT FHT FAT
At 1 January 2016 2016491 A1H 138,240 143,243 (5,368) 276,115
Loss for the year FAEE — - (3,156) (3,156)
Total comprehensive expense % [ i 5z 42 58 - - (3,156) (3,156)
Transactions with owner: BEBEAZRS:
Issue of shares upon TEE R BT
exercise of share option M 1 (B 5% 32(a)())
(Note 32(a)(i)) 1,538 5,044 — 6,582
1,538 5,044 — 6,582
At 31 December 2016 #2016%F 12 A31H &
and 1 January 2017 201741 A1H 139,778 148,287 (8,524) 279,541
Loss for the year FA/BE - = (10,532) (10,532)
Total comprehensive expense % [ il 37 42 58 - - (10,532) (10,532)
At 31 December 2017 R2017512H31H 139,778 148,287 (19,056) 269,009
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
REERRMET (E)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
HE2017F12831BIEFE

32. SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)

()

Capital Management

The Group manages its capital to ensure the entities in the Group
will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the
return to shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and
equity balances.

The capital structure of the Group consists of equity attributable
to owners of the Company, comprising issued share capital,
reserves and retained profits.

The management of the Group reviews the capital structure
periodically. The Group considers the cost of capital and risk
associated with each class of capital, and will balance its overall
capital structure through payment of dividends, issuance of new
shares as well as the raising of new debts.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

GRE KRR (E)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
HE2017F12A31BILFE

33. SHARE OPTION SCHEME 33. BRAESTE

The Company has adopted a share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”) on 16 May 2012 (“the Adoption Date”). Share Option
Scheme will remain in force for a period of 10 years effective from 10
July 2012 of the scheme and will expire on 9 July 2022.

The purpose of the Share Options Scheme is to provide incentives to
the participants. The participants of the Share Option Scheme, as
absolutely determined by the Board, include:

(@  any employee (whether full time or part time employee, including
any executive directors) of any member of the Group or any entity
in which the Group holds any equity interest (“Invested Entity”);

(b) any non-executive directors (including independent non-
executive directors) of any member of the Group or any Invested
Entity;

(c)  any supplier of goods or services to any member of the Group or
any Invested Entity;

(d)  any customer of any member of the Group or any Invested Entity;

(e) any person or entity that provides research, development or
other technological support to any member of the Group or any
Invested Entity;

[} any shareholder of any member of the Group or any Invested
Entity or any holder of any securities issued by any member of
the Group or any Invested Entity; and

(9 any adviser (professional or otherwise) or consultant to any area
of business or business development of any member of the
Group or any Invested Entity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

REERRMET (E)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
HE2017F12831BIEFE

33. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The maximum number of shares in respect to which options may be
granted under the Share Option Scheme shall not exceed 10% of the
issued share capital of the Company on the date of adopting the Share
Option Scheme. The limit may be refreshed at any time provided that
the new limit must not be in aggregate exceed 10% of the issued share
capital of the Company as at the date of the shareholders’ approval in
general meeting. However, the total number of shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised under the Share Option Scheme and any other scheme of
the Company must not in aggregate exceed 30% of the shares in issue
from time to time. The maximum number of shares in respect of which
options may be granted to any individual in any 12-month period shall
not exceed 1% of the shares in issue on the last date of such 12-month
period unless approval of the shareholders of the Company has been
obtained in accordance with the GEM Listing Rules. A nominal
consideration of HK$1 is payable on acceptance of the grant of an

option.

Options may be exercised at any time from the date of grant of the
option to the 10th anniversary of the date of grant as may be
determined by the Directors. The exercise price is determined by the
Directors, and will not be less than the highest of () the closing price
per share as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets on
the date of the grant of the options; (i) the average closing price per
share as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the
five business days immediately preceding the date of the grant of the
options; or (i) the nominal value of a share.

On 9 May 2016, 29,030,400 share options were granted to two
executive Directors and an independent non-executive Director
(collectively the “Grantees”) of the Company under the share option
scheme which was adopted by the Company on 16 May 2012. The
exercise price of HK$0.365 per share was not less than the highest of (i)
the closing price of HK$0.36 per share as stated in the daily quotation
sheet issued by the Stock Exchange on the date of grant; (i) the
average closing price of HK$0.359 per share as stated in the daily
quotation sheet issued by the Stock Exchange for the five business
days immediately proceeding the date of grant; and (i) the nominal
value of a share. Each option gives the holder the right to subscribe for
one ordinary share of HK$0.1 each in the share capital of the Company.

The fair value of the share options granted was approximately
HK$1,826,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$0.063 each) which was
estimated by using a trinomial option pricing model, and also taking
into account the terms and conditions upon which the options were

granted.

33. BRESTE @

R IR BB AT &I R RE R L 2 BB IR P S
EHBRMHBE RETEEBRMER
BFEEAARFEEHITRAZ10% -
ZERABEEER  ERRESRTE
BBRRRERASHEZEAARAFD
BT 210% © 28T IR AR 8 B HE &
I RADREMEMFEEREERK
TREZ2EHBEREETER 7] T &7
ZBRHBEEHTEEBEREEHITR
7 230% ° PRI 1218 A BAfE A - [l fE
A ERALRE ZBREREITER - 7]
TEOTZRNDBEB T EBEZI12(E A H
R&E—RDETRMDZ1%  FRIFRR
GEM L 77 5 BIl 48 i 78 22 &) AR SR 4L 28 B
A EARHZBRER BNRE
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2016 F5 A9 » IRIEAR R AIN20124F
S5A16BEMMBREF S M AR FRH
FHRITEER —BBILIERNTEE(H
[ #E R A L) % 1 29,080,40015 B A% 4 -
FH0.365 B THITHEBE T EN T2
EEmEEERERDE BB AR
BT HRER LAY 2 E/R0.36%HE
T2 W TE (B EREERER AR
hEZEREHIMEHMNTHARER
P2 HRR0.359F L 2 FH WM E
Kl EE SHERERTHEA
BHAREARAIRAT —REREE
01/ L EmA% -

FrE b e 2 A FEH A1,826,000
BT HHERSHHE0.063BTT) v fFE
AmEAEERTERAREEERT
8 AR PIT AR IR 2 IR I A R 5T o

Megalogic Technology Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

GRE KRR (E)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
HE2017F12A31BILFE

33. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) 33. ERETE @

The contractual life of each option granted is six months from 9 May
2016. The fair value of options granted during the year was estimated
by using the following assumptions:

Dividend yield (%) —

Expected volatility (%) 64.34
Risk free interest rate (%) 0.19
Expected exercise multiple 2.80

Expected volatility was determined by using the Company’s historical
share price volatility. Expected exercise multiple used in the model was
based on the management’s best estimate. The valuation has been
performed by RHL Appraisal Limited, who is independent to the Group.

Summary details of the movement of the share options granted during
the year ended 31 December 2016 are set out as follows:

BOARLBREZ SN H2016%55
HOREFT/NEA - IRF AR H e B g
2 ATFETHER TR M EEt

P B (%) -

78 HA R 18 (%) 64.34
48 2 [ 1| 3R (%) 0.19
TR TEEH 2.80

FEHERBEDRAB AR BERE KRS
EeBBRAMBREGTEEHRECRE
BEENREMGRFSH ARAGBEHREBEY
RASBE O KMITHERRBARA R E
1T

HE2016F12A31ALFE  BE LB
BREZSHHRFBEHIIN T

Number of Share Options
BREZA
Outstanding Outstanding
Exercise and Exercise as at Granted  Exercised Lapsed as at
Date of Grant validity period Priceper 1 January during during during 31 December
Name of Grantee/Category  (dd/mm/yyyy) (dd/mm/yyyy) Share 2016 the year the year the year 2016
&R #2016 % 12016
RLAS BHE  BRRS 1818 FER FER EER 128318
RREARS/ES (B/R/%) (B/R/%) TEE HRAE ER [BXGE;d BA¥  HEROE
Executive Directors
HITES
Mr. Zhang Qing 09/05/2016  09/05/2016-  HK$0.365 — 13,824,000  4,000000 9,824,000 -
RELE 09/11/2016  0.365%7T
Dr. Sung Tak Wing Leo 09/05/2016  09/05/2016-  HK$0.365 — 13,824,000 10,000,000 3,824,000 -
REREL 09/11/2016  0.365%7C

Independent Non-Executive
Director
BUFHTES
Mr. Chiu Yu Wang 09/05/2016  09/05/2016- HK$0.365 -
WRELE 09/11/2016  0.365% T

1,382,400 1,382,400 - -

Total

A

29,030,400 15,382,400 13,648,000 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

=
)

Bt 75 R R B R ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
HE2017F12831BIEFE

33.

34.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

The refreshment of the Share Option Scheme mandate limit was
approved at the annual general meeting held on 28 April 2017, based
on 1,397,782,400 shares in issue as at 28 April 2017, the Company
was allowed to grant further options under the Share Option Scheme at
up to a total of 139,778,240 shares, representing 10.0% of the shares
in issue as at 28 April 2017 and representing 10.0% of the issue share
capital of the Company as at 31 December 2017 and the date of this
annual report respectively, and representing 10.0% of the issued share
capital of the Company, as at the date of 2016 annual report.

No share option was granted, exercised, cancelled, expired or lapsed
since 1 January 2017 and the refreshment of the scheme mandate limit
on 28 April 2017 and up to 31 December 2017. There were no
outstanding share options under the Share Option Scheme as at 31
December 2016 and 2017.

BUSINESS COMBINATION

On 20 January 2017, the Group acquired entire issued share capital of
Quick Wit. As a result, the Group obtains control of the Quick Wit.
Upon completion of the acquisition, Quick Wit has become a direct
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company and the financial results of the
Quick Wit and its subsidiaries (the “Quick Wit Group”) have been
consolidated into the financial statement of the Group.

Taking control of the Quick Wit Group enables the Group to explore the
opportunity of developing the property management services in the
PRC and to diversify the Group’s existing business.
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REERETE®E S REERE &
% & H#E139,778 2400 B fH - K R R
2017 4 A28 H B 17 I 1) #910.0% &
RERADE D RIR2017FE12 531 B kK
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716 - BB - Bl H K # o 2016 F &
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EBE

R20174F1 4208 + A& & E I B Quick
Witz 22 BITRA . Bt - NEEE
5 Quick Wit 12 il 4 - W ¥ FIH T Ak -
Quick Withk B AR A& — B 2 8 W B
A &) & Quick Wit & E KY 8 2 7 (I Quick
Wits B ) v I EE D RA T ALEE
2R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

34. BUSINESS COMBINATION (continued)

(@)

Consideration transferred

The following table summarises the acquisition-date fair value of
consideration transferred.

wRE B SRR MR ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

HE2017F12A31BILFE

M. EBKEHmw

(a)

CEBNE

TR E B R R B
AT -

HK$'000

F& T

Cash Re 100,000
Promissory note EH B 40,000
140,000

The consideration was determined at approximately
HK$140,000,000 based on (i) the business prospects of the
Quick Wit Group; (i) the property management contracts
entered/to be entered by the Quick Wit Group and the Quick Wit
Group’s future business plan; (i) the profit guarantee for the year
ending 31 December 2017 will not less than HK$14,000,000;
and (iv) the implied price to earnings ratio of 10 times as indicated
by the profit guarantee is in line with and lower than most of the
price to earnings ratio of companies listed on the Stock
Exchange principally engaged in the provision of property
management and related services.

According to the audited account of Quick Wit Group for the year
ended 31 December 2017, Quick Wit Group recorded revenue
and incurred a net profit before tax of approximately
HK$36,610,000 and HK$16,990,000 respectively for the year
ended 31 December 2017. Therefore, the profit guarantee for the
relevant year has been met.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
REERRMET (E)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
HE2017F12831BIEFE

34. BUSINESS COMBINATION (continued)

(b) Acquisition-related costs

The Group incurred acquisition-related costs of approximately
HK$979,000. These costs have been included in “other operating
expenses” in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income.

K. EBKEHmw
(b) Y EE AHBEE X A

REEBEAMHWEMRBR AN A
979,000 7T ° 3% & MK A B 5T A 4R
AEFZEREMEZEKRSIRAOE A
LEFEY] -

(c) ldentifiable assets and liabilities (c) IR EEREE
The following table summarises the fair value of the identifiable TR A A U B B A Quick Wit5 B
assets and liabilities of the Quick Wit Group at the date of A EELRAENAFE -
acquisition.
HK$’'000
FHET
Property, plant and equipment ME - RE MEE 3
Deposits and prepayments e RIERIEA 200
Trade receivables JEUE 5 AR 3K 1,696
Bank balances and cash RITHEBRERS 3,598
Trade payables BB SRR (921)
Other payables and accruals H A T R ERT A (1,787)
Tax payables FEBLIR (237)
Total identifiable net assets at fair value AZMNFEELENRATE 2,552
(d) Goodwill arising on acquisition d WBELEBHE
HK$’'000
FAT
Consideration transferred EEoRE 140,000
Less: Fair value of identifiable net assets acquired & : A i Bl O W B R E E A F1E (2,552)
Goodwill arising on acquisition WEEEZHE 137,448

Included in the goodwill of approximately HK$137,448,000
recognised above was the benefit of diversity in business,
broadening the sources of the Group’s revenues and cash flows.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

GRE KRR (E)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
HE2017F12A31BILFE

34. BUSINESS COMBINATION (continued) 4. EBEHw

(e) Net cash flows on acquisition

An analysis of cash flows in respect of the acquisition of

) WBZFRERE
EHBEHEAAZASRES

subsidiaries is as follows: iR N

HK$’'000
FAT
Consideration paid in cash BENRERE (100,000)
Cash and bank balances acquired WEER € RIRTTHE & 3,698

Net outflow of cash and cash equivalent included FH ¢ RIS EEM R LB BIEHE
in cash flows from investing activities KEEFHZHERE (96,402)

35. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES 35. HEME 2 F

On 25 April 2017, the Group agreed to dispose of 55% of the entire
issued share capital of Maximus Venture Holdings Limited for a
consideration of HK$29.0 million. All of the conditions precedent of the
disposal have been fulfilled and the completion of the disposal took
place on 28 June 2017. Upon completion, the Group discontinued its
total solutions for information security business.

During the period up to 28 June 2017, the Maximus Group contributed
revenue and incurred a profit of approximately HK$7,594,000 and
HK$2,295,000 respectively to the Group’s results.

(a) Consideration receivable

The following table summarises the consideration receivable.

20174 A250 A& ERZ AR
29.08 & % 7L i & Maximus Venture
Holdings Limited & &B £ 2 17 IR A8 2 55% ©
ZEHREZ2MERGHSELER T
ZIBEHEINNE R2017F6 A28H 5T °
TEHE AEBRIECEHEEARETE
BBATRZER-

BN EZ£201746 A28H * Maximus £ [&

HAKEEMESERREYESEN D
Al #)7,594,0007% 7T K 2,295,0007% T

(a) FEWA(E
TRELR A -

HK$'000

FHT

Consideration received B E 29,000
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
REERRMET (E)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
HE2017F12831BIEFE

35. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(b) Disposal-related costs

()

The Group incurred disposal-related costs of approximately
HK$600,000. These costs have been included in “other operating
expenses” in the consolidated statement of profit and loss and

other comprehensive income.

Analysis of assets and liabilities over which (c)

control was lost

The following table summarises the recognised amounts of
identifiable assets and liabilities over which control is lost.

35. HEM B 2 7 @)

(b) HEHEBEXAR

REBEELERBBEREYD
600,000/ 7T ° It F K AN B 5T A 4R
AEFZREMEZEKRSRANIE
AR SN e

CREEFREZEERE
&z

TR K AT B2 7 &5
BERABZOERESRE -

HK$’'000
FAT
Property, plant and equipment M- BEREE 690
Intangible asset EBILAE 1,635
Deposits and prepayments e RIEFKIEA 282
Trade receivables FEWE 5 BRI 3,563
Tax recoverables A Y Bl A 18 122
Bank balances and cash RITEBRERS 6,813
Amount due to a former non-controlling interest & {F — [ A i 8 & 7] 2 — 7 B
shareholder of a former subsidiary FEIE R R I AR R 2 U (4,303)
Other payables and accruals H At JE T R FERTRUA (1,985)
Provision B (123)
Deferred tax liabilities BRERIBEEE (284)
Total identifiable net assets disposed PR ERBAFEERE 6,460

(d) Loss on disposal of subsidiaries

(e)

d HENBIRBIE

HK$’000

FHIT

Consideration receivable FEU R E 29,000
Less: Net assets disposed B BHEFEE (6,460)
Less: Goodwill R (27,280)
Add: Non-controlling interests o SEfERR R 2,907
Loss on disposal HEEE (1,833)

Net cash flow on disposal e) HEZFRERE

HK$’'000

FAT

Cash consideration received BYRESRE 29,000
Less: cash and cash equivalent balances disposed — J& : FFHEMR L LB L S EBYWEH 6,813)
Total BEr 22,187
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36. TRANSACTION WITH NON-CONTROLLING

37

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

INTERESTS

Deemed disposal of interest in a subsidiary
without loss of control

On 31 October 2017, Minilogic Investment Limited (“Minilogic”), a direct
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, allotted shares to a
subscriber which diluted the Group’s interest in Minilogic from 100% to
60%, resulted in a deemed disposal of 40% equity interests in Minilogic.
The effect of changes in the ownership interest of this subsidiary on the
equity attributable to shareholders of the Company during the year is

36. HFEREZ 2

GRE KRR (E)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
HE2017F12A31BILFE

2

BEHERMEAR 2 EE
X LEELT )

R2017F10A31H R ARl E% 2
% [ff B A & Minilogic Investment Limited
([Minilogic ) M 3R 88 A BL 3 AR 1 - B M 4%
7N £ B A Minilogic 2 & % 1 100% # 58 =
60% * & B R 1 & M Minilogic 2 40% &
H-RERN ZMBRABIZEBEER

summarised as follows: FEMUPARFRIREEEESZZE/RL
R
HK$’'000
FHT
Carrying amount of equity acquired by non-controlling IR TN ES 2 BREE
interests (1,772)
Consideration received from non-controlling interest that AN A @1 #E A A B E U IFIR R =R 2
attributable to owner of the Company ~E 2,040
Changes recognised within equity A HE 2 FE R B &) 268
OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 37. REHERIE
The Group leased certain of its offices under operating lease NREEBREBELREHELHHEEES T9

arrangements. Leases for office were negotiated for terms ranging from
2 to 3 years. At the end of the reporting period, the total future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating lease in
respect of leased properties are payable as follows:

RE-WAZHIBER2EIF - R
SRR RETUBELEAERAN
MEMEZRARRERERNRET

2017 2016

2017 F 2016

HK$’000 HK$'000

FH& T FET

Within 1 year 1F R 2,249 2,887
After 1 year but within 5 years 1F%BE5FA 443 2,783
2,692 5,670

Operating lease payments mainly represent rentals payable by the
Group for its office premises and a warehouse in Hong Kong. Lease
payments are fixed throughout the lease term agreed. None of the
leased includes contingent rentals.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

REERRMET (E)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
HE2017F12831BIEFE

38. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

The Group did not have any material capital commitments as at 31

December 2017 (2016: nil).

39

FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details the changes in the Group’s liabilities arising
from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash changes.
Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for which cash flows
were, or future cash flows will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated
statement of cash flows as cash flows from financing activities.

38. EANAERE

REBR2017F12 A3 BT EEFE K

B AR EHE (20164F + ) o

ANy =~ — 1
WEME °

BELHZH

RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING  39. § = %ﬁiﬁbﬁﬁr‘éiﬁﬁ

TERBNAEEXRABMEBTHAESE
BEZEHHE ERASKIIHASE
H-BRETHMELANABREIERN
AEENGERERERTOBERKE
MIEEIMERIARK

Promissory note

AHER

Note 30

330

HK$’'000

FAT

At 1 January 2016 K2016%F 1 A1H —
Acquisition of the subsidiaries U BE P B8 A B 17,500
Accumulated interest ZEH A 354
Walive of accumulated interest e RN A (354)
Early redemption R ER (17,500)
At 31 December 2016 and at 1 January 2017 R2016F 12 A31 H & 201741 A1H —
Acquisition of the subsidiaries U BE P B8 A A 40,000
Accumulated interest 25 F B 857
Waive of accumulated interest e RN E (857)
Early redemption REED (40,000)

At 31 December 2017

R2017%F12A31H
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40. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

(@)

(b)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

wRE B SRR MR ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

Key management personnel remuneration (a)

Remuneration for key management personnel of the Group,
including amounts paid to the Company’s directors as disclosed
in note 12(a) to the consolidated financial statements and certain
of the highest paid employees as disclosed in note 12(b) to the
consolidated financial statements, is as follows:

HE2017F12A31BILFE

40. BEA T E

TEEEAENH M

REBTEZEEBEAENME  2E0
HREABRERN T 120K R
EXNFAQRRIEENESEREX
R ER A B S 3R &R KT 52 12(0) BT
BEMNETESFNEENSEN
T

2017 2016
20175 20164
HK$’000 HK$’000
FE T FAT
Salary and other short term employee HehEMEHEERRESR
benefits 6,949 5,395
Post-employment benefits Bt 58 A A 84 83
Equity-settled share-based payments I& HEAE E IR D R - 881
7,033 6,359
Loans to related parties b) EFHEEFNER
The following tables disclose the loan interest income and loans TREEEH Z2017F k2016512
advanced to related parties for the year ended 31 December AIBLEFEEEZANE WA NTE
2017 and 2016: NEEFTER:
2017 2016
20175 20164F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FE T FAT
Loan interest income from: KB THETTHERFER
A
— Key management personnel — FEERBAER 7 -
Loans advanced to: BETTISEFHER
— Key management personnel — FEERBAE 10,900 -

During the year ended 31 December 2017, loans advanced to
related parties are repayable according to repayment schedules,
with contractual maturity within 3 months to 1 year and bear
annual interest rates is at 12%. All loans repayments from related
parties were received. They were neither past due nor impaired.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

REERRMET (E)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
HE2017F12831BIEFE

40. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (continued)

(c) Related party balance

Details of the Group’s outstanding balances with related parties
are set out in note 27 and 28 to the consolidated financial
statements.

(d) Applicability of the GEM Listing Rules
relating to connected transactions

None of above related party transactions falls under the definition
of connected transaction or continuing connected transaction as
defined in Chapter 20 of GEM Listing Rules.

41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

40. BBE A T E @)

(c)

(d)

B 75 & BR

ERASBEEBET 2 RERS
BRAFBHNGE M BRERME27
K28 ¢

GEM L m iR Bl ¥ B8 E X
SHERM
RIEGEM E TR BIFE20% » 48 £
MAEFRSEABER S A
BRESSMTE -

41. €T A

(a) Categories of financial instruments (@ 2RMIAENSE
The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets and AEBRESREFTRNECHEE
liabilities as at the end of each reporting year are as follows: HeEEmENT
2017 2016
2017 F 2016 4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
TE T FET
Financial assets: SREE:
Loans and receivables BNk ERFRIA
— Trade receivables — ERE SRR 4,107 7,985
— Loans receivables — BIER 135,422 255,954
— Deposit — %% 1,318 926
— Bank balances and cash — RITEB LIRS 39,013 8,005
179,860 272,870
Financial liabilities: SRAE:
Financial liabilities measured at BEEENATENESREBE
amortised cost
— Trade payables — ERNE SRR 1,292 543
— Other payables and accruals — HAbFER RIERTHIA 5,655 6,996
6,947 7,539
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
market risk (including currency risk and interest rate risk), credit
risk and liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate these risks
are described below. The management manages and monitors

these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are

implemented on a timely and effective manner.

Currency risk

The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk primarily
through sales and purchases that are denominated in a
currency other than the functional currency of the
operations to which they relate. The currencies giving rise
to this risk include United States dollars (‘USD”) and
Renminbi (‘RMB”). In addition, certain bank balances of
the Group are also denominated in USD. The Group
currently does not have a foreign currency hedging policy
with respect to its foreign exchange exposure. However,
management monitors foreign exchange exposures and
will consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure
should the need arise.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign currency
denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities at

wRE B SRR MR ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

HE2017F12A31BILFE

M. @I A
b) BEEREEEEREE

AEBWEHEYZ BV ERAR
mEERE(BEEERR & F EE
%) EERRETBE SRR -
20 fA] R S L R P e B R A S T
X EREBTERERELRER
BREERBERMEEESOE
i

() E¥mER
AEBEHEOIINERR  E
REBABEBEBOY L
B AN B 1T I B A
R - SREBERRHNEE
BREETTETDRARS
(TAR®D - s R&EE
ZETIRITHER I AR TR
B N&E B Al & 3L H5b
BEE | B AT 2 HM K S R SR o
Am - BEEESERIIER
B REEFTERZEH T E
RSME [ B2 o

REBREHREHE KA
BHENEBEEREKA

the end of each reporting period are as follows: ERREmERT
2017 2016
2017 F 20164
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FET
Assets BE
Usb ETT 1,402 2,543
RMB AR #& 21,591 1,314
Liabilities I=RE
usD E7T 1,505 1,050
RMB AR 3,758 260
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
REERRMET (E)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
HE2017F12831BIEFE

41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies

(i)

(i

Currency risk (Continued)

Foreign currency sensitivity analysis

The Group mainly exposes to foreign exchange fluctuation
of the currencies of USD and RMB against the currency of
Hong Kong dollar (“HKD”). The directors consider that the
Group’s exposure to USD does not give rise to significant
foreign currency risk on the ground that HKD is pegged to
USD. Therefore, no sensitivity analysis of USD against the
functional currency of the respective group entity is
disclosed.

A reasonably possible change of 5% in the exchange rate
between RMB and HKD would have no material impact on
the Group’s profit or loss during the reporting periods and
there would be no material impact on the Group’s equity
as at the end of each reporting period. The sensitivity
analysis includes only outstanding RMB denominated
monetary items and adjusts their translation at the end of
respective reporting period for a 5% change in the
currency rate. 5% is the sensitivity rate used when
reporting foreign currency risk in respect of RMB internally
to key management personnel and represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably possible
change in the exchange rate of HKD against RMB.

Interest rate risk
The Group’s exposure to cash flow interest rate risk arises
primarily from its variable-rate bank deposits.

The Group currently does not have any interest rate
hedging policy. However, the management monitors the
Group’s exposure to interest rate risk on an ongoing basis
and will consider hedging interest rate risk should the need
arise.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)

(i)

(il

Interest rate risk (Continued)

Interest rate sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been prepared based on
the exposure to interest rates for the Group’s variable-rate
bank deposits at the end of each reporting period. The
analysis is prepared assuming the amount of these assets
and liabilities outstanding at the end of each reporting
period were outstanding for the whole period. A 25 basis
points increase or decrease in interest rates is used when
reporting interest rate risk internally to key management
personnel and represents management’s assessment of
the reasonably possible change in interest rates. The
analysis has been performed on the same basis throughout
the reporting periods.

At the end of the reporting period, if interest rates had
been 25 (2016: 25) basis points higher/lower in respect of
the Group’s variable-rate bank deposits and bank
overdrafts, with all other variables held constant, there
would have increased/decreased (2016: decreased/
increased) by approximately HK$15,000 (2016: HK$6,000)
on the Group’s profit/loss during the reporting period.
These are mainly attributable to Group’s exposure to
interest rate on its variable rate bank balances.

Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to trade
receivables, loans receivables and bank deposits. As at 31
December 2017 and 2016, the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk which will cause a financial loss to
the Group due to failure to discharge an obligation by the
counterparties is the carrying amounts of the respective
recognised financial assets as stated in the consolidated
statements of financial position.

The Group has a credit policy in place and will perform
credit evaluations on all customers requiring credit over a
certain amount. The Group also has an export credit
insurance with the Hong Kong Export Credit Insurance
Corporation to cover risks on non-payment by customers.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
REERRMET (E)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
HE2017F12831BIEFE

41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)

(il

Credit risk (Continued)

In order to minimise the credit risk, the Group reviews the
recoverable amount of each individual trade debt regularly
to ensure that adequate allowance for impairment losses
are made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the
management of the Group considers that the Group’s
credit risk is significantly reduced.

The Group has concentration of credit risk as the Group’s
top one (2016: one) trade debtor accounted for 33.6%
(2016: 27%) of its total trade receivables as at the end of
the reporting period. In addition, the Group’s five largest
trade debtors accounted for 81.0% and 74% of its total
trade receivables as at 31 December 2017 and 2016
respectively.

The Group has 26 (2016: 60) loans receivables as at 31
December 2017.

The credit risk for liquid funds is limited because such
amounts are placed with various banks with good credit
ratings.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group’s
exposure to credit risk arising from trade receivables are
set out in note 22 to the consolidated financial statements.

Collateral held as security and other credit
enhancements

The Group does not hold other credit enhancements to
cover its credit risks associated with its financial assets.
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41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

wRE B SRR MR ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

HE2017F12A31BILFE

4. €/ T B

(b) Financial risk management objectives and b) BEEREEEEREEK
policies (Continued) (&)
(iv) Liquidity risk vy RENE TR
The Group’s liquidity position is monitored closely by the AEB EREERYER
management of the Group. In the management of the REBZRBESKNI - £
liquidity risk, the Group monitors and maintains a level of EERERBESREKBR M &K
cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate by the EEERELGEFEERESR A
management to finance the Group’s operations and to ZREZHSRESZEYK
meet its liquidity requirements in the short and longer term. FUAAREE 2 EZERE
MEMSESREERBNR
During the reporting periods, the Group financed its RBERRN REBFTEFH
working capital requirements principally by funds generated BEEEANMESRBITR
from operations and issue of shares. MBEMBEEEER
The following table details the Group’s contractual TRFAWAEERZSHREH K
maturities at the end of each reporting period for its SRMBEZANIEHES T
financial liabilities. The table has been drawn up based on EERESHABEZRMTR
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the eRE - WAAREEENRD
earliest date on which the Group can be required to pay. EFHPAREERE - KA
The table includes both interest and principal cash flows. HEANBRFEMREREE
Repayable on
demand or Between Total
within Between 3 monthsto undiscounted Carrying
1 month 1-3 months 1 year cash flows amount
R-BR —-f@AZ ZEAZE KEBRRE
AEE =f@AR —f RELE RELE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET FET FET
As at 31 December 2017  A2017F12A31H
Trade and other payables  [ERE 5 & E 4t fE [ BR 3K 6,947 - - 6,947 6,947
As at 31 December 2016 74201612 H31H
Trade and other payables T 2 5 I E A B BR 3K 3,968 - - 3,958 3,968
Amount due to a former FERT —RIATH B 2 R8T
non-controling interest EHEEREZRE A
shareholder of a former 18
subsidiary 5,258 - - 5,258 5,258
9,216 - - 9,216 9,216
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42.

43.

44.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group did not have any material contingent liabilities as at 31
December 2017.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

The board of directors proposes to change the English name of the
Company from “Megalogic Technology Holdings Limited” to “New
Western Group Limited” and to adopt the Chinese name “37 /) &7 18 &
BAR/AR)" as the dual foreign name of the Company to replace the
existing Chinese name “ZE|ISFIEEEFR A F". The Company will
submit the proposal for approval by the Shareholders at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

Detail of the proposal was disclosed in the Company’s announcement
dated 23 March 2018.

COMPARATIVE AMOUNTS

As a result of disposal of subsidiaries, certain comparative figures have
been adjusted accordingly. In addition, certain comparative amounts
have been reclassified to conform to the current year’s presentation.
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GRE KRR (E)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

HE2017F12A31BILFE

45. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 45. " A 3 2 B &4 R &
THE COMPANY

2017 2016
2017 F 2016 F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FH& T FET
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment M BB R 16 46
Investments in subsidiaries KRB RRIMNEE 150,000 —
Total non-current assets HWERBEE 150,016 46
Current assets RBEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUCHT B A B3R 118,353 205,023
Loans receivables fEUR B 3R - 72,901
Deposits and prepayments e MBI FRIE 42 18
Bank balances and cash RITHEHRLRS 1,483 1,883
Total current assets BREEE 119,878 279,825
Current liabilities REBAEE
Other payables and accruals Hfh e~ N B AT I8 885 330
Total current liabilities BWREEE 885 330
Net current assets BREEE 118,993 279,485
Net assets BEE 269,009 279,541
Capital and reserves EAXRFE
Share capital R% AR 32(a) 139,778 139,778
Reserves 1 32(b)(i) 129,231 139,763
Total equity EmEEE 269,009 279,541

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the B HRE N2018F3AHEEE T

board of directors on 23 March 2018 and signed on its behalf by: HAEREENE THTINESREE
Eo
ZHANG Qing SUNG Tak Wing Leo
RE REH
Director Director
= =
46. AUTHORISATION OF ISSUE OF THE 46. RET R FEMBEREK

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEES D N2018FE3A23H #E A I
Fleir a ISRk -

The consolidated financial statements were approved and authorised
for issue by the Board of Directors on 23 March 2018.
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SUMMARY OF FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL INFORMATION
LFEMBERBR

The following is a summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group I T A BE D B K EZMBRERLERE
for the last five financial years, as extracted from the published audited &% S BBy AEEBEREMKEE
financial statements and restated/reclassified as appropriate: CEELE BENAEWME:

RESULTS &

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31ALEE

2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
2017 £ 20164 20154F 20144 20134
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FHET FHET FHET T T
Continuing operations (& K& ¥
Revenue W 25 75,925 50,920 29,244 52,136 42,769
Profit/(loss) for the year FRREAFELE
from continuing X 30kl
operations (B1E) 9,865 6,827 (8,858) (7,690) (6,090)
Discontinued operation B & ILEEKE
E
Profit from discontinued REBKIEEEE
operation 75 |9 Y 462 3,765 — — —
Profit/(Loss) for the year — 4E & F,/(&518) 10,327 10,592 (8,858) (7,690) (6,090)
Earnings/(Loss) per share & A (Ei8)
(HK cents) (B 0.70 0.64 (1.87) (2.25) @.11)
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERAEE
As at 31 December
R12A31H
2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
2017 20164 20154 20144 20134
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FHET FHET F# T T T
Total assets WMEE 325,424 313,143 286,762 79,125 69,340
Total liabilities waE 12,083 11,208 2,161 4,048 5,217
Net assets BEFE 313,341 301,935 284,601 75,077 64,123
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